WKK

WONG'S KONG KING INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

( Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability )
(Stock Code: 0532)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Corporate Information 23 ) & #}

Chairman’s Statement =T it 4 3

Financial Highlights F4 % f# 2

Five Years Financial Summary Fo.4F B %5 i B2

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management = 25 & /5 Ji& 45 3 A

Report of the Directors # i & it 1 &

Corporate Governance Report 1> 3% & i ¥ 1

Environmental, Social and Governance Report 5245 ~ #f € & B i

Independent Auditor’s Report 18 7. 12 S fili 3t 5 35

Consolidated Income Statement & 1 F1] i &

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income & i 45 & Ui 5 3

Consolidated Balance Sheet & 1 & & & (& %

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & ff i £ 5 &) %

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows & f 3 4 i &= &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements £ B B %5 ¥ & Mt %

91

100

101

103

105

107



CORPORATE INFORMATION

Executive Directors
Senta Wong (Chairman)

Edward Ying-Chun Tsui (Group President and Chief Executive Officer)

Byron Shu-Chan Ho (Chief Financial Officer)
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong

Vinci Wong

Victor Jui Shum Chang

Non-Executive Director
Hamed Hassan El-Abd

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Philip Wan-Chung Tse

Leung Kam Fong

Yip Wai Chun

Arnold Hin Lin Tse

Andrew Yiu Wing Lam

Company Secretary
Cheng Ying

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Solicitors
J.S. Gale & Co.
Stephenson Harwood

Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Share Registrars

Principal Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Hong Kong Registrar

Tricor Standard Limited

Registered Office
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11
Bermuda

Principal Office
17/F, Harbourside HQ
No.8 Lam Chak Street
Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

NAEHR

BT
R (L)

RS (S [ 5 2 AT A )
T AT A2

Wb

B

e 4t

FHITHEFHE
Hamed Hassan El-Abd

Wk I AT EHF
ALY
28 55
T A
it B4
NG

2wl
LUES

23 4]

H T Rl K 78 g w I  Bs P

S ES T
L3R ait BT

HE
S S 7 il =5
#0285 P

o A SRAT

U 9 AR AT A R A
EITHRAT (i) AR w
RERLT

B SRAT (i) AR W
B JRBRAT (F ) ARAA
8 A SRAT A R

J 2% Gl g

FHEBE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
7B Al e

FAERREER R A

GRLE &
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11
Bermuda

EERFIE
i

[ifh 5 T 8 5%
FICRE 178



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s turnover for the year 2021 was HKS$5.4 billion,
reflecting an increase of approximately 15% compared to last
year. However, the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders
was HK$72 million, representing a decrease of 28.8% compared
to last year. This was mainly due to an increased operating loss
for the Group’s OEM Manufacturing Division resulting from an
extremely challenging operating environment in the second half of
2021.

Trading and Distribution Division (WKK Distribution)

The Group’s Industrial Products Trading and Distribution
Division achieved record sales of HK$3.1 billion for the year
2021, reflecting an increase of approximately 40% compared to
last year. This was mainly due to the increased demand for the
industrial products distributed by the Group as the Division’s
customers increased their capacity and orders following the easing
of the pandemic in China and Taiwan. The Division’s operating
profit for 2021 was HK$191.1 million compared to HK$127.7
million last year, representing an increase of 50%. The operations
in the PRC and a subsidiary in Taiwan contributed the majority
of the Division’s operating profit. The Singapore operations also

recorded an increase in operating profit compared to last year.

OEM Manufacturing Division (WKK Technology)

The turnover of the Group’s OEM Manufacturing Division
decreased by approximately 8% compared to last year, to HK$2.3
billion for 2021. This was mainly attributable to the shortage
of components and logistical bottlenecks on top of widespread
closure of boarders resulting in all of the Division’s customers
outside the PRC being unable to visit the Group’s facilities to
develop orders for new projects. The Division’s operating loss
was HK$54.3 million for 2021 as compared to an operating profit
of HK$20.2 million last year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

FINANCE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had committed bank and
other financing facilities totaling HK$2,653 million, of which
HK$705 million was drawn down. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group’s consolidated net cash amounted to HK$100 million and
total equity amounted to HK$1,856 million, resulting in a nil

gearing ratio.

Most of the Group’s sales were conducted in the same currencies
as the corresponding purchase transactions. Foreign exchange

contracts were used to hedge exposures where necessary.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 4,513
employees, of whom 224 were based in Hong Kong, 3,873 in
the PRC and 416 overseas. The remuneration packages of the
Group’s employees are mainly based on their performance and
experience, taking into accounts current industry practices.
Provident fund scheme, medical allowance and in-house and
external training programs are available to employees. Share
options and discretionary bonus may be provided to employees
according to the performance of the individual and the Group. The
remuneration policy and packages of the Group’s employees are

regularly reviewed.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Group is committed to making contributions in various areas
of sustainable development, including environment protection.
The Group has established a green council to lead and organize

various environmental protection activities and programs.

The Group has set up various systems, including a sewage
treatment plant, solar panels for warming water supplies for
workers, LED and solar energy lighting systems, computerized
filing systems to limit paper usage, selective flux and soldering
systems, an ISO14001 certified environmental management
system since 2002, an IECQ QCO080000 hazardous substance
process management system, as well as an ISO50001 energy
management system for the monitoring and improvement of

greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The Group applies environmentally friendly designs and
packaging and complies with green procurement policies.
Moreover, the supply chain and the entire product life-cycle
are in keeping with a clean and green manufacturing policy,
thus producing consistently high-quality green products from
start to finish. The Group constantly instils an awareness of
environmental protection in its employees, the main internal
stakeholders, thereby setting a good example to external

stakeholders.

The Group’s success in the field of environmental protection has
earned recognition from the Government, industry, customers and

suppliers.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate social responsibility is one of the core management
philosophies in the Group. The Group has made donations to
various charities, and also provided scholarships to eligible
students who otherwise cannot afford to further their studies at

university.

The Group has been awarded the “15 Years Plus Caring
Company” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

The Group used to engage actively in social activities, helping
and nurturing those in need. The Group’s staff have formed a
volunteer team who contributed their free time in the service of
society by visiting and organizing activities at centers for elderly
people. However, due to the Covid-19 pandemic along with
social distancing requirements, it was not possible for students
of secondary schools and universities to tour our PRC factory for
the purpose of enhancing their knowledge of green production

facilities.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

LEGAL AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE
The Group complies with all relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the operations of the Groups.

PROSPECTS

The shortage of components and logistical bottlenecks
significantly affected the ability of the Group and its customers to
manufacture their products towards the end of 2021. The Group
also experienced delays in deliveries from it’s suppliers in the
latter part of 2021. These factors are expected to continue into
2022 and the Group is also now seeing a reduction in demand for
the industrial products distributed by its Trading and Distribution

Division.

In view of the difficulties caused by the resurgence of Covid-19
and its related consequences such as global supply chain
disruptions, logistical bottlenecks, and extended border closures,
now compounded by heightened geopolitical tensions, the
Group expects the operating environment to remain extremely
challenging. The Group therefore anticipates that its overall
financial performance will worsen in the current year despite the

Group’s best efforts to control its costs.
On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank all employees for their

loyalty, support and hard work throughout this difficult pandemic

period.

By Order of the Board

Senta Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2021 2020 Changes
SEC . SR OEE 1)
Notes %0 % % point
o [EpiE [ERES [ERE
Operating results 5 ¥ 3 %
Employee benefit expenses to revenue (%)
8 5L 8 M B S Wi 77 40 L 12.9 133 0.4
Other operating expenses to revenue (%)
LAt 7 95 B SR 7T 40 LG 4.1 4.0 +0.1
Operating profit (%) 2 % 1| # R 2.4 3.0 -0.6
Net profit (%) {3 ] {# % 1.8 2.5 -0.7
Return on equity (%) HE 25 [ ¥t R 1 5.2 6.5 -1.3
Financial health F4 % fg IR 3t
Net debts to total equity (%) 15 £ % #HE 25 7 /7 H 2 Nil Nil Not applicable
Jie fhg T
Borrowings to total equity (%) £ 3k 5 44 4% F 4> b 3 33.1 22.6 +10.5
2021 2020 Changes
e = 1)
Financial ratio Jf % Lk %
Current ratio (Times) i #) L% (£%) 4 1.7 1.9 -0.2
Per share data 5 JIit 8%
Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents per share)
o FBC A (s BB A1) 9.87 13.87 -28.8%
Notes: i &1
1. Return on equity (%) = net profit/total equity 1. HHE 2 19 =1 1P 4 i

2. Net debts to total equity (%) = (total borrowings — total cash and 2. TR RS AR 45 0 = (RRAE K — B4 Bl
cash equivalent — short-term bank deposits)/total equity G HIE B A — I SRATAE ) R A
3. Borrowings to total equity (%) = total borrowings/total equity 3. B HARE 45 T o =R K A RE AR

4. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities 4. W R B E E R &



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY EFEMBEHE
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For the year ended 31 December
BET A=+ —HIL4EE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
BT W TOT W ToL W TT W T

RESULTS 2 #%

Turnover & £ %8

4,928,306 5,296,411 5,258,296 4,716,172 5,411,914

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

A B HE i 1A A i A

111,471 82,106 64,383 101,185 72,013

At 31 December
B+=H=+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000

ERTOL W T W ToT W T W T

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % & & f &%
Total assets & & 52 %8
Total liabilities £ i 44 %8

N2

Non-controlling interest Ff # il 14 # £5

3,510,472 3,535,908 3,374,282 3,285,131 3,745,760

(1,831,078) (1,863,743) (1,709,645) (1,488,813) (1,889,900)

(92,270)  (69,888)  (70,426)  (84,820)  (95,990)

Equity attributable to

owners of the Company

A )M 36 A W

1,587,124 1,602,277 1,594,211 1,711,498 1,759,870




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong, Senta, aged 79, began his career in the electronics industry
in 1964. Mr. Wong is a founder of the Group in 1975 and it has
been de-merged from Wong’s International Holdings Limited (the
“WIH Group”) in 1989. He has been a director and Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 1990
and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Wong has stepped down from his position as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company with effect from 1 March 2015. He was
an independent non-executive Director, Chairman of each of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, and a
member of the Audit Committee of Hang Fat Ginseng Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 911), a company whose issued
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (resigned on 17 May
2016). Mr. Wong is the father of Mr. Wong, Vinci, an Executive
Director of the Company and the father-in-law of Mr. Chang Jui

Shum, Victor, an Executive Director of the Company.

Tsui Ying-Chun, Edward, aged 75, obtained a Bachelor of
Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong and joined the
WIH Group in 1982 as general manager in charge of corporate
administration. In 1985, Mr. Tsui became the general manager
and, in 1987, a director of Wong’s Kong King Holdings Limited.
Mr. Tsui had extensive experience in broadcasting, trading and
manufacturing before joining the WIH Group. He has been a
director of the Company since March 1990 and a director in a
number of subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tsui has been appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1
March 2015.

Ho Shu-Chan, Byron, aged 77, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Commerce degree.
Mr. Ho had more than 18 years of extensive working experience
with the Inchcape group of companies as financial controller and
general manager prior to joining the WIH Group in January 1989.
He is the Chairman of Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited (“TKK”),
a subsidiary of the Company listed in Taiwan. He has been a
director of the Company since March 1990 and a director in a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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Kwong Man-Hang, Bengie, J.P. (Aust.), aged 74, is an
Executive Program Graduate of the Graduate School of Business,
Stanford University, also a graduate of the Senior Executive
Program on Negotiation (PON) at Harvard Law School, Harvard
University. He earned his Doctorate in Business Administration
at the University of Liverpool Management School UK. He was
formerly the chief executive of Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency (Hong Kong Government subvented organization)
— an independent third party ISO 9000/14000 Quality and
Environmental Management System Certification Body. He has
many years senior management experience and has an impressive
track record in the field of computer and electronics industry
with multi-national organizations. Mr. Kwong has fellowships in
various professional institutions, and has been appointed as vice
president of the Institution of British Engineers — England, and
fellow of the Institute of Directors (Royal Charter) U.K. He has
been a director of the Company since February 1996, a director
of WKK Japan Limited since February 1997, a chief executive
officer of WKK America (Holdings) Inc. since June 2001 and a

director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Wong, Vinci, aged 51, is the director and general manager of 3
Kings Medical Limited (“3 Kings Medical”), a subsidiary of the
Company formed to conduct business in health care and Chinese
medicine. He has been appointed as a director of 3 Kings Medical
on 1 December 2010. Mr. Wong graduated from the University
of British Columbia with a Bachelor of Commerce (marketing
major) degree. He is a media personality well-known to Hong
Kong and mainland China TV viewers as a quality presenter
with accuracy. He has extensive net-working experience with
the local media and therefore enhances the advertising and sales
promotion of company’s product. Mr. Wong has been appointed
as the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals with effect from
1 April 2018. The term of office of the Chairman shall be one
year from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. On 20 May 2019, Mr.
Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of each of
the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of Kato (Hong
Kong) Holdings Limited (stock code: 2189) whose shares have
been listed on the Stock Exchange since 13 June 2019. He has
been an executive director of the Company since September 2017.
Mr. Wong is the son of Mr. Wong, Senta, the Executive Director
and Chairman of the Company, and the brother-in-law of Mr.

Chang Jui Shum, Victor, an Executive Director of the Company.
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Chang Jui Shum, Victor, aged 47, joined the Group in 2004. He
is now the Director and President of WKK Distribution Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. He is responsible for formulating the
sales and marketing strategy, and overseeing the development of
new business. Mr. Chang is a director of TKK, a subsidiary of the
Company listed in Taiwan. Mr. Chang holds a Bachelor degree in
Commerce (Accounting & Finance) from the Monash University
of Melbourne, and MBA from City University of Hong Kong.
He has been appointed as an executive director of the Company
since September 2017 and a director in a number of subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Chang is the son-in-law of Mr. Wong, Senta,
the Executive Director and Chairman of the Company, and the
brother-in-law of Mr. Wong, Vinci, an Executive Director of the

Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Hamed Hassan El-Abd, aged 74, joined the Group in 1992. He
was a director and the president of WKK Distribution Limited.
He is now the Chairman of Product Development Committee of
WKK Distribution Limited. Prior to joining the Group, he was the
president of Amistar AG, a manufacturer of automated robotics
used in electronics assembly in particular the area of Surface
Mount Technology. In 1988, he founded his own consulting
company and worked with Japanese, U.S. and European
companies in the electronics area. Mr. El-Abd holds a BA degree
in Journalism and an MA in International Affairs. He has been
a director of the Company since May 2001 and was a director
in a number of subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. EI-Abd has been
re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-executive

Director of the Company with effect from 1 September 2017.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tse Wan-Chung, Philip, aged 77, retired from DDB Advertising
Agency Operations in 1997 and remained a member of the
Company’s Worldwide Board until 2000. Mr. Tse had spent over
34 years in the advertising industry. Besides his involvement in
advertising, Mr. Tse is one of the founders of the Hong Kong
Artists” Guild (“Guild”) in which he has been serving as the
Chairman of the Executive Committee since 1986. Mr. Tse was
appointed as the Chairman of Guild since 1996. He was also
appointed by the Hong Kong Government as a council member
of the Hong Kong Academy of Performing Arts in 1991. Mr. Tse
has served as a member of the Young Presidents’ Organization
since 1976 and is currently a member of the World Presidents’
Organization. In recent years, Mr. Tse focuses on marketing
management and art and culture related business. He founded
BaoQu Tang Gallery of Art (“BQT”) in 2004. BQT has become
a well known brand in the art scene in Hong Kong and China.
He has been a Director of the Company since March 1990. Mr.
Tse is now the Chairman of each of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination
Committee.

Leung Kam Fong, aged 80, obtained a Bachelor of Science
degree and a post-graduate Certificate in Education from
the University of Hong Kong. Dr. Leung began his career in
technical education and training in 1965 at the Hong Kong
Technical College and Hong Kong Polytechnic. He joined the
Vocational Training Council in 1982, founded the Chai Wan
Technical Institute in 1985, upgraded it to Hong Kong Technical
College (Chai Wan) in 1992 and subsequently became Deputy
Executive Director in 1993. In 1995, he was appointed as the
Chief Executive of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals until 2006. In
these 11 years, Tung Wah experienced tremendous expansion
and development, and he pioneered the development of a series
of modern Chinese Medicine Specialist Clinics. He was awarded
honorary doctorate degrees from Middlesex University, U. K.
and Hunan University of Traditional Chinese Medicine, PRC and
holds visiting professorship at Hunan and Chengdu University of
Traditional Chinese Medicine, PRC. He had been appointed Vice-
Secretary General of the World Federation of Chinese Medicine
Societies, PRC from 2006 to 2010. He had been elected President
of the International Hua-Xia Medicine Society from 2006 to 2015.
Dr. Leung joined the Group in 2007 as the executive director and
the chief executive of 3 Kings Medical (formerly known as 3
Kings Holding Limited), a subsidiary of the Company formed to

conduct business in health care and Chinese medicine. Dr. Leung
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resigned from all his positions in 3 Kings Medical in January
2013. Dr. Leung had been elected as a director of the Modernized
Chinese Medicine International Association from 2007 to 2015.
He has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since
January 2013. Dr. Leung has been re-designated from a Non-
Executive Director to an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 1 July 2017. He is now a member
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the

Nomination Committee of the Company.

Yip Wai Chun, aged 64, obtained the degrees of Bachelor of
Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from the University of Hong
Kong in 1981. Dr. Yip began his career as a surgeon in Queen
Mary Hospital. He was awarded the fellowships of the Royal
Colleges of Surgeons of Edinburgh and Glasgow in 1986 and that
of Australia in 1988. He took up the surgeon’s appointment in
Kwong Wah Hospital in 1986 and was promoted to the post of
consultant surgeon in 1991. Dr. Yip was made Chief of Service of
Department of Surgery of Kwong Wah Hospital with the Hospital
Authority in 1992. Dr. Yip is a specialist in Urology and has been

in private practice since 2012.

Dr. Yip was awardee of Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young
Persons in 1996. In 2006, he received the Outstanding Staff
Award of Hospital Authority. Dr. Yip was Vice-President of the
College of Surgeons of Hong Kong from 2004 till 2010. Presently,
he is honorary associate professor, Surgery, of University of Hong
Kong and Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Yip is also
honorary consultant and executive director of medical service of
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.

Over the years, Dr Yip has had substantial contributions to
the development of medical services in Hong Kong. Dr. Yip
coordinated the provision of liver transplant service in Hong Kong
in 2001. He is a renowned leader in the field of Men Health and
is also a pioneer for delivery of integrated Western and Chinese

medicine service in Hong Kong.

Dr. Yip was the member of the Election Committee of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong SAR, China in 2002, 2007 and
2012. He was also the member of the Election Committee for the
10th, 11th, 12th National Peoples’ Representative Committee,
Hong Kong SAR, China.

He has been an Independent Non-Executive Director, member of
the Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee

of the Company since January 2014.
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Tse Hin Lin, Arnold, aged 68, holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Social Science (Statistics and Geography) and also a Law Degree.
Mr. Tse had practiced as a barrister in Hong Kong between
1987 and 1988. He was admitted as a solicitor in 1990 and
founded ATL Law Offices on 1 July 2008. Upon his retirement
from partnership in April 2013, Mr. Tse has been acting as the
consultant solicitor of ATL Law Offices until his retirement in
October 2014. Mr. Tse has practiced commercial and corporate
law, including advising on cross-border acquisitions and
commercial transactions. He has acted as an Independent Non-
executive Director of each of Evergrande Health Industry Group
Limited (Stock Code: 708) and Emperor Capital Group Limited
(Stock Code: 717) between January 2008 to November 2013
and March 2014 to July 2015 respectively. Both of the aforesaid
companies whose issued shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. During the aforesaid periods, Mr. Tse also
served several Committees of the aforesaid companies. He has
been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since July 2017.

Lam Yiu Wing, Andrew, aged 60, is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Social Science from University of Hong
Kong and a Master Degree in Finance from City University of
Hong Kong. He was the Principal Auditor of Tung Wah Group of
Hospitals from 2003 to 2010 and has over 30 years’ experience
in auditing, corporate governance, internal controls and risk
management. Mr. Lam has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director, member of the Audit Committee and member of the

Remuneration Committee of the Company since October 2018.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG’S KONG KING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Lau Mei Yi, Mandy, aged 58, joined the Group in 1995. Miss Lau
is the General Manager of Human Resources & Administration
Department of the Group. She has 30 years extensive experience in
human resources and administration. She holds a Higher Diploma in
Business Studies from the City University of Hong Kong (formerly
named as City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) and a Graduate Certificate
in Administration from the Australian Catholic University.

Cheng Ying, aged 50, joined the Group in 2010. She is now the
company secretary of the Group. She graduated from the Lingnan
University with a Honours Diploma in Company Secretaryship and
Administration. She is an associate member of both of the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Prior to joining the Group, she has
about 15 years of experience in company secretarial field.

WKK TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Wong Kwok-Wai, Jacky, aged 64, joined the Group in 1980. He is
the executive director of WKK Technology Limited. Mr. Wong had
been responsible for the Group’s OEM production operation and
the marketing of the Group’s semiconductors products in the early
years and is currently in charge of marketing the Group’s OEM
services. He holds a Higher Diploma in Industrial Engineering. He
has been a director of WKK America (Holdings) Inc. since June
2001.

Tang Kang, aged 65, joined the Group in April 1990. He is the
General Manager of Manufacturing Operations in PRC Plant
of WKK Technology Limited. Mr. Tang has over 20 years’
manufacturing experience in both computer and consumer
electronics industries. He holds a Bachelor degree in Radio
and Telecom Technology from the South China University of
Technology.

Wong Kong-Ting, David, aged 62, joined the Group in 1997.
Mr. Wong is the General Manager of Material Management
Department of WKK Technology Limited. He has over 30 years’
manufacturing experience in scheduling and movement information
from operation’s Planning and Material Control (PMC) system,
Procurement Management, etc. Mr. Wong holds Bachelor of
Science in Computer Information System and EMBA (Executive
Master in Business Administration) from the University of Hull
U.K.

Chui Chak Ming, aged 64, joined the Group in 1984. He is
now the Deputy General Manager of Manufacturing, WKK
Technology Limited. Mr. Chui has 39 years experience in electronic
industry. He holds a Higher Diploma of Production and Industrial
Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and a Graduate
diploma of management from the University of Macau.
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DONGGUAN NISSIN PLASTIC PRODUCTS CO.,
LTD.

Hung Tacho, aged 51, joined the Group in 1996. He is now the
General Manager of Dongguan Nissin Plastic Products Co. Ltd.
He has over 30 years’ experiences in a variety of professions,
such as Plastic Product Business Develop, Engineering, R&D,
Manufacturing, and Program Management, etc. He obtained
a High Certificate in Manufacturing Engineering from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1993, and a MBA Degree from
University of Wales, UK in 2016.

WKK ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT LIMITED

Lee Wai-Kong, Johnson, aged 63, joined the Group in 1989. He
is the director and general manager of WKK Electronic Equipment
Limited and is responsible for marketing the Group’s electronic
products in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor
degree in Science (Electronics Engineering) from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

WKK PCB TRADING LIMITED

Lui Kwok-Chak, Randy, aged 61, joined the Group in 1985.
He is a director and the general manager of WKK PCB Trading
Limited and is responsible for marketing the Group’s PCB
products in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lui holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Chemical Engineering from National Taiwan
University. He worked in the field of PCB manufacturing before
he joined the Group.

CHINA BUSINESS

Yeung Chuen-Hau, aged 74, joined the Group in 1984. He is
the director and general manager of WKK China Limited and is
responsible for marketing the Group’s products and services in the
PRC.

Ng Ka Kui, Jimmy, aged 59, joined the Group in 1983. He is
the General Manager of WKK EMS Equipment (Beijing) Ltd.,
WKK EMS Equipment (Chengdu) Ltd. and WKK EMS Equipment
(Chongqging) Ltd.. Mr. Ng had been responsible for the Group’s
electronics assembly, printed circuit board and semiconductors
business for Beijing and South China market. He holds a
Certificate in Electrical Engineering.

Yu Chun Yip, Tony, aged 54, joined the Group in 1994. He is
the General Manager of WKK Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and
Suzhou Branch. Mr. Yu is responsible for the marketing, sales and
service of the SMT and Semiconductor product in East China . He
holds a Diploma in Marketing.
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Lee Wai-Man, Raymond, aged 59, join the Group in 1982. He
is the General Manager of WKK EMS Equipment (Shenzhen)
Limited. Mr. Lee previously worked in the engineering
department, sales & marketing for electronic assembly field, and
is currently in charge of Group’s distribution business in South
China.

Lin Fu Chan, Frank, aged 67, Mr. Lin graduated from the
Jiangxi University of Science and Technology in 1975. Before
joining the Group in 1991, he had been a civil servant of the
Government of the PRC for 8 years with over 10 years mechanical
product design and management experience. He was granted a
National Technology Improvement Award by the Government
of the PRC in 1983. He was the General Manager of WKK
EMS Equipment (Chengdu) Ltd and WKK EMS Equipment
(Chongqing) Ltd. Effective from November 2014, Mr. Lin is the
General Manager of WKK Electronic Equipment (Jiangxi) Ltd.
Mr. Lin is the Special Assistant to the Group Chairman. He is
also a Director and Chairman of Hong Kong Jiangxi Clansmen

Association Ltd.

WKK DISTRIBUTION (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD.

Leung Man Hoy, aged 72, joined the Group in 1981. He is the
Director and General Manager of WKK Distribution (Singapore)
Pte Ltd. He is taking care of the operation management of South
East Asia business. He holds electronic certificate and has over
30 years experience in electronics field. Prior to he transferred
to Singapore, he was the regional manager of WKK Engineering
Service Limited and Director and General Manager for WKK
Thailand Limited.

TAIWAN WKK DISTRIBUTION CO. LIMITED

Liu Chien Wei, alias, Martin Leou, aged 58, joined Taiwan
Kong King Co., Limited in 1987. He is now the general manager
and Director of Taiwan WKK Distribution Co, Limited and is
responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations of Taiwan
WKK Distribution business. He has over 27 years experience
in service and customer management. Mr. Liu has also been
appointed as the General Manager of PCB division of WKK
Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. in October 2001 and is responsible
for PCB, Optoelectronics and Semiconductor business in east
China area. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree in Electrical
Engineering from the Chien Xin Technology College (Formerly
known as Qing Yun University).

DONGGUAN WKK MACHINERY CO. LTD

Fok Kam Chung, Johnson, aged 59, joined the Group in 1987.
Mr. Fok is the Director and General Manager of Dongguan WKK
Machinery Company Limited. He had been the Assistant General
Manager of WKK Engineering Service Limited and the General
Manager of WKK (Shanghai) Engineering Service Co., Ltd.. Mr.
Fok Holds MEM (Master degree in Engineering Management)
from University of Technology, Sydney.
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TAIWAN KONG KING CO., LIMITED

Liao Hung-Ying, Smale, aged 58, joined the Group in 1990.
He is the Director and President of TKK. Mr. Liao holds a
Bachelor of Electronic degree in Electronic Engineering of St.
John’s & St. Mary’s Institute of Technology. He also obtained
a Certificate in Executives Program in Graduated School of
Business Administration of National Chengchi University. Mr.
Liao has been a Supervisor for Taiwan Printed Circuit Association
(“TPCA”) since 2002 and was elected the Executive Supervisor
from 2010 to 2019. He has also become the Executive Supervisor/

Executive Director of TPCA Environment Foundation since 2015.

WKK AMERICA (HOLDINGS) INC.

Bacon Bruce, aged 63, joined the WIH Group in 1986 and
transferred to the WKK Group in 1989. He is the President of
WKK America (Holdings) Inc. Mr. Bacon is responsible for the
Sales and Marketing activities of WKK Technology Limited in
North America. He has over 30 years experience in the electronics
and computer industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1986, Mr.
Bacon managed several Customer Service and Quality Assurance
operations for U.S. based companies involved in the computer

industry.

WKK JAPAN LIMITED

Masato Watanabe, age 75, joined the Group in 1994. He is
appointed as Representative Director and the President of WKK
Japan Limited on 1 April 2009. Prior to taking this position, he
was a Director/Vice President of Kysho America Corporation
in charge of trading, sales and corporate administration. He is a
Bachelor of Arts degree holder from Waseda University, Tokyo,

Japan.

WKK TECHNOLOGY QUERETARO, SA DE CV

Katsuhiko Hirabayashi, aged 69, joined the Group in 2012.
He is the Managing Director and Senior Operations Manager of
WKK Technology Queretaro, SA de CV. Mr. Hirabayashi has
total over 35 years electronics industrial experience in working
different countries such as Taiwan, Hong Kong, China, Thailand,
Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia and Philippine. From 1986 to
2000, he served as the General Manager of SEGA Hong Kong and
the Quality Assurance Group Manager and Production Manager of
SEGA Enterprises Ltd. Before joining WKK Technology Limited,
Mr. Hirabayashi was working in Sammy Corporation as R&D
Specialist and Quality Assurance Deputy General Manager from
2000 to 2012.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are trading and
distribution of chemicals, materials and equipment used in the
manufacture of printed circuit boards and electronic products and
the manufacture of electrical and electronic products for OEM

customers.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 99.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year, including
analysis using financial key performance indicators are provided
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 7 and the Financial
Highlights on page 8 of this Annual Report. A description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be
found throughout the Annual Report, particularly in the Risk
Management and Internal Control Report on pages 47 to 51 of
this Annual Report and in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of financial year 2021 are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 7 in Note 39
to the consolidated financial statements. An indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business are provided in the

Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 7 of this Annual Report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s environmental
policies and performance, its compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group and
its key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers and
others that have a significant impact on the Group and on which
the Group’s success depends, are provided in this Annual Report
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 7, this Report of the
Directors on pages 21 to 35 and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 57 to 90.

DIVIDENDS
The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.02 for the six months

ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).
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The Board of Directors recommends a final dividend of HK$0.03
per share (2020: HK$0.06) be paid in respect of the year ended
31 December 2021. The proposed final dividend will be payable
on or about Wednesday, 20 July 2022, subject to approval at the
Annual General Meeting, to shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company on Monday, 4 July
2022.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set

out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreement which may result in the Company
issuing shares was entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year, save for the Share Option Scheme
of the Company as disclosed on pages 27 to 28.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders, as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company, as at the balance
sheet date, amounted to HK$77,283,000 (2020: HK$109,815,000).
In addition, the Company’s capital redemption reserve and share
premium may be distributed in the form of fully-paid bonus
shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes are set out in

Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 9 to 10.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$1,359,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

36% of turnover and 37% of purchases during the year were
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers
respectively. 13% of turnover and 12% of purchases during
the year were attributable to the Group’s largest customer and
supplier respectively. None of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Senta Wong (Chairman)

Edward Ying-Chun Tsui (Group President and Chief Executive Officer)
Byron Shu-Chan Ho (Chief Financial Officer)

Bengie Man-Hang Kwong

Vinci Wong

Victor Jui Shum Chang

Non-Executive Directors
Hamed Hassan El-Abd
Hsu Hung-Chieh (retired on 29 June 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Philip Wan-Chung Tse

Leung Kam Fong

Yip Wai Chun

Arnold Hin Lin Tse

Andrew Yiu Wing Lam

In accordance with Bye-laws 103 to 105 of the Company’s Bye-
laws and code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), Mr. Tsui Ying Chun, Edward, Mr. Ho Shu Chan,
Byron, Dr. Leung Kam Fong and Mr. Lam Yiu Wing, Andrew
shall retire at the Annual General Meeting. All of the above
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting.
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The term of office for each Independent Non-Executive Director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with

the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors to be independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements. Some of the related party
transactions as set out in Note 37(a) to the consolidated financial
statements also constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These continuing connected transactions are exempted from
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed, there is no other related party
transaction which constitutes a continuing connected transaction
and is subject to the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

The Company
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Total

Interests

(including

underlying

Total shares)
Interests as % of

as % the issued

of theissued ~ Underlying  share capital
share capital ~ Shares (share HERAH

Personal Family ~ Corporate Other Total 5 options) (454 Bt
Name Interests Interests Interests Interests Interests L8 REmG s
4 A A B 43 KRS VGl el 43 EHAm  BAEIN (WhReHE)  BAHZL
% %
Senta Wong 4,750,000 - 122,012,723 207,800,000 334,562,723 45.85 5,000,000 46.53
T A (Note 1) (Note 2)
(it (Hit2)
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 7,577,920 - - - 7,577,920 1.04 3,000,000 1.45
Byron Shu-Chan Ho 3,470,000 360,000 - - 3,830,000 0.52 3,000,000 0.94
{2
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 5,400,000 - - - 5,400,000 0.74 3,000,000 115
R
Vinci Wong - - 32,454,028 207,800,000 240,254,028 32.92 3,000,000 3333
TEHE (Note 3) (Note 4)
(ff##3) (f#4)
Victor Jui Shum Chang - 154,000 32,454,028 207,800,000 240,408,028 32.94 3,000,000 33.36
i £ (Note 5) (Note 6)
(Hits) (Hiite)
Hamed Hassan El-Abd 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 0.41 3,000,000 0.82
Philip Wan-Chung Tse - - - - - - 3,000,000 0.41
Ey
Leung Kam Fong - - - 180,000 180,000 0.02 3,000,000 0.44
R (Note 7)
Yip Wai Chun - - - - - - 3,000,000 0.41
TR
Arnold Hin Lin Tse - - - - - - 3,000,000 041
Andrew Yiu Wing Lam - - - - - - 3,000,000 041




Notes:

122,012,723 shares were registered in the name of Wonder Luck
International Limited, which was wholly owned by Senta Wong
(BVI) Limited. The entire issued share capital of which was
50.25% owned by Mr. Senta Wong and 49.75% owned by his wife,
Mrs. Wong Wu Lai Ming, Lily. Mrs. Wong Wu Lai Ming, Lily
passed away on 22 January 2022. The references to 122,012,723
shares deemed to be interested by Mr. Senta Wong (as disclosed
herein) and Senta Wong (BVI) Limited (as disclosed in the section
headed “Interests of substantial shareholders”) relate to the same
block of shares.

207,800,000 shares were registered in the name of Rewarding
Limited, which was wholly owned by Greatfamily Inc. (which was
in turn wholly owned by Greatguy (PTC) Inc.) for a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Senta Wong was regarded as the founder (by
virtue of the SFO). The references to 207,800,000 shares deemed to
be interested by Mr. Senta Wong (as disclosed herein), Mr. Vinci
Wong and Mr. Victor Jui Shum Chang (as disclosed in Notes 4
and 6 below respectively), Greatfamily Inc. and Greatguy (PTC)
Inc.) (as disclosed in the section headed “Interests of substantial
shareholders”) relate to the same block of shares.

32,454,028 shares were held by Max Return Group Limited, of
which Mr. Vinci Wong owns 33.33% shares. The references to
these 32,454,028 shares deemed to be interested by Mr. Vinci Wong
(as disclosed herein) and Mr. Victor Jui Shum Chang (as disclosed
in Note 5 below) relate to the same block of shares.

Mr. Vinci Wong was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested
in 207,800,000 shares in the Company by virtue of him being a
beneficiary of a discretionary trust.

Mr. Victor Jui Shum Chang was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to
be interested in 32,454,028 shares in the Company, which were held
by Max Return Group Limited, of which his spouse owns 33.33%
shares.

Mr. Victor Jui Shum Chang was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to
be interested in 207,800,000 shares in the Company by virtue of his
spouse being a beneficiary of a discretionary trust.

These 180,000 shares were jointly held by Dr. Leung Kam Fong and
his spouse.
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Certain Directors held qualifying shares in certain subsidiaries of
the Group on trust for the Company or other subsidiaries of the
Group.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors of the Company or his associates had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s Share Option Scheme came into effect on 30 May
2005 was expired at the close of business on 29 May 2015. A new
Share Option Scheme (“the New Scheme”) has been adopted by
the Shareholders of the Company on 22 June 2016.

A summary of the New Scheme disclosed in accordance with the

Listing Rules is as follows:

(1) Purpose of the New Scheme

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company with a view to motivating the Eligible
Participants to utilize their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group; and attracting and retaining or
otherwise maintaining an ongoing relationship with the
Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long term growth and development of the
Group.

(2) Participants of the New Scheme
The Board may at its discretion grant options to any
director (whether executive, non-executive, independent
non-executive or alternate) or employee (whether full-time,
part time, seconded or otherwise) of the Company or any
Affiliate.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue under the
New Scheme and % of the issued share capital as at 31
December 2021
The number of shares issuable under the share options
granted under the New Scheme was 75,223,596 shares (being
not more than 10% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of adoption of the New Scheme), representing
approximately 10.31% of the issued share capital as at 31
December 2021.
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(6)
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Maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options
to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless
it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
the Company. Any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An Option may be exercised as specified by the Board in
relation to such option in its terms of grant which shall not
be earlier than 1 year after its date of grant, nor be more
than 10 years from its date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

According to the New Scheme of the Company, no option
can be exercised within 1 year after its date of grant unless
otherwise determined by the board of directors of the
Company. In addition, options will vest as to 25% on the
first anniversary of its date of grant and as to the remainder
on the second anniversary of its date of grant.

The amount payable upon acceptance of option
HK$10.00 is payable by each Eligible Participant to the
Company on acceptance of options within 21 days from the
Offer Date.

The Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price must be at least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Date of
Grant, which must be a business day; and

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme will expire at the close of business on 21
June 2026.
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SHARE OPTIONS Ji i HE it
Particulars of the Company’s New Scheme are set out in note  AS/\ FlE st #] 2 5518 O R 455 W5 2 Bt ik
30 to the consolidated financial statements. Movements in the 30 o AR R » AN 7] BEACHE 2 81T -

Company’s share options during the year are as follows:

Outstanding

Outstanding Transfer Transfer at31

atl to other from other December

January category category Cancelled/ 2021

2021 during during Granted Exercised lapsed during -4

Date of Exercise  Exercisable f_-%F_—4 the year the year during during the year +ZA

Grant Price Period “A-H  REREE RERER the year the year RER =t-H
BAM T i WA A7 FeEm LEEN  REREN RMEREE O RE/RR A A7

Category 1:
Bl
() Directors # %

Senta Wong 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000
AN 13.06.2029

Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
hEH 13.06.2029

Byron Shu-Chan Ho 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
fgE 13.06.2029

Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
Wi 13.06.2029

Vinci Wong 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
T 13.06.2029

Victor Jui Shum Chang 14.06.2019 0906 14.06.2020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
g 13.06.2029

Hamed Hassan El-Abd 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000

13.06.209

Hsu Hung Chich 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3000000 (3,000,000) - - - - -
(retired on 29 June 2021) 13.06.2029

AEE R -F

AAZTLHERD

Philip Wan-Chung Tse 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
Az 13.06.2029

Leung Kam Fong 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
A 13.06.2029

Yip Wai Chun 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
EE 13.06.2029

Amold Hin Lin Tse 14.06.2019 0906 14062020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
A 13.06.2029

Andrew Yiu Wing Lam 14.06.2019 0906 14.06.2020 - 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000
iYL 13.06.2029
Total for directors 41000000 (3,000,000 - - - - 38,000,000

Rt




Outstanding

Outstanding Transfer Transfer at31
at 1 to other from other December
January category category Cancelled/ 2021
2021 during during Granted Exercised lapsed during  R_Z_—4
Date of Exercise  Exercisable H-%_—4 the year the year during during the year +ZA
Grant Price Period “A-H  RERNEE RERER the year the year AR =S |
i Ttk THEH WAL B SRR RN RERRE O RERTE  EE/N WAL B
Category 2:
W
(IT)  Associates of Directors
BHZHBA
Ava Wong 14.06.2019 0906 14.06.2020 - 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
RS 13.06.2029
Orangeo Wendy Wong 14.06.2019 0906 14.06.2020 - 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
IEE 13.06.2029
(IT) ~ Other employees 14.06.2019 0906 14.06.2020 - 27,400,000 - 3,000,000 - (300,000) (2,300,000) 27,800,000
SRR 13.06.2029
Total 68,700,000 (3,000,000) 3,000,000 - (300,000) (2,300,000) 66,100,000
A
Notes: V=3
1. The share options can be exercised up to a maximum of 25% of the [, W FE EFEFENHAHTUHEE —F - —FNH

grant during the period from 14 June 2020 to 13 June 2021 and the
balance of the grant during the period from 14 June 2021 to 13 June
2029.

2. The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before
the date on which the share options were granted was HK$0.93.

3. 71,650,000 share options were granted on 14 June 2019 and
subsequently, 70,450,000 share options were accepted by the
Grantees.

Save as disclosed above, there were no outstanding share options

under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2021.

= I AT AT 2 N RE S e
AR 2 25% 5 i —F T —4ERAH I HE R
ZERZINENA T ZH M AT T
AT 2 i A o

2. MBBBBEHERE AT K> AAFERGZ
Wi T A 2 7 10,93 ©

3. AT E—JUEAN A U H 2 171,650,000 1
JREHE - F2 Hi4%70,450,000 153 i R AR A R 352 A 4%
4 o

Br L prif g ot > MEE_F ——F+2H
= B RS S 0 ORAT i A



The fair value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model was approximately
HK$7,379,000, of which approximately HK$1,125,000 was
charged to the consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of

the share options granted:

Grant date fair value per share

57 B R 2 A TE

Expected life

T AF

Expected volatility
T

Dividend yield

i S %

Risk-free interest rate

3 g A1) 5

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account historical
average share price volatility. The Black-Scholes option-pricing
model has been used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the Directors’ best estimate. Changes
in variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair

value of the options.

A% T BB AT D) S — 7 AT AT A R A
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has been notified that, as at 31 December 2021,
the following persons (other than Directors of the Company) had

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

F B R Z B 4R
ARFEEEA > R F A=A
H oo MRS R B B R 012553361 T LL B A7 2
Bz alek - FoIAL (BRA L A #H 4 50)

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under i A< 2\ 7] By 5 AH B B 04y A A RE 25 B8R A

Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company A2 ) By 2 AF
Percentage of
Name of substantial Number of total issued shares
shareholders Capacity shares held A & B AT I
By i g Jit 5 st B MEE
%
Greatfamily Inc. Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 207,800,000 28.48%
Z VIR 2 AR (M AED)
Greatguy (PTC) Inc. Trustee (Note 1) 207,800,000 28.48%
ZREN (M #ET)
Senta Wong (BVI) Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 122,012,723 16.72%
ZHE IR 2 AR (M FE2)
Wong Chung Yin Beneficial owner, interest of child or 42,715,701 5.85%

T AR

spouse and interest of controlled

corporations (Note 3)
HadA N T s me e g &

ZYEHNEE AR (I 7E3)




Notes:
1. Please see Note 2 under the section headed “Interests of Directors”.
2. Please see Note 1 under the section headed “Interests of Directors”.

3. Mr. Wong Chung Yin was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 42,715,701 shares in the Company. These shares were
held in the following capacity:

(a) 25,613,332 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin
personally.

(b) 450 shares were held under the name of Ms. Woo Sin Ming,
the wife of Mr. Wong Chung Yin.

(c) 17,101,919 shares were jointly held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin
and his wife, Ms. Woo Sin Ming.

Save as disclosed, the Directors are not aware of any other persons
who, as at 31 December 2021, had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate

Governance Report” on pages 36 to 56.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, when
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company had

been entered into or existed during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme, no time during the year was
the Company, its subsidiaries or its associated corporations a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their respective associates to acquire benefits by
acquisition of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or its associated corporations.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and subject to the applicable
laws, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses,
losses and liabilities, which he may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation

thereto.

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance which
has been in force throughout the financial year and up to the
date of this report to provide appropriate insurance cover for the

Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

On the basis of information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date
of this Annual Report, the Company has complied with the public
float requirements of the Listing Rules for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021.
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AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers will hold office until the conclusion of

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Senta Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and sustains development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate,
all code provisions (“Code Provisions™”) of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the Code Provisions as set out in the CG Code of
the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout the year ended
31 December 2021 complied with most of the Code Provisions
and certain deviations from the Code Provisions in respect of code
provisions A.4.1, A.4.2 and A.6.7, details of which are explained
below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on no less exacting than the terms and
required standard contained in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company had obtained
confirmation from all the Directors that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of
conduct for securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises six Executive Directors, one Non-Executive
Director and five Independent Non-Executive Directors. One of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors possess the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. The
Directors, as at the date of this report, are Mr. Senta Wong, Mr.
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui, Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho, Mr. Bengie
Man-Hang Kwong, Mr. Vinci Wong, Mr. Victor Jui Shum Chang,
Mr. Hamed Hassan El-Abd, Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse, Dr. Leung
Kam Fong, Dr. Yip Wai Chun, Mr. Arnold Hin Lin Tse and Mr.
Andrew Yiu Wing Lam.

The biographical details of the Directors (including relationship
among the members of the Board) are set out on pages 11 to 16 of
this Annual Report.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Board met four times in 2021 to review the financial and AR AEEANERGILBHEE IR DA

operating performance of the Group and to consider and approve & 7R 4E [ 2 BAHs K 45 R BT - T % g BLAIL o
the annual budget for the Group. Individual attendance of each AEEHZ 24EMHE - HHERK W E N LS T

Board member at these meetings is as follows: w2 RN
Attendance Tl

Executive Directors HIrEH
Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman) 3/4 F BN e () 3/4
Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui IR e

(Group President and Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 (S [ # 2 S e 77 A #) 4/4
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho (Chief Financial Officer) 4/4 o] At 8 e A= (BT B A ) 4/4
Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 4/4 Ji i 1 S A 4/4
Mr. Vinci Wong 4/4 T B L 4/4
Mr. Victor Jui Shum Chang 4/4 iR I 58 Se A 4/4
Non-Executive Directors HHITEF
Mr. Hamed Hassan El-Abd 3/4 Hamed Hassan El-Abd %t 4 3/4
Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh AFEBE A G ZF = —4F

(retired on 29 June 2021) 1/4 ANHIZTILHEME) 1/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors Wi BT HEH
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 4/4 il ok 4/4
Dr. Leung Kam Fong 4/4 3ol 4/4
Dr. Yip Wai Chun 4/4 WM E R 4/4
Mr. Arnold Hin Lin Tse 44 HHEESA 4/4
Mr. Andrew Yiu Wing Lam 4/4 S/ e 4/4

Other Board Meetings with the attendance of senior management |5 §% 45 3 @ A 4F (A 78 & 22 3 0 i Eoqth 1 28 =R
were held regularly during the year to discuss the day-to-day & €% > DAETE 8 M A0 0 4 & M - fT BB
management and administration as well as the recent business M 4E H i #T 2 ZEH R -

development of the Group.

All minutes of the Board Meetings are prepared and kept by the 4\ & B HE M S R A7 B A 35 F & & kvl % >
Company Secretary and open for inspection by Directors upon M 7E-& LMW T > A A B & ik
reasonable notice. TARfIHE AR -



BOARD DIVERSITY
In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy which

sets out the approach to achieve board diversity in the Company.

The Board Diversity Policy is summarized as follows:

- the Company ensures that its Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
that are required to support the execution of its business

strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

- selection of candidates will be based on a range of
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on meritocracy and the contribution that the

selected candidates will bring to the Board.

- the Nomination Committee will take into consideration of the
Board Diversity Policy in identifying and nominating suitably

qualified candidates to become members of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME
Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, all directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the board remains informed and relevant. The Company should
be responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing an

appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the directors.

The Company Secretary updates Directors on the latest
developments and changes to the Listing Rules and the applicable
legal and regulatory requirements necessary in discharging their
duties. The Company also arranges and provides continuous
professional development training and relevant materials to
Directors to help ensure they are apprised of the latest changes in the
commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the

roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

During the year, the Company had arranged a seminar conducted
by lawyers for the directors of the Company. The seminar covered
topics including the update on the revised Corporate Governance
Code and the Listing Rules.
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According to the records provided by the directors, a summary of
training received by the directors for the year ended 31 December
2021 is as follows:

REFRMENRE > FHRRBE _F -4
T2 A = — kAR A A2 B IR A
B

Type of
continuous
professional
development
programmes
Name of Directors R R
WA B g Gt 3 25
Executive Directors
HATHEF
Senta Wong B
F A
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui A, B
Byron Shu-Chan Ho A, B
o] At 4
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong A, B
i
Vinci Wong A, B
&5
Victor Jui Shum Chang A, B
i 5
Non-Executive Directors
T #H
Hamed Hassan El-Abd A, B
Hsu Hung-Chieh (retired on 29 June 2021) N/A
AERBE R —F Z—FH Z LB
Independent Non-Executive Directors
LT AT
Philip Wan-Chung Tse A, B
%
Leung Kam Fong A, B
LE 5 57
Yip Wai Chun A, B
HEHEE
Arnold Hin Lin Tse A, B
i A
Andrew Yiu Wing Lam A, B
LN S
Notes: Vi
A: attending briefing sessions and/or seminars A A & SR
B:  reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest B :  [8] 847 BH b T K6 H) L% JHC A 3 ) 5 45 A 78 e T

development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

B () WF F € b} SR R



NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors

should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

None of the existing Non-Executive Directors of the Company
is appointed for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation
from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. In accordance with
the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board during the year shall retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the next annual general meeting
immediately following his/her appointment. Further, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire
from office. The directors to retire by rotation shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate

governance practices are similar to those in the CG Code.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment. Every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, all Directors (except
Executive Chairman or Managing or Joint Managing Director)
of the Company are subject to retirement by rotations and re-
elections at the annual general meeting of the Company. This
constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As continuation is
a key factor to the successful implementation of any long term
business plans, the Board believes that the present arrangement is

most beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders.

Due to the travel restrictions arising from the COVID-19
pandemic, a Non-Executive Director could not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2021. However,
at the aforesaid annual general meeting, there were Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors present to
enable the Board to develop a balanced understanding of the views
of the shareholders of the Company.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
The Remuneration Committee was established in April 2005.
The Committee now comprises four Independent Non-Executive

Directors, who are:

Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Dr. Leung Kam Fong
Dr. Yip Wai Chun
Mr. Andrew Yiu Wing Lam

A written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee,
which clearly defined the role, authority and function of the
Remuneration Committee, have been adopted by the Board.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
respectively.

The Remuneration Committee is set up to assist the Board in
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy
on Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive directors and senior management of the Group,
including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and share option
scheme.

Prior to making its recommendations, the Committee consults the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer and takes
into consideration factors including the Group’s performance
and profitability, experience, duties and time commitment
of Directors, prevailing market conditions, salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. The
Committee has adopted the operation model where it performs
an advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final
authority to approve the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management. The Committee is
provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its

duties.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company. No Director was involved in

deciding his own remuneration.
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The Committee met once in 2021. Individual attendance of each

Committee member at these meetings is as follows:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Dr. Leung Kam Fong
Dr. Yip Wai Chun
Mr. Andrew Yiu Wing Lam

In Attendance:
Executive Director
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration of the

members of the senior management by band is set out below:

Remuneration band (HKS)

0 to 1,000,000

1,000,001 to 1,500,000
1,500,001 to 2,000,000
2,000,001 to 2,500,000
2,500,001 to 3,000,000
3,000,001 to 3,500,000

Further particulars regarding the Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments and the five highest paid individuals as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out

in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Attendance

1/1
1/1
171
1/1

1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
12 March 2012. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

A written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee,
which clearly defined the role, authority and function of the
Nomination Committee, have been adopted by the Board. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
respectively.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, a majority
of whom are independent non-executive directors and is chaired
by the chairman of the Board. The members are:

Executive Director
Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse
Dr. Leung Kam Fong

Before setting up of the Nomination Committee, the Board
was collectively responsible for nominating new Directors and
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board from
time to time.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board.

In March 2022, the Nomination Committee made recommendations
to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring directors for
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
It also assessed the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company.

The Committee met once in 2021. Individual attendance of each
Committee member at this meeting is as follows:

Attendance

Executive Director
Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 1/1

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 1/1
Dr. Leung Kam Fong 1/1
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a Nomination Policy which aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the Company’s

business.

The criteria listed below will be used as reference in assessing the

suitability of a proposed candidate:

. Reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications and
educational background, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate

strategy;

. Absence of conflicts of interest or other legal impediments

to serving on the Board;

. Requirement in respect of independent non-executive
directors under the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the

independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules;

. Potential time commitment for the Board/committee
responsibilities, especially when the candidate is holding

seven (or more) listed company directorships;

. Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service;

. Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board; and

. Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s

business.
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For appointment of new director, the Nomination Committee as
delegated by the Board shall identify and evaluate candidate based
on the criteria set out above to determine whether the candidate is
qualified for directorship. If the candidate is considered qualified,
the Nomination Committee shall recommend to the Board for
consideration and the Board, if considered appropriate, shall
approve the appointment of the proposed candidate as a new

Director.

For re-election of Director at general meeting, the Nomination
Committee as delegated by the Board shall review the contribution
made by the retiring Director and whether he/she can continue
to fulfill his/her role as required with reference to the criteria set
out above. The Board shall then, under advice of the Nomination
Committee, make recommendation to Shareholders for the

proposed re-election of Director(s) at the general meeting.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
HK$1,862,000 was incurred as remuneration to the Company’s
auditor for the provision of audit services. Other audit firms

approximately

provided recurring audit services to subsidiaries at a fee of
approximately HK$1,274,000. During the year, the remuneration
paid to the Company’s auditor and other audit firms for
the provision of non-audit related services to the Group are
approximately HK$1,358,000 and HK$562,000, respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Committee
now comprises four Independent Non-Executive Directors, who
are:

Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Dr. Leung Kam Fong

Dr. Yip Wai Chun

Mr. Andrew Yiu Wing Lam

A written terms of reference for the Audit Committee, which
clearly defined the role, authority and function of the Audit
Committee, have been adopted by the Board. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.
The Audit Committee met two times in 2021. Individual
attendance of each Committee member at these meetings is as
follows:

Attendance

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
Dr. Leung Kam Fong 2/2
Dr. Yip Wai Chun 2/2
Mr. Andrew Yiu Wing Lam 2/2
In Attendance:
Chief Financial Officer 2/2
External Auditors 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
audited consolidated financial information of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

1 B B TN <

BWE- X+ A=+ —HIREE
175 151,862,000 70 1F 75 A 23 A 2 A% B 4 A
FE TS 22 T 4 o LA & 5 Rl = 5 T SR AL A
B A RS T A ] W HRCE A
1,274,0007C © 4 A > S AT T AL B 2 A% B
T Al 51 il S B T T 4R AL A 4R 1 2 9F R
A B R BS 2 B 4 - 43 Al 4 2 s #51,358,00000
T s 562,0000C o

EHRERE
FZBER— JUILILF G > BUE B B4
& B SLIEHATE S > il B

WP (FEEAEEN)
2855 M+
MR L
RO 2 55

ERERCRMERZ RS mMERE - o
FEMEB T AN R EIREAEW 2R
SE o LT B TR AR AT 3 B A AR 2 )
A i D Yt 52 P A ol A B

iggzeﬁfm%ﬁﬁé HLHEBE - RE
6%"%,::5%5@,5\5"62%5 rl%%ﬁﬂ‘l:
s R

Hor HEH T #H
it e A

(FEEZA &) 2/2
9y L 2/2
HEMEE B/ 2/2
MOWE 8 e A 2/2
BIRE
H S 4R 2/2
AN A B il 2/2
FA B e B4 g JL (R 2 B AR 4R R =

TR ARt T A= HIEEE 2 BE
LA TS E R o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board has delegated the responsibility of performing the
following corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee of

the Company:

1. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
board;

2. To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of directors and senior management;

3. Toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and

directors of the Company; and

5.  To review the Company compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee has performed the above-mentioned
corporate governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as legal
and regulatory compliance.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group with a view to ensuring such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (ii)
selecting suitable accounting policies and applying the selected
accounting policies consistently with the support of reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out on pages 91 to 98 of this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes that it is ultimately responsible for the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and to
review their effectiveness at least annually through the Audit
Committee. The Board also oversees the management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems. Group Internal Audit reports directly
to the Group Chairman to provide independent assurance to the
Board on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control

system of the Group.
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During the year, the Company has fully complied with the risk
management and internal control code provisions in the Corporate

Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Risk Management

Effective risk management is an integral part of the overall
achievement of the Group’s strategic objectives. To achieve
this, the Board ensures that there is a robust and ongoing risk
management process in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks faced by the Group to promote the long-term
success of the Group. During the year, due to continuous change
in the business environment and conditions, the Board undertook

ongoing monitoring and reviews of the system.

Based on the risk assessment results, the management reviews
the principal business risks identified, assesses the effectiveness
of control measures to help mitigate, reduce or transfer such
risks, monitors the risk management and internal control
systems and reports to the Audit Committee for any significant
issues identified. The Audit Committee supports the Board in
monitoring risk exposure, design and operating effectiveness of
the underlying risk management and internal control systems. It
oversees regular reviews of the business process and operations
reported by Group Internal Audit and regular reports by the
external auditors of any control issues identified in the course of
their work. The Board considers the works and findings of the
Audit Committee in forming its own view on the effectiveness of

the risk management and internal control systems.
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Risk Management Structure

JE B 4 BE 2R

The Board

ERG

. Has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and internal control system
o ANEE RUAR Y SR A B R B 4 R AR

. Sets strategic objectives

o RIOLORWEH R

. Reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
o AR R B R R N B PR AR AR AL

. Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure for the Group’s major risks

o BREAR B 3 By A 1B R

Audit Committee
EREHG
. Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure, design and operating effectiveness of the underlying risk

management and internal control systems

oo I S B R B K ST N I L B B R A S AR AT A R R A AR

Management Group Internal Audit

e M % G E

. Designs, implements and monitors risk management | Supports the Audit Committee in reviewing the
and internal control system effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and

o RREE AT B N R PR B A R B R A internal control systems

e Assesses risks and implements mitigating measures | ¢ B #F A% & B @ Myt 52 ] R B PR K A 6 S
of the Group F B0 MK

o AT SR B AY JE B B HL AT B 1

Operational Level — Business Units

BN — R A

. Carry out risk management processes and internal control measures across business operations and functional
areas to mitigate risks
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Internal Control N B B
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to provide financial and operational performance indicators i B A s K R B AR AR - DL
to the management and the relevant financial information for A B S R 1 % 19 7 R B S T R -

reporting and disclosure purpose.



. Policies and procedures are designed for safeguarding
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, maintaining
proper accounting records; facilitating effective and efficient
operations, and ensuring the reliability of financial reporting

and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Company recognizes the significance of consistent practices
of fair disclosure with the aim of disclosing inside information
in a timely and accurate manner. The Company has a policy
with regard to the principles and procedures for handling and
disseminating its inside information in compliance with the
requirement under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and the Listing

Rules.

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the
Company is strictly controlled and remains confidential including

but not limited by the following ways:

. Restrict access to inside information, if practicable, to the
highest level of management/or to a limited number of

employees on a need-to-know basis;

. Reminder to employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations to

preserve confidentiality;

. Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place
when the Company enters into significant negotiations or

dealings with third party; and

. Inside information is handled and communicated by
designated persons to outside third party. The Board and
the senior management review the safety measures regularly
to ensure inside information is properly handled and

disseminated.

Group Internal Audit

By adopting a risk-and-control-based audit approach, Group
Internal Audit plays a critical role to ensure the risk management
and internal control systems are operating effectively. Based on
the risk assessment results, the Group’s 3-year internal audit plan
has been done in an order manner during the year. The plan is a
rolling plan which covers major activities and processes of the
Group’s business and service units, and is subject for update at

least annually according to the changing business environment
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and risk exposure. The internal audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Board. In addition to the agreed schedule of work, Group
Internal Audit conducts other review and investigative work as
may be required. All audit reports are communicated to the Board
and key members of executive and senior management. Audit
issues are tracked and followed up for proper implementation,
with progress reported to the Board, executive and senior

management periodically.

During the year, Group Internal Audit conducted reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls over
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions and reported their findings to the Board. The Board
adopted the results of the internal audit report and ensured that
the management has implemented the recommendations for

improvement as stipulated by the internal audits.

Based on the result of risk assessment, the risk management and
internal control measures that management has put in place, and
the results of internal audits, the Board reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. As a
result, the Board concurred with the management’s confirmation
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are

considered effective and adequate.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has established its own website (www.wkk.com.hk)

as a means to communicate with the shareholders.

The Company communicates with the shareholders mainly in
the following ways: (i) the holding of annual general meetings
which provide an opportunity for the shareholders to communicate
directly to the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements,
annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under
the Listing Rules and press releases of the Company providing
updated information of the Group; and (iii) the availability of

latest information of the Group in our website.

In March 2012, the Board has established a shareholder
communication policy. The policy is subject to review on a

regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
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The attendance record of the Directors of the annual general

meeting held on 29 June 2021 is as follows:

Attendance

Executive Directors
Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman) 0/1
Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui

(Group President and Chief Executive Officer) 111
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho (Chief Financial Officer) 171
Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 1/1
Mr. Vinci Wong 1/1
Mr. Victor Jui Shum Chang 1/1

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Hamed Hassan EI-Abd 0/1
Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh

(retired on 29 June 2021) N/A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 1/1
Dr. Leung Kam Fong 1/1
Dr. Yip Wai Chun 1/1
Mr. Arnold Hin Lin Tse 1/1
Mr. Andrew Yiu Wing Lam 1/1

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general meeting
Subject to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
Bye-laws and applicable legislation and regulation, shareholder(s)
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, may
require the directors of the Company to convene a special general
meeting (“SGM”). The requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the registered office of the Company at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11 Bermuda or at the
Company’s principal office at 17/F, Harbourside HQ, No.8
Lam Chak Street, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary. The requisition may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more

shareholder(s) concerned.
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If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
SGM, the shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one- half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, provided that the SGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date.

The SGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general meetings

are to be convened by the directors of the Company.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s) concerned
by reason of the failure of the directors duly to convene a SGM

shall be repaid to the shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the board
Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share

registrar. The contact details of the registrar are as follows:

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Tel No.: (852) 2980 1333
Fax No.: (852) 2861 1465

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the board of directors of
the Company in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Wong’s Kong King International (Holdings) Limited
17/F, Harbourside HQ

No.8 Lam Chak Street

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

Tel No.: +852 2357 8888

Fax No.: +852 2357 8999

Shareholders may also put forward their enquiries to the Board at

the general meetings of the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting

Subject to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
Bye-laws and applicable legislation and regulation, either any
number of the registered shareholders holding not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not
less than 100 registered shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;
and (b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the

business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses for serving the notice of
the resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the
registered shareholders concerned in accordance with the statutory
and regulatory requirements to all the registered shareholders
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda or
at the Company’s principal office at 17/F, Harbourside HQ, No.8
Lam Chak Street, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary of the Company not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution; and not less than one week before the meeting in
the case of any other requisition; and where an annual general
meeting is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to
have been properly deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of these shareholders.
The written requisition will be verified with the Company’s
Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the requisition
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary of the Company
will ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting, and serving the notice of the resolution and
circulating the statement submitted by the registered shareholders
concerned in accordance with the statutory and regulatory
requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the contrary,
if the written requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the

agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the

procedures available on the website of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) resolved
to adopt a dividend policy that aims to provide shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) with a stable dividend amount.
Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be

determined at the sole discretion of the Board.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will take into account, inter alia, the

following factors:

(a) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company

and each of the members of the Group;

(c) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on

equity and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be

imposed by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

(f)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Company; and

(g) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

This dividend policy and the declaration and/or payment of future
dividends under this policy are subject to the Board’s continuing
determination that this dividend policy and the declaration and/or
payment of dividends would be in the best interests of the Group
and Shareholders, and are in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and the Company’s Memorandum of Association

and Bye-Laws.
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The Board will continually review the dividend policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend, modify and/or cancel the dividend policy at any time, and
this dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any

time or from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the financial year 2021, there was no change in the

Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD STATEMENT

We are proud to present 2021 Wong’s Kong King
International (Holdings) Limited’s (hereafter referred as the
“Company”’) Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
report. Since being established, the Company has grown
to become a leading OEM manufacturer and is growing in
trading and distribution business. Our corporate philosophy
aims to make a positive impact on our local communities,
preserve and protect the ecosystem we operate while

maintaining profitability for our business.

This year, we continue our pathway towards greater
transparency to our stakeholders with our disclosure on our
sustainability performances. As a corporate citizen, we view
community contribution as one of our key sustainability
aspects. Through our joint cooperation with our suppliers,
the business helps sustain jobs in the local communities and
ensure that all employees are fairly compensated. During the
Covid-19 pandemic, we partnered with NGOs, and held a

donation drive to provide care to the elderly.

We will continuously strengthen our strategy on responsible
and sustainable sourcing. We aim for carbon footprint
reduction in OEM, distribution business and trading. In
the long run, we will also support the Chinese and Hong
Kong SAR government’s initiative, which sets out the
vision of Zero-carbon Emissions. This can help us to reduce
carbon and climate change risk and enhance our carbon
management performances. We apply our management
principles in our operations and take our responsibility to
increase awareness on our environment, such as reducing
the use of fossil-based fuel, switching to electricity, and

hopefully to renewable energy in the future.

We have an ESG Reporting Working Group to collect
ESG data for reporting every year. During the process, the
Working Group will review the performances to identify
areas for improvement. The performances will be reported
to the Board in the form of ESG report annually. The

Board’s role is providing comment and approving the report.

Looking forward, the Company will continue to take
a proactive approach ensuring sustainable growth, and
generate social, environmental and economic return to all

stakeholders in our business, environment, and society.
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ABOUT THE REPORT
This report provides the corporate social responsibility

(“CSR”) performance of the Company in 2021.

2.1 SCOPE OF THE REPORT
This report covers the CSR activities of the
Company’s headquarter, the Company’s trading
and distribution businesses in Hong Kong and the
Dongguan production plant of WKK Technology
Limited (“WKKT”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The reporting period is from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021. The report is published yearly

together with the Company’s annual report.

2.2 REPORTING STANDARD
This report is compiled in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) under Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

2.3 REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The preparation of this report follows the materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency reporting

principles.
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1V.

Materiality

The disclosed information in the Report was
carefully gathered, evaluated and presented
based on its materiality to the Company’s
business and its stakeholders. The reporting
scope is defined based on the significance of
operations in terms of revenue contribution and
ESG impact.

Quantitative

All the disclosed information, statistics of key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) in particular,
were organised and calculated according to a
series of standardised methodologies which are

illustrated in the relevant sessions.

Balance

A picture of the key environmental data
comparison of the latest years has been given
for readers who can see both the achievements
and rooms for improvement in terms of ESG

management in the Company.

Consistency

The Report has been prepared in the same way
in terms of methodology when compared to
those in previous years. The business sectors
and the operating regions are consistent with the

reporting scope last year.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Communication is key to success. Feedbacks and opinions
from stakeholders that are influenced by the operational
activities such as clients, employees, community groups and
government bodies are valued by the Company. We engage
with stakeholders irregularly through various channels
in an attempt to establish a shared understanding on the
vision and expectation on CSR. On such a common ground,
we endeavour to achieve sustainable development of the

Company.

To identify stakeholders’ insights and concerns in relevance
to business operations, the Company not only has identified
key stakeholder groups who have concern about issues that
may have a significant impact on our business or those who
could be significantly affected by our operations, but also
has been maintaining regular communication with them
through various channels, which are illustrated in the table

below:

Stakeholder groups

iy & AL 08 3R E
Investors and shareholders ¢ Company website
BB H BB N ) 48

e Company announcements

NPT

* Annual general meeting

e SR 4F K g
* Annual and interim reports
R RS
Customers e Company website
t9s 2 ) 4

Communication channels
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¢ Customer direct communication

RN Ri 3 3]

e Customer feedback and complaints
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Stakeholder groups
Ty & AL

Employees
(5!

Suppliers and business partners

PHEIE R X EH 1

Government authorities and
regulators

BT #8154 B

Communities

L I

Communication channels
WERE
e Training and orientation
15 A0 B
¢ Emails and opinion box
o N LA
e Regular meetings
SE Bk
¢ Employee performance evaluation
1l B 2 BLaF AL
* Employee activities
B TE
e Selection assessment
il 398 AV
e Procurement process
PRI AR
e Performance assessment
B AL
¢ Regular communication with business partners
(e.g. emails, meetings, on-site visits etc.)
BRLSEHE RS A A (TR - &k b B RS

¢ Documented information submission

S E R RS

¢ Company website
25 ) 4

e Community activities

At I 155 )



3.1 MATERIALITY ANALYSIS
In order to identify the ESG issues that are material
to the Company in formulating appropriate ESG
strategies on ESG management and determining
the direction of the Report, the Company has
commissioned an independent consultancy firm
to conduct a materiality assessment in form of
online questionnaire and physical interview. Our
key stakeholder groups (e.g. board of directors,
employees, customers, and suppliers) were invited
to fill in the questionnaires and score the identified
fourteen relative ESG topics in accordance with their
importance to the Company’s business operations and

the stakeholders themselves respectively.

Identification Engagement
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External Assessment (Impact on Stakeholders)

A ERRT A CBHR 13 5 0 28

Based on the materiality of each of the ESG topic
expressed by the stakeholders, the ESG topics are
prioritised and shown in the materiality matrix below.
The topics which fell in the upper right corner of
the matrix were defined as the topics that matter
most to the Company’s business operations and our

stakeholders as far as they are concerned.

Crucial
it 3
13 10
@ n
[+ ®° 0
® 2
Not relevant Crucial
AR 1 HE
Internal A t (Impact on Busi )
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According to the results of the materiality matrix,
the Company should place tremendous attention on
operation and employment issues. The Company has
identified the five most material ESG issues to the

Company, and they are:

1. Product Integrity;

2. Corporate Governance and Risk Management;
3.  Information Security and Personal Data
Protection;

4. Occupational Health and Safety; and

Talent Management and Development.
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Environment 53

Energy and Climate Protection
REVR R SR AR

Water Management

7K VR A B

Solid Waste and Recyclables
1] 8 0 e ] I i 4y

Product Environmental Stewardship
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Employment & {if

Employee Benefits and Welfare

1 B A A B 1538

Equal Opportunities

AR

Occupational Health and Safety
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Talent Management and Development
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Operation 4 ¥

Procurement and Supply Chain Management
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Product Integrity

A e B

Corporate Governance and Risk Management
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Anti-competitive Practice
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Information Security and Personal Data
Protection
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CSR VISION AND ASPIRATIONS

The Company treasures CSR as one of our fundamental
management values. Through active engagement in social
activities, we strive to help the unfortunate and nurture
those in need. Based on the result of materiality assessment,
the Company’s CSR approach is guided by 5 core areas
— product integrity, corporate governance, responsible
employment, operational footprint, as well as building a

caring community.
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Protect the environment by limiting carbon

footprint of our operations

Support the elderly and
vulnerable groups to build
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Operational

Delight customers with high-

Product quality products and services

better everyday lives
SCRE N K SAL R
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Corporate

Governance

€A B FAT 08 1

Uphold high standard of business
ethics and integrity to maintain
confidence of our customers and
business partners
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In developing the strategy in our everyday business
practices, we set out our expectations and commitments
through guidelines and codes, as well as management
systems. We believe these tools can guide us to manage
ESG issues arising from our operation in a systematic and
effective manner. Besides, the Company complies with
relevant laws and regulations that have a major influence
upon our operations in Hong Kong and in Dongguan, China.
The Company was awarded with the “15 Years Plus Caring
Company” logo granted by the Hong Kong Council of

Social Service in recognition of our devotion.
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Responsible
Employment

Create a caring and respectful
workplace to improve employee
satisfaction and retention
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s management puts great importance to
upholding good corporate governance in order to ensure the
success and sustainable development of the Company. Laws
and regulations concerning corporate governance are always
strictly complied. Also, codes of conduct that is beneficial to

corporate governance is implemented.

Looking forward, the Company will continue to review and
develop corresponding ESG policies and targets, as well as
optimising the ESG reporting disclosure in order to pursue
continuous improvement in our ESG performances in future.
Details of our efforts in 2021 are presented in the later

sections.

OPERATING PRACTICES

6.1 PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
The Company emphasizes the quality of goods and
services. Not only do we endeavour to satisfy the
demands from customers by continuous improvement
of our products, we also strive to guarantee the health
and safety of our products by minimizing the risks
of health and safety accidents resulting from product
usage. Besides satisfying the requirements of device
capability set out by the customers, the Company
ensures all stages, namely the manufacturing,
installation and testing of our products conforms to
the product standards, specifications and technical
guidelines. In the reporting period, there is no product
recall incurred by health and safety problems and 1
case of complaint related to delivery delay due to
traffic disruption under the pandemic. The complaint

was promptly resolved through communication.

The Company verifies the information based on the
reference data provided by the original manufacturers
to assure data accuracy before promoting our trade
products. Product labels made for customer reference
are always in according with the data provided by the

original manufacturers during the export of product.
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6.2

Aligned with the employee code of business ethics
formulated by the Company, the Company requires
all employees to prudently handle the confidentiality
of product technology, customer information and
relevant information. We also require employees
of certain key positions to sign non-disclosure
agreements. Besides, patent infringement in any
form is not accepted, and violations or misuse of
the intellectual property rights will be subject to

disciplinary actions.

In the reporting period, the Company has been in
compliance with the relevant trade regulations such
as the Restriction of Hazardous Substances in the

reporting scope.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Over the years, not only does the Company strictly
monitor the quality performance of each supplier,
the Company has been adopting social responsibility
performance evaluation more than ten years ago. The
Company requires its suppliers to perform well in
CSR concerning the environment, health and safety
and other related aspects of social responsibility.
Moreover, we formulate a supplier code of conduct,
resulting in a more comprehensive management of
our suppliers. This also enables us to align with the
requirements and expectations of the Company’s
stakeholders. In addition to the establishment of
the code of conduct as the foundation of managing
the Company’s suppliers, annual evaluations of our
key suppliers are conducted to monitor their social
responsibility performances. During the Reporting
Period, the Company engaged 458 suppliers in total,
with over 80% are from Mainland China and Hong
Kong to reduce environmental impacts generated from
long distance transportation, and all the suppliers
are assessed and evaluated in accordance with the
Company’s Supplier Assessment and Development

Control Procedure.
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Supplier Distribution

A V& 7 43 i
18%
33%
I8 Mainland China Hong Kong
FP g A ik

All the potential new suppliers are required to pass our
stringent evaluation before entering cooperation. A
vetting process is conducted in respect of the business
licenses, accreditations and qualifications of suppliers,
including various ISO accreditations, test reports
under various compliance standards, and safety testing
reports to ensure suppliers’ competency, experience
and their compliance with our quality requirements.
On-site product assessments are also conducted by our
designated committee. Only after suppliers fulfil our
requirements and pass the evaluation procedures can

they be included in our qualified vendor list.

For existing suppliers, regular performance reviews
are conducted, assessing their product quality, service
performance, material safety, process monitoring
and environmental performance. Suppliers who fail
to meet the standards should implement corrective
actions promptly, and we will discontinue the business
cooperation if they cannot pass our evaluation
consecutively. Besides, all our suppliers should ensure
the compliance of the products and services with
the principle of sustainable development and avoid
compromising the quality and safety of the Company’s

products.
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6.3

ANTI-CORRUPTION

“Society integrity and corruption prevention” are the
unwavering social value in Hong Kong. As a socially
responsible enterprise, the Company adheres to the
expectations of all of our relevant stakeholders. An
employee code of business ethics has been developed
and integrated into the Company’s employee
handbook to convey the message of integrity to our
employees. Information about the prevention of
bribery, money laundering, extortion, fraud and other
immoral behaviours is detailed in the code of business

ethics.

The Company has established an anti-corruption
policy to set out the basic standard of conduct expect
of all directors and staff. The policy also provides
some case studies for guiding employees in handling
different situations. We encourage employees to
supervise each other on the matter of anti-corruption
and business ethics. Our directors, managers and
supervisors are accountable to ensure the staff under
their supervision understand well and comply with
the policy. Any director or staff member in breach of
this policy will be subject to disciplinary action. The
Company commits to maintaining strict confidentiality
concerning the identity of the whistle-blower,
and encourages employees to report suspicion or
circumstances concerning violations of business ethics
directly to the Human Resources Manager or General
Manager who will investigate thoroughly and report to
the appropriate authorities. The policy will be revised

periodically based on updates of regulations.

All employees have to declare potential conflict of
interest to the Company. If employees want to take
job positions offered by other organizations, they are
required to disclose the job details to the Company
for approval. This prevents the employees from taking
the positions outside the Company that may lead to

conflict of interest.
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During the reporting period, the Company has been
in full compliance with relevant laws and regulations
in the reporting scope. They include the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, Criminal Law of
the People’s Republic of China and suchlike. There is
no concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices.
Besides, the Company has provided anti-corruption
training to some directors and managers during the
reporting period, and will conduct anti-corruption
training for all levels of staff to reinforce their
knowledge related to anti-corruption in the coming

year.

7 EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

7.1

EMPLOYMENT

Since our establishment, the Company has been
upholding the notion of “equality for all”. Built upon
the ground of this idea, the Company conducts our
business and operation with equality in mind. We
comply with the applicable laws and regulations
in Hong Kong and China. In Hong Kong, we
comply with the “Sex Discrimination Ordinance”,
“Disability Discrimination Ordinance”, “Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance”, “Race Discrimination
Ordinance”, etc. In China, we comply with the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of

China” and suchlike.

The Company reviews the remuneration policy
and packages of our employees regularly. The
remuneration packages of our employees are mainly
based on their performance and experience, taking
into accounts the current industry practices. Not
only does the Company provide employees with
the Provident Fund scheme, medical benefits and
internal and external training programs, share
options and discretionary bonuses may be provided
to the employees based on both the individual
and the Company’s overall performances. Our
policies cover the full range of employment and
labour standards including recruitment, promotion,
dismissal, remuneration, diversity, working hours,
equal opportunity, anti-discrimination, benefits, and

suchlike. Relevant policies are implemented include:
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Employee Recruitment and Diversity Policy: All
job applicants are treated equally throughout the
recruitment process. The Company assesses applicants
in terms of their qualifications and experiences. We
will never reject applications based on ethnicity, skin
colour, gender, disability, spoken language, family
status, religion and political factors, etc. As such, an
open environment with employee diversification can
be provided to facilitate the exchange of ideas and

perspectives.

Promotion Policy: Employees’ working performance,
qualification, experience, capability and job-
related factors are our only grounds for determining
promotion issue. Under no condition will we allow

factors infringing equal judgement.

Remuneration Policy: Employees’ remuneration
packages are determined in accordance with their
performance and experience, taking into accounts
current industry practices. Our Remuneration Policy
is reviewed regularly to ensure our competitiveness in

the market.

Work-Life Balance Policy: Employees are not
encouraged to work overtime under normal
circumstances. Even when faced with extraordinary
situations, the Company allows employees the

freedom to decide whether or not to work overtime.

Anti-Discrimination Policy: As an equal opportunities
employer, the Company strictly adheres to the
anti-discrimination regulations. Under no circumstance
will the Company make decision based on ethnicity,
gender, disability, religion and other non-job-related

factors that are in violation of equality.

Benefits Policy: The Company provides attractive
benefits and welfares on top of the insurance in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of

the corresponding operational places.
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Dismissal Policy: Termination of employment [BHEEUE | RN A N Er e sw sk -

contracts is never taken lightly by the Company. R A 4 o AN TR B IR —
The Company’s employee turnover is typically Ji§ F AR IS o AnEAK LR R B AR
under normal and natural situations. Should A 7= 0 AR A O R DR S A A5
any termination of employment occur, it will be B EE SR DLAF-G B 7 AT ©

proceeded in accordance with the prevailing employee

compensation regulations in a fair and reasonable

manner.
In the reporting period, the Company has been in WEMN > AR FEGREREAND
compliance with relevant regulations such as the L <Y B A A R AR Ak A o 3 A
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, and the P R 4% ) 1k S5 A B R E

Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China in the

reporting scope.

The following charts show the Company’s number TFE RS T R A A
of employees by gender, age and region. At the end I ) oy B AN F ] TNEL o s i
of the reporting period, the total number of full-time A AN TN s B T b
employees is 3,333 across Hong Kong and Mainland i 0 B A 43,3330 -
China.
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The Company views employees as an important asset.
They are the core engine of corporate sustainable
development. We adopt various types of measure to

develop and retain talent.

Employee Turnover Rate

SR E
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7.2

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company strives to make available a comfortable
and safe environment to all employees in our
premises. We are dedicated to creating a “zero
accident” working environment. Moreover, our
implementation of Work-life Balance Policy also
lessens the risk of industrial accidents by minimizing
overwork. As a last line of defence, the Company
provides suitable Personal Protective Equipment

(“PPE”) to the employees to further reduce the risk.

Relevant policies have been formulated and
communicated to employees to enhance their
understanding of occupational health and safety. This
allows the management and the employees to join
hands to achieve the “zero-accident” target through a

variety of means.

Relevant health and safety targets and policies

include:

1) An occupational illness rate of “zero”;

2)  The monthly occupational incident rate is not

more than “zero”;

3)  All employees who may be in occupationally

hazardous posts are provided with PPE;

4)  Understands the employees’ mental health needs
actively and provides psychological health

counselling;

5) A commitment to undertake annual maintenance

of facilities to ensure industrial safety; and

6) A commitment to conduct annual environmental

monitoring in the workplace.
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7.3

In the reporting period, there was no violation of
relevant occupational health and safety legislation
such as Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance,
Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance,
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Work Safety in the reporting scope of the Company.
The Company had zero work-related fatalities for
three consecutive years. With the Company’s safety
measures, there were 79 lost working days during the
reporting period with around 65% reduction compared
to that of last reporting year. The Company will
continue develop improvement plans to achieve zero

occupational incident rate target.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The combination of globalization and geopolitics
renders the marketplace much more unpredictable. To
make us resilient to these challenges, the Company
requires a team of proactive management and
enthusiastic employee to guide the Company towards
business breakthrough. This allows the Company to
prosper further and farther. As a result, development
and training of our managers is a vitally important
path in which the Company can afford no less

attention.

Courses in managerial skills and suchlike are
organized regularly. Employees who show
managerial potential are nominated to take part in the
abovementioned courses. Employees who completed
the training and subsequently exhibit exceptional
performance in their posts will have opportunity
of promotion and ultimately the pathway towards
the senior management team of the Company or its
subsidiaries. It will lead the Company continuously to

go forward.
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Moreover, series of training programs have been
developed by the Company for the routine jobs of
staff at every level. The programs come in various
modes including classroom teaching, presentation of
work progress reports and vocational skills training.
The Company conducts annual appraisal and provides
recognitions to all levels of employees according to
their performances. Recognition and year-end bonuses
are awarded to employees demonstrating outstanding
performances. These outstanding employees are also

prioritized for suitable vacancy posts at the time.

The following charts show the Company’s training
profiles. In the reporting period, 2,654 employees

were trained and completed 30,723.5 training hours.
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7.4

LABOUR STANDARDS

“Protecting children from harm” is a notion that
every company which bears the burden of social
responsibility must strictly adhere to. Relevant
employment regulations concerning child labour
and forced labour in each operating location are
prudently complied by the Company. The Company
undertakes due diligence throughout the recruitment
process. We require the job applicants to provide
personal identity documents for verification of age.
Contracts of employment are signed by the Company
and employees, explaining and detailing the rights
and responsibilities of both parties. Our employee
handbook also details employment-related issues, and
is updated frequently to convey the latest development
to our employees. Should provision of false
information is discovered, full responsibility for the
consequences is assumed to be borne by the applicant,
and the contract of employment will be immediately

terminated.

Despite the fact that there is an ongoing negotiation
and discussion concerning the standard working hours
legislation in Hong Kong, as a responsible employer,
the Company neither advocates nor forces our
employees to work overtime. We strictly control any
need for temporary overtime in individual department.
The Company examines the approval processes for
overtime working, daily overtime working hours
and total monthly overtime working hours, etc. The
Human Resources and Administration Department is
delegated by the management to investigate incidents
related to forced labour, and to prevent an unhealthy
atmosphere of overtime working which hampers our

working efficiency.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Environmental protection is one of the aspects of
sustainable development. The Company is devoted to
making contributions in the various areas of sustainable
development, which includes environmental protection.
The Company has established a green council to lead and
organize activities and programs related to environmental
protection. We have set up various systems, including a
sewage treatment plant to enhance effluent quality, solar
panels for warming water supply for the employees, LED
and solar energy lighting systems and selective flux and
soldering systems to improve energy efficiency. Also, we
launch computerized filing systems to limit paper usage. To
protect the environment in a systematic way, the Company
has established an ISO14001 certified environmental
management system since 2002, an IECQ QC080000
hazardous substance process management system, as well as
an ISO50001 energy management system for the monitoring
and improvement of greenhouse gas emissions and energy
consumption. The management systems’ effectiveness
is evaluated regularly via audits to ensure continuous
improvement. The success of the Company in environmental
protection has earned recognition from the Government,

industry, customers and suppliers.

In the reporting period, the Company has been in
compliance with relevant regulations such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of

China in the reporting scope.
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8.1

EMISSIONS

The major gaseous emissions source of the Company
is generated by the fuel consumption of the vehicles
from the distribution segment. Nitrogen Oxides
(NOx), Sulphur Oxides (SOx) and Particulate Matters
(PM) are the main air pollutants. In the reporting
period, 250,944.70 grams of NOx, 875.36 grams of
SOx and 20,623.05 grams of PM were emitted.

In the area of greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions,
they are categorized into 2 scopes expressed in tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) with disclosure
of CO,e emissions from Scopes 1 and 2. In the
reporting period, we generated 20,777.32 tCO,e across
the Company. Emission from electricity purchased
is the major emission source which shares 95.21%
of the overall emission. The remainder comes from
stationary combustion of natural gas and diesel oil and
mobile combustion of diesel oil and gasoline under the

operational control of the Company situation.
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The Company endeavours to reduce the air and GHG
emissions along its operation and targets to reduce its
operational footprint gradually. In order to manage
and monitor the GHG emissions controlled by the
Company, in particular the energy consumption
across its production chain, the Company has
developed various energy conservation initiatives
and programmes to reduce the carbon footprint of its
operations and nurture awareness of employees. The
Company also advocates the use of renewable energy
and has installed near 1,100 photovoltaic panels in the

production facilities in Dongguan, China.

The Company is fully aware of the importance of
waste management. We manage waste by making
reference with some international hazardous substance
regulations. We identify hazardous waste and non-
hazardous waste. For hazardous waste, they are
stored in designated areas and handled by trained
employees. Then, qualified vendors will be contacted
and arranged to ensure that the hazardous waste are
disposed appropriately. Aiming at reducing waste,

automation and lean manufacturing are executed.
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8.2

USE OF RESOURCES

To enhance energy efficiency, the Company installs
variable speed drive air compressors. Also, the
lighting system applies timer controls and lighting
sensors in order to reduce unnecessary use of energy.
In the reporting period, 86% of energy was consumed
through purchased electricity while the remaining was

by burning fossil fuels.

Total Energy Consumption

HafEAE

3% 2%
9%

o iy
The Company did not face any difficulty in sourcing
water in the reporting period. All used water is
discharged in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations. For water conservation, the Company
uses pressurized water pumps. Also, we conduct
underground water piping system inspection. If any
water leakage is found, we will repair immediately.
To reduce the use of pure water, the employees are
encouraged to support water saving in the operational

areas.

Besides, the Company aims to reduce our energy
consumption through enhancing the energy and water
efficiency of machines. In the coming years, we will
phase out the chiller compressors with magnetic
levitation rotors which operate in lower friction with

lower energy consumption.

- Natural Gas
RIRH
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8.3

8.4

The Company uses environmentally-friendly designs
and packaging. We adopt green procurement policies.
The supply chain and the entire product life-cycle
are aligning with clean and green manufacturing
policy, thus producing consistently high-quality
green products from the start to finish. The Company
constantly instils an awareness of environmental
protection in its employees (principally internal
stakeholders), thereby setting a good example to
external stakeholders. For instance, we collect
chemical containers and packaging for suppliers to
reuse or recycle. And we optimize logistics so as to

reduce packaging material consumption.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Company assesses the production processes and
the material used to avoid environmental impact
as much as possible. From top management to the
general employees, there is a mind-set of green
operation. When the Company launches green
programs, they will be promoted to the employees
to gain more support. This allows the Company to
maximize the programs’ effectiveness on minimizing

impact to the environment and natural resources.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The management regularly assesses the risks of
climate change to the Company, and regularly
manages and controls natural disasters that may be
caused by identified climate change or emergencies
arising from extreme weather conditions. As the
production facilities and properties of the Company
are not located near the coastal area, they have
relatively low physical risks, such as flooding and
extreme weather conditions. Besides, to prevent
damage caused by climate change, the Company
has formulated work principles, notification
mechanisms, evacuation systems and accident
investigation requirements in emergency situations to
help employees effectively respond to emergencies.
Besides, the Company has purchased property

insurance to reduce possible losses.
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8.5

THE ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

R

Air Emission ®t¢?

@ﬁﬂ;m(lﬁﬁz)

NOX (Note 3)

ECUA L

SOx

fikaKlat 7]

PM (Note 3)

BRI (B RE3)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

i 2 SR R

Direct Emission (Scope 1) Mot

B (s —) o

Energy Indirect Emission (Scope 2) N

il P ot o ) ()

Total GHG Emissions

i 2 R AR

Intensity

B

Energy Consumption ™°t¢®

B YA 3 6 (W)

Electricity

£l

Fuel

BAR
- Natural gas for stationary

combustion

JS L7 8 1 K AR

- Diesel oil for stationary
combustion

JH S 8 7 4k 58 0 5

- Unleaded petrol for mobile
combustion

R AL 8 A0 5 £ 3

- Diesel oil for mobile combustion

JH S U B Ak 5 0 S

Total Energy Consumption
Aheit

Intensity

i

Unit (Note 1)

E_ﬁ(m%ﬂ)

6 9

am (“g")

MO g Q

Tonne of carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO,e”)

Wi AR

tCOe

Wi RALmEE

tCOe

WAL E

g CO,e per piece of product
wRALBRE & AR

Megawatt (“MWh”)
JE T

MWh

JE T IR

Cubic metre (“m*”)

RAYI S
MWh
IR R
Litre (“L”)

/i
MWh
R EL I
L

Vil

MWh

KL

L

Bt

MWh

KL

MWh

IR IR

kWh per piece of product
TR/

FY2021

“E

250,944.70

875.36

20,623.05

994.98
19,782.35
20,771.32

4.40

23,954

3,863

99,184

926

238,662

2,394

40,882
372
17,043
171
27,817

0.0059

FY2020

et L

276,185.10

335.30

21,748.60

844.34
19,812.23
20,656.57

4.24

24,934

3471

28,411

0.0058



Resource Consumption
IR

Water

K

Intensity

I

Packaging Materials — Paper
BEM B K
Intensity

HIE

Waste Disposal

JEE 5 0 B

Hazardous Waste Me?
% B E g
Intensity

I

Non-hazardous Waste

LEY £

Intensity

Unit (Note 1)

E_(Fﬁﬁlb

m3
DAV S

L per piece of product
Nt/
Tonne

i

g per piece of product

/G

Tonne

i

g per piece of product
5/ R
Tonne

L]

g per piece of product

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

5L/ B b

The intensity of production unit refers to the total
number of products produced in the corresponding
Reporting Period.

The air emission is calculated based on the “How
to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by
HKEx.

The amount of NOx and PM emitted cover the
distribution segment only.

Scope 1 refers to direct greenhouse gas emission.
Emission sources of the Company include natural
gas and diesel oil stationary combustions, and
diesel oil and gasoline mobile combustions.

Scope 2 refers to energy indirect emission which
results only from the generation of the Company’s
purchased electricity.

The conversion factors from volumetric units of
fuel consumption to energy units are in reference
to CDP Technical note: Conversion of fuel data to
MWh.

The production of hazardous waste in Hong Kong
Office considered as insignificant and managed by
the service provider, hence no data was disclosed.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Company has formed a volunteer team since 2006.
The volunteer team is devoted to contribute its free time in
the service of society by visiting and organizing activities
at centers for elderly people. Over the years, many groups
of people and organizations have been benefitted from
these volunteer activities. Besides, the Company has made
donations to many charities and provides scholarships to
eligible students who otherwise cannot afford to further their

studies at university.

The Company has been consistently cooperated with the
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals and has become its corporate
volunteer service partner for many years. The Company
has been supporting and participating in the volunteer
activities held by the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals over
the past years. Besides, we have supported various NGOs
to subsidise the underprivileged. In the reporting period,
we have recorded 224 voluntary work hours and more than
HK$1 million monetary donations to various NGOs.

Among the operating locations in China, the Company’s
subsidiary, Dongguan Wong’s Kong King Electronics Co.
Limited, is one of the members of Changping Volunteer
Association. In addition, Tutang Village Committee has
served as the community representative of Dongguan
Wong’s Kong King Electronics Co. Limited to join
regular meetings about the environmental and safety
issues concerning the locals. The Company takes vigorous
collaboration together with the community so as to improve

the environment and safety performances.

In the education area, the Dongguan production plant
cooperates with Dongguan Electronics and Commerce
School (“the school”) regularly. The plant supports
the “Internship Program” of the school by employing
the school’s students. It is hoped that we can help the
students to enrich practical working knowledge, skills and
experiences to pave for better roads of career development.

On top of volunteering and monetary support, the Company
has repeatedly formed visiting groups for secondary students
and university undergraduates to tour its production plant in
China in an effort to enhance our youngsters’ knowledge of
green production facilities. However, due to the Covid-19
pandemic along with social distancing requirements, it
was not possible for students of secondary schools and
universities to tour our PRC factory for the purpose of

enhancing their knowledge of green production facilities.
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HKEX ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs Explanation/Reference Section
7 8 Ik 22 FRES G ¥R o 4 51 — M 43¢ % Bk A i 48 28 4 A CUVE =54
Aspect A Environmental
& T A B 35
A1 Emissions Information on: Environmental Management —
Bk — the policies; and Emissions

—  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a SR 5% % ¥ — PRl
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

wastes.
A BRI SR PR~ K B R BETS - A E
JEESEM R E AR AR Y
- B K
— RSP EEEAT A TR B R B i B 1) R
KPI Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environmental Management —
RS AR AR AL ey R 550 R R P o The Environmental Performance
BB M - BUR S
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Environmental Management —
A S AR BEA L2 emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per The Environmental Performance
unit of production volume, per facility). TR — BRET AL
THE (REE 1) M meE R W] 4 (G 12 il % S B HE AR (AR
B K (@ ) # (LU E B AL BIHSER R
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Environmental Management —
TR S AR AR 1A LS appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per ~ The Environmental Performance
facility). REEM-REHN

R 2 A VAR (DGR B (AR ) 96 (DL
BRI G -

KPI Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and where Environmental Management —
RS AR FEAL4 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per ~ The Environmental Performance
facility). REEM-IREHEU

T E A A R AR (LAWK (R ) B (A0 bl o
EREN - BIEHEME)

KPI AL.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Environmental Management —
W S SRR REA LS them. Emissions

it B R S P B R R A BE S AR RIS B o BRIEE -
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Environmental Management —
A S AR FEALG handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps ~ Emissions

taken to achieve them. BREEE S — PEc
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HKEX ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs Explanation/Reference Section

7 8 I8 22 FRES G +f 4 51 — M 4 % Bk A S 58 28 i A CUVE EF A
A2 Use of Resources  Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, Environmental Management —
B water and other raw materials. Use of Resources
AT (LA RE R ~ /K S AR IR L) R BOR - BROEE I — G
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Environmental Management —
R B AR AR TR A1 electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g. The Environmental Performance
per unit of production volume, per facility). BREG I — R

R B 2y 0 B R SRR R IR (0~ i) ARE R
(AT T RO R o) B BE (LA B B ~ 49 TRt T

H) o
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Environmental Management —
BB AR AR PR A2.2 production volume, per facility). The Environmental Performance
BFEKE REE (LG E R EA - BHREE) - BRI - BUR AL
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Environmental Management —
BR B AR AU 1A 3 taken to achieve them. Use of Resources
A 2t RE RS T 2wt ) B A AR BRAE M — R
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that Environmental Management —
B S SRR FEAL 4 is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken Use of Resources
to achieve them. BRI — G
At SR BB K U _E AT A A A B DL R B T K S R
KB i R o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes), Environmental Management —
S AR A5 and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. The Environmental Performance
SRR BT A PR AR (UMERT ) Je (I D) A A BROEAE B — BRI AR
EAVA -

A3 The Environment  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the Environmental Management —
and Natural environment and natural resources. The Environment and Natural
Resources AR AT N BT T K R 0 s T R 5 Y IBUR Resources
RERRRE R RS BRI R R R EW

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Environmental Management —

E s E environment and natural resources and the actions taken to The Environment and Natural

manage them. Resources

A ERE BRI R XA ERN E R BERORRERE RGER-BRE R KA ER
B BT o
A4 Climate Change Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- Environmental Management —

FfR 8 4L related issues which have impacted, and those which may Climate Change
impact, the issuer. BB — R Al
S B B S A8 T S o AT A A B R SR A B
FHMER -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Environmental Management —
W S SRS BE AL impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the Climate Change
actions taken to manage them. BREEAE M — Rl
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Aspect B Social

J& B &

B1 Employment Information on: Employment and Labour
1 15§ — the policies; and Practices — Employment

—  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a 1§ 5 %5 1% B — 1B i
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

B BN I AR RIS R T AR R TSR

&~ Zoufl ~ RIS H A R 8 S g A

- HOR R
— AP EEAT A TR B A B i B ) R
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- Employment and Labour
R B AR AR 1B 1L or part-time) age group and geographical region. Practices — Employment
FEPE R~ IR (IR ~ AEE AL Bt R B 08 0 2 55 T L — 1
1§ B A -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Employment and Labour
R S AR AR 1B .2 region. Practices — Employment
FE PRI~ A7 B AL R B [ ) 43 1 AR B R P 0 2 55 T R — A
B2 Health and Safety Information on: Employment and Labour
e i I %2 2 - the policies; and Practices — Health and Safety

—  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a 1§ 5 %5 1% B — fl JE Jo % &
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

A7 B 4R A1k e A T R O R B B e SR R AR R Y

- HOR R
— RSP A TR B R B i B A R
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of ~ Employment and Labour
R S AR AR 1B 2.1 the past three years including the reporting year Practices — Health and Safety
2 AR (LG ME AR ) 548 IR el N J b e o 46 B 5% T 1l % 2
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Employment and Labour
R S AR A AR 1B 2.2 HLAGHEKTEHE - Practices — Health and Safety
MM s TR — R R %%
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Employment and Labour
R AR AR 1 B2.3 and how they are implemented and monitored. Practices — Health and Safety
A 2 FIT BR A B (R B R o DL RO BRT R BTy IR s T — R R e &
% .

B3 Development and  Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Employment and Labour
Training discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Practices — Development and
BRI A B TR 5B AT AR 09 I S B R Y B o S5 F Training

EE . A6 S 55 % B — 88 Je T sl

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee =~ Employment and Labour

A S A B FEB 3.1 category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Practices — Development and

e B AR BRI (0@ R ~ PR SLIE) B4 Training

AIlfE B o e 5 2% 5 T R — B R
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender Employment and Labour
A SR AR B3 .2 and employee category Practices — Development and
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B4 Labour Standards

5 LR

KPI B4.1
Il S 0 HE BB 4.

KPI B4.2
W S B AU HE FEB4 .2

BS5 Supply Chain
Management
13t g 5 B

KPI BS.1

B SIS 1EBS.

KPI B5.2
W S A A FE BB S .2

KPI B5.3
W S A A HE 1B S 3

KPI B5.4
B 456 1EB5 4

Information on:

— the policies; and

— compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

A BB 1k E TR 5 TR

- R R

— TSP EERAT A TR A A B R SO B R

Description of measures to review employment practices to

avoid child and forced labour.

At 200 A AR 91 Y i s DA e S B T KR 55 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when

discovered.

A 20 A B3 A DL IR T B A B G DL BR R A B

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply

chain.

B LS I B 0 R 0 A I B BORE

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

i ol W 2 0 BERE R O

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

Al A T Y R R0 o ST A AR 0 3
H o DLRAMB AT R BTk

Description of practices used to identify environmental

and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A A T ) 5 R 0 B T 1 BB DAL TR B A L 491 - DA
BARBRABAT K B 58Tk

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

A 2L TE U8 {3 8 T8 O 000 2 Y BROR 2 B IR B O 101 > DA IR
B AT XTI

Explanation/Reference Section

CLIVE Z 24

Employment and Labour
Practices — Labour Standards

I AHE B 55 T W — 5 TR A

Employment and Labour
Practices — Labour Standards
A6 B 55 T R — 57 TR A
Employment and Labour
Practices — Labour Standards
A6 B 55 T M — 5 T e
Operating Practices — Supply
Chain Management

B ) — P
Operating Practices — Supply
Chain Management
AR ) — i e g 2R
Operating Practices — Supply
Chain Management

R ] — M g A P

Operating Practices — Supply
Chain Management

AR ) — {3 e g 2R

Operating Practices — Supply
Chain Management
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B6 Product Information on: Operating Practices — Product
Responsibility - the policies; and Responsibility
B EAE —  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a % % 18 {jil — & f H AT

significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods

of redress.

A B B S AR R RBS RO R B & R R AL

b 25 B DA Sl O i 1Y

- R R

— ESPEEAT N EORGSB M B A R R BIER
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls ~ Operating Practices — Product
] S AU 96 1B 6.1 for safety and health reasons. Responsibility

L8 B0 4 0% 7 o AR o [ o 2 R L o 7 i 7 R AR ) — O o AT

A
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and Operating Practices — Product
BA G 448046 FEB6.2 how they are dealt with. Responsibility

TR S 7 i DS 1 B E DA B B3 7 3 o B - A
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Operating Practices — Product
BA S 4106 FEB6.3 intellectual property rights. Responsibility

A B A DR B Rk 7 RE A TR AR 0 B - AT
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Operating Practices — Product
BH #E A0S 1B 6.4 ol il L A b AR T RO T Responsibility

B - E AT

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,  Operating Practices — Product
BH B AR B B6.S how they are implemented and monitored. Responsibility
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B7 Anti-corruption Information on: Operating Practices — Anti-
KA — the policies; and Corruption

- compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a % & & il — X &5
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Operating Practices — Anti-
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KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and Operating Practices — Anti-
B S 486 BT .3 staff. Corruption
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B8 Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs Community Investment
Investment of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its 41 [ 1% &
HhE R E activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

i

pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WONG’S KONG KING
INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wong’s Kong King
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 99 to 216,

comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;
. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements,

which include significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

Key Audit Matter

FRAMAE vl ] ) B o S SE A T

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

CE i

Impairment of trade receivables

S 5 B WAL R sk Y DK

Refer to note 3.1(b)(ii) and note 25 to the consolidated

financial statements.

2 WA DR B R I RE3.1(b) (i) M B 525 -

At 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivables
amounting to HK$1,371 million, which is net of loss

allowance of HK$33 million.

WoE A=+ —H BEEWNES BRI
WA H1,371H 8ot > K ek 33 E & oo

Nl R HE A

Management applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. In
measuring the credit loss rates, management assesses
whether there are any significant changes in payment
profiles and risk of default, and takes into consideration
the current and forward-looking information, to adjust
the expected losses rates.

R R T R i B YR D SR 99k SRR AL Oy
% o AT B 5 U R R A 0 A B e HE R 4R T
WS SR o TEAG RTINSl 1R R - A8 2R AT A5 45
A1 D A0 2 A R B A 75 A AT ) K SR AL I B
(RIS < YN Uk SERUEER=d RS

F A vy 2 w0 o7 o P B Sk 7 S 0H

Our procedures in assessing the management’s
assessment of impairment of trade receivables included:
FAM A I A 2L A B ) M SRR R 2 T R
A

. We obtained an understanding of the management’s
control and processes for determining the
impairment of trade receivables and assessing
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and the judgement involved in determining the
assumptions to be applied;

o BRI REAN AN E M RO BE B AE BT BR A AR
IR BT K B B - BAM T T 2 S ) R
S R A L A R i T R 2 Rt 4 T A T B
PEil Ok R

. We evaluated the outcome of prior period
assessment of impairment of trade receivables
to assess the effectiveness of management’s
estimation process;

o TRAMER 1A T TR B R SR BB Y A SR
FT P8 - DLRPAR B B A8 SRR T 1 A A0 S

. We assessed the appropriateness of the impairment
methodology in determining the expected credit
loss allowance;

o TRAMTEREE TGS B 4R R R RTAS T W T ¥
F4 928



Key Audit Matter

BA 3 % Gt 3

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

S R B Bk 8 K AR (A7)

We focused on auditing the impairment of trade
receivables because the estimation of loss allowance is
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables is considered significant due
to subjectivity of significant assumptions used, and
judgements involved in selecting data.

T FOE R R 5 ORI E > R 2 Al st s 1R
35 A5 A A R A RS T SE P o el R BT R T
R B A K 788 45 SO I 5 R 1) ) B A A R - AT
w8 7y B B2 oy JRE SR Bl (L £ A I A ] AT IR AR K

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
A B4 Gt o B B B it A At 95 0H

. We tested the historical data used in the expected
credit loss models on a sample basis, to relevant
supporting evidence;

o FRM U RR Oy AR T 7E TR A B R Y o il
A JEE S B > DA A AR B S fr a4

. We tested the aging classifications of trade
receivables used in the calculation of expected
credit loss allowance, on a sample basis, to invoices
and other relevant documents;

A 5 348 A A 5% SR L A AR B SC A DA O 5K
Rl T AE w5 TE A5 B 1R A I T 1 5
AR o R e 3 8

. We involved our internal valuation expert in
assessing the reasonableness of the use of forward-
looking information by the management in
adjusting the credit loss rates by comparing to
external market information or public available
information; and

o TRAMAY S A (L SRS At B A S T 35 B B B
o AT L > RPAL T T AW R A A
B MG B 5 &

. We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related
to impairment of trade receivables in the context of
the HKFRS disclosure requirements.

o FRAMPHR B A U IS i A T R AY B R RS > AR A B
2 T I AR O (LA ] P 99 8 2 15 R0 o

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
management’s judgements and assumptions applied in
the impairment assessment of trade receivables were
supported by the evidence obtained and procedures
performed.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in Wong’s Kong King International
(Holdings) Limited 2021 Annual Report (the

other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

“annual report”)

report thereon. We have obtained some of the other information
including Corporate Information, Chairman’s Statement and Five
Years Financial Summary and Financial Highlights prior to the
date of this auditor’s report. The remaining other information,
including Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management, Report of the Directors, Corporate Governance
Report and Environmental, Social and Governance Report, is

expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included
in the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our

legal rights and obligations.

oAb f5 2

Har#ERAREMEERE - HbFERE
fiwong’s Kong King International (Holdings)
Limited — % — 44 (T4F R J) P& 2 By

A E - (B AR BB R B FRAM 9 A% i ¥
A BRAN o Ho A5 B AL 4 FRAM TE AL A

 F AT B wE R - E R TR
P S ML B % B 5 A R A S o BT RO A
FEOFEHES A EEREANEMNER - E
FEMEE  AEERREUARRE g
SRR S

?idFﬁé‘ﬁAW Vo 55 i 3R 0 B NI A TR R LA A
B FAM R AS 1 A 5% 55 HoAh A5 S 88 R AT
{Tﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ%nﬂAuu% ©

A %idFﬁJﬁ‘AH BABS R M R A
AT Bl E’J/HJHME.M TR %
At 5 B 7 B U S 3R TR AN A
%Lﬁ*ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ:ﬂ@ 1 L AT A F KA Al 2
A7 A B K B R R A 15 o

L7 FAM 355 A5 AS A R H i AT HORE RO A
B BTRAT ) AR > dn R BAM R H AL S
FAAE BOR SRR R > FRAM B % FH -
FEAE 7 T > FAMILATAL AT o

AT B R B A A R R A R
5 o G SR A R A L rp A AR TR B SRR
M 2 A B I E S B e I
5 T8 FAM ) 5 HERE R AN 22 B 1R SRIUB & AT 8 -



RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal

control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Ting Wai Kin, Ambrose.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT SHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—Z - —EF A= —HIEERE
2021 2020
=
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
o ¥ T T T
Revenue U i 5 5,411,914 4,716,172
Other gains, net H A i 45 - 1§51 7 43,691 25,256
Raw materials and consumables used J& b4 ¥ &% £ 8 I 1 #€ i (2,262,413) (2,088,013)
Purchases of finished goods [ & % i i (2,065,457) (1,476,491)
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 4,441 (152,172)
B B AE R A B2 5 )
Employee benefit expenses 1 B &l b 52 10 (697,486) (626,451)
Depreciation and amortisation #7 # 5 {# £ (69,375) (71,448)
Net (provision for)/write-back of impairment loss on financial assets (17,639) 4,493
4 il WA M 4R 2 () 488 ) VR
Other expenses H Al 5 52 8 (220,034) (188,876)
Operating profit £ i 7 9 127,642 142,470
Finance income Fl & It A 3,462 2,422
Finance costs il & B A< (4,674) (9,604)
Finance costs, net [l & B A< > %8 12 (1,212) (7,182)
Share of profit of joint ventures Frfi e & A/ z@A 15930 5667
Profit before income tax I it £ Bt i & £l 142,360 140,955
Income tax expense T 5Bl 32 13 (45,585) (24,470)
Profit for the year A% 4F J& i | 96,775 116,485
Attributable to: FE)& :
Owners of the Company 457\ 7] HE 25 F5 17 & 72,013 101,185
Non-controlling interests JF #42 il P 24,762 15,300
96,775 116,485
Earnings per share for profit attributable
to the owners of the Company during the year
A A5 BE A Oy E) B A FE A AN R 2 R AR
(expressed in HK cents per share) (L4455 % i {1l 2 51)
— basic FEA 14(a) 9.87 13.87
— diluted ¥ 14(b) 9.87 13.87

The above consolidated income statement should be read in DL b2 B B R 2 R A [ o 5 — B o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & ft4r & W= &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-— - —EF A= —HIRERE
2021 2020
. SRR
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Profit for the year Z<4F: J& i £l 96,775 116,485

Other comprehensive income/(loss): I fib 4% A W 25 (5 48) -

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
HENGEH 7 E B < IHH

Fair value gains/(losses) on equity investments at fair value

through other comprehensive income, net of tax

BRTAEAR KRS HAD LR G Wi 2 A TE 2

NTEY S (EI8) o BRBLTR 3 19,206 (18,925)
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations, net of tax
T R R AR R RS - BRBLE A (955) (152)

Items that may be reclassitied to profit or loss
1] GE M 7 2 18 e < H H
Currency translation differences & [ 5, 7= % 16,331 35,860

Total comprehensive income for the year

7% A B A5 A W A5 AR AR 131,357 133,268

Attributable to: JEJ& :

Owners of the Company 48\ A7) # &5 £f A & 105,724 113,887
Non-controlling interests JE HE ) M HE 25 25,633 19,381
131,357 133,268

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income L b2 & 4F45G Uk as R MEHE R B s:— OF Bl wE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EHEERER

At 31 December 2021 Ao B HA=+—H
2021 2020
e a2 TE R
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
[ BT T T
ASSETS ¥ &
Non-current assets I i B & &
Property, plant and equipment ¥ 2 ~ Wi 5 K s A 17 470,023 475,084
Right-of-use assets {ii i & & 16 60,200 42,964
Deposits % 4 5,269 4,320
Intangible assets i JE & /& 18 275 372
Interests in joint ventures /NI 19 18,688 6,650
Deferred tax assets 4% #iE i JA & /£ 21 22,634 14,602
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
BRFAEA MR K INAH A LR G W ii 2 5 B 23 32,439 13,034
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
N TEA R B AR 45 2 4 B 23 2,786 4,362
Club membership and debentures & £ & & % 15,087 14,923
Total non-current assets J it B & &S 4% 627,401 576,311
Current assets i B & &
Inventories 17 & 24 891,213 645,084
Trade and other receivables & 5 ¢ HAth Ui HiR 5k 25 1,412,088 1,303,528
Contract assets 7 & & & 26 31,153 49,766
Deposits and prepayments % 4 & 78 {2 JH 68,942 65,730
Tax recoverable FJ U [2] F JE 1,029 6,732
Derivative financial instruments 74 4 fjl T. 2 27 - 227
Short-term time deposits £ #3 & B 17 3K 28 31,619 39,758
Cash and cash equivalents i 4 & Bl 4 %5 {5 JH H 28 682,315 597,995
Total current assets i B & & 44 % 3,118,359 2,708,820
Total assets % 7 48 i 3,745,760 3,285,131
LIABILITIES £ &
Non-current liabilities i i By £ &
Lease liabilities ffl & # fif 16 25,097 14,611
Provision for assets retirement obligations
B A AR o] RO B 1,710 1,710
Retirement benefit obligations
AR R AR AR 33 10,122 8,900
Total non-current liabilities JF: i By £1 {5 48 36,929 25,221

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

LAk 2 & 0 7 R R AR A ] B — ) B ] o



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2021

EHEERER (A)
+¥

S

DS SN

A E

H

2021 2020
R TR TR
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt &1 Tt T T
Current liabilities ¥ B £1 f&
Trade and other payables & % J H: Aib Al 3Kk 34 1,116,084 936,438
Contract liabilities & %7 £ f& 26 128,791 116,707
Current income tax liabilities Rl i fif 15 i & fi5 19,162 18,843
Bank borrowings 4% 17 f& £ 32 565,303 377,008
Lease liabilities FHl 15 £ i 16 23,046 14,584
Derivative financial instruments fi7 4 4 fill T. H. 27 585 12
Total current liabilities i B £ {5 48 % 1,852,971 1,463,592
Total liabilities £1 & 38 % 1,889,900 1,488,813
EQUITY Ji% ##
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company
A 2y ) HE 4 5 A AR B ik
Share capital 4% 29 72,975 72,945
Reserves fif 1,686,895 1,638,553
1,759,870 1,711,498
Non-controlling interests JF #4¢ #i 4 35 95,990 84,820
Total equity /% HE 44 % 1,855,860 1,796,318
Total equity and liabilities A B K £1 { 44 % 3,745,760 3,285,131

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on page 99 to 216 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and were
signed on its behalf.

Senta Wong

Director

Byron Shu-Chan Ho
Director

LA b2 & 0 1 AR A ) B — f)F B ] o

FBOOHEF2D6HZ A M B mMED R _F
T ZHZ=ZtTHEEREEMERE U T E
HAREE -

EEE?‘*E
HF

o 4t 93¢
#HH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY & 4tERE2FH X
BE _F -+ _HA=+—-HILE¥

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Non-
Attributable to owners controlling
of the Company interests
e ) o
A T HE 5 6 R A W%
Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings
(Note 29) (Note 31) (Note) Total
A SRR REEMN A
(WHiE29)  (B&E3L) (WH&E)
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EETE  BETE  OBWTT NI BETE
Balance as at 1 January 2020 2 ~Z 24—~ H —HZ & 72,945 86,035 1,435,231 70,426 1,664,637
Comprehensive income % 5 1 #
Profit for the year 7% 4 J i Fl - - 101,185 15,300 116,485
Other comprehensive income/(loss) H At 4 & 25/ (I 18)
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations, net of tax
B R IRAR AR - RELE - - (103) (49) (152)
Currency translation differences £ [T it. 2% 44 - 31,429 - 4431 35,860
Fair value losses on equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, net of tax
TN EA R R A ASR & Wi 2 A £ B
ZATHER - BB - (18,624) - (301 (18,929)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) 3 flt 4% A Wi 25/ (5 18) 48 % - 12,805 (103) 4,081 16,783
Total comprehensive income % £ W %5 45 4 - 12,805 101,082 19,381 133,268
Transactions with owners E i & F i 2 R 5
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 32 15 JF & il ¥ ¥ £ 2 it & - - (4,987) (4,987)
Transfer from retained earnings to special reserve
R R 7R A R M - 2,502 (2,502) - -
Share-based payment expense DA {1 25 2558 2 4] 3 B - 3,400 - - 3,400
Balance at 31 December 2020 # % %4+ 24 =+ —H 2 &ifk 72,945 104,742 1,533,811 84,820 1,796,318

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt ERSE R (E)
e —F+_HA=+—HILFEE

Non-
Attributable to owners controlling
of the Company interests
e ) o
A T HE 5 6 R A W%
Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings
(Note 29) (Note 31) (Note) Total
A SRR REEMN A

(WaE29)  (WitE31) (W)
HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
wRTT  BWTr  BWTx BNt BN

Balance as at 1 January 2021 ¢ ~% ~—%—H —H 2 &#% 72,945 104,742 1,533,811 84,820 1,796,318

Comprehensive income % 5 1 #

Profit for the year 4% 4F [ % | - - 72,013 24,762 96,775
Other comprehensive income/(loss) } Hipgadkss/ (B#R)
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations, net of tax
B At R B RARFRSE > BRBLT R - - (644) (311) (955)
Currency translation differences & [ ji. 2 4 - 15,216 - 1115 16,331
Fair value gains on equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax
ATHEAMR RIS it 2 AR E
z“%@lﬁuﬂ BRBL i A - 19,139 - 67 19,206
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) 3 flt 4% A Wi 25/ (5 18) 48 % - 34,355 (644) 871 34,582
Total comprehensive income %% 7 W 35 4 % - 34,355 71,369 25,633 131,357

Transactions with owners B & Fi &5 2 2 5
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

ST I R 2

- - - (13,825) (13,825)

2020 final dividend —% ~FAE AR L - - (43,767) - (43,767)

2021 interim dividend — % ~—4F 1K & - - (14,589) - (14,589)

Transfer from retained earnings to special reserve

B B R 5 o - 1,074 (1,074) - -

Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share option

A7 0 P O 3 17 4 4 P 30 242 - - m

Share-based payment expense LA 17 £ 2 B 2 5 3 PH 3¢ - 1,125 - - 1,125

Lapsed of share options i [ fi 22k - (171) 171 - -

Acquisition of remaining equity interest in a subsidiary

Wi — T BEYJ 8 ) 2 B T I - (393) - (638) (1,031)
Balance at 31 December 2021 # —% ——4+ = =+ —H Z &k 72,975 140,974 1,545,921 95,990 1,855,860

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, included in retained earnings are statutory
reserves of HK$107,330,000 (2020: HK$102,052,000). These statutory
reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these funds are
determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant subsidiaries in
accordance with the laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS & #REREe R
BE _F -+ _HA=+—-HILE¥

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
e 2 “ECERE
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Wit T T T
Cash flows from operating activities BB EHZHER &
Cash from operations %8 #5 355 r {5 3 4 35(a) 70,274 521,837
Income tax paid &1 fir {581 (41,402) (34,508)
Withholding tax on dividend paid by subsidiaries
L Y T 2 ) IR A L 2 B (6,007) (2,169)
Net cash from operating activities %8 245 i 15 Bl 42 1 58 22,865 485,160
Cash flows from investing activities # &G B2 H &M &
Interest received & W F 5 3,462 2,422
Dividend income from a joint venture
— WA EA R Z R BA 3,893 3,885
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
F8 P (E A MR BB\ A e WA i 2 <l 2 SBER I A 249 352
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
BB W) s BB (44,674) (52,222)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
B R K s I A5 B OH 35(b) 4,927 11,404
Purchase of club membership and debentures
B R SR (180) -
Acquisition of remaining equity interest in a subsidiary
e S — [ B S ) 2 B (1,031) -
Increase in long-term deposits 1= ¥ 4 4 il (945) -
Decrease in short-term time deposits 5 39 5 HA A 3 D 8,139 3,268
Net cash used in investing activities % & i B it Fil 8 4 1F 7 (26,160) (30,891)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHATRER (B)

BE_F -+ A=+ —-HILEF

2021 2020
—EB T4 TR EA
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Wit T T T
Cash flows from financing activities Fill & 1if By = 3 £ Wi &
Dividends paid 21 B 5 (58,356) -
Interest paid B 1 F & (4,168) (8,789)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
ST IR R AR 2 BB (13,825) (4,987)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings
T SRAT A5 BT 13 AKOE 35(d) 2,981,615 2,325,641
Repayment of bank borrowings {8 #& §f 17 & £ 35(d) (2,793,320) (2,606,245)
Principal element of lease rentals paid
O B 8 2 A i 17 35(d) (20,261) (20,983)
Interest element of lease rentals paid
A B A 2 AR AR 1y 35(d) (506) (815)
Issuance of ordinary shares upon exercise of share option
AT (o 0 P R M % 4 25 2 B 272 -
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities
BSOS U REWH . 94SL_ (16178)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
4 R B4 4 (L JH H 59 0 5 A 88,156 138,091
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
REN 2 Bla kB a%HEER 597,995 447215
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
ME A 5 ) 2 R (3,836) 12,689
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
RERZB & LR E%EEA 682,315 597,995
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents:
Bl Je Bl S EHIE H o
Bank balances and cash #3747 &5 6% K& 4 28 682,315 597,995

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong’s Kong King International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the trading and distribution of
chemicals, materials and equipment used in the manufacture
of printed circuit boards and electronic products and the
manufacture of electrical and electronic products for

original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) customers.

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HMI11 Bermuda and its principal place of business is 17/F,
Harbourside HQ, No.8 Lam Chak Street, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the

years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for certain financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative financial

instruments), which are measured at fair value.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial

statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use

of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires

management to exercise its judgement in the process

of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas

involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,

or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the consolidated financial statements,

are disclosed in Note 4.

(a)

Amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new amendments to standards
were required to be adopted by the Group
effective from 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKEFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform-Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

The amended standards listed above did not
have any impact on the amounts recognised
in prior periods and are not expected to

significantly affect the current or future periods.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New and amended standards, interpretation and
accounting guidelines not yet adopted

Certain new and amended standards,
interpretation and accounting guidelines have
been published that are not mandatory for
financial period beginning 1 January 2021 and
have not been early adopted by the Group.

2

FERGEHBORM R (A7)

2.1

R ()
(b) AR IRAY 2 H AT R A 7T e

A~ #FER & 7155

T ET MBI 32
B e EHE s 2 8 - H
WHEh - —F—H—H
BH 6 2 B B ] 3 o AT
I A M A 4 (| 42 LR 4 -

Annual Improvements Project

FEWEEH

Amendments to HKFRS 3
B il BT R B 398 2 18T
Amendments to HKAS 16

Fis st 165 2 BT
Amendments to HKAS 37
st AE37IE 2 BT
Revised Accounting Guideline 5
BT GG 55
Amendments to HKERS 16
T it B R ) B 6% 2 1B 3T
Amendments to HKAS 1
Fis Gt A9 2 BT
HKEFRS 17
T Ut B A T B 1798
Amendments to HKAS 8
s -Ein R va i)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKERS Practice Statement 2
i a et EN 15 R
it BT
HHREEE 2 BT
Amendments to HKAS 12

FiE g e 128 2 BT
HK-Interpretation 5 (2020)

TR BEST (CEFF)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

it BT U5 109 )
i gt A8t 2 3T

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
MELT B s %

P 852 2 5 BE A A 3

Annual Improvements to
HKERS Standards 2018-2020

1 January 2022

BoE - NEE DR RN B MR ~“F-"%-A—H
EEBE
Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BESHESR A fi SR H
Property, Plant and Equipment: 1 January 2022
Proceeds before intended use
o3k ~ RS Meskfl - e g2 B i 30 —“F-%-A—H
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
ERIES & - a8 iA “EFZ2H—A—H
Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations 1 January 2022
S B 5 i 2 A B st 3 “EZZH—A—H
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 2021 1 April 2022
SR DB Z AR A 3 (COVID-19)H L B 2 “EFZZENA-R
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
AEMERRBH I RH “FZ=F—A—H
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
RER & S
Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
bl 2 E & “FZ=F—A—H
Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
BAHHOR 2 Bk “EZ=F—-A—H

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

B — 2 it i AR R R

Presentation of Financial Statements-Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

MR 2I— B R BRI A
HERZEH

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

B BT S W SR 2 22 R
B B SIEA

1 January 2023
N,
1 January 2023

e e
To be determined

R E

The Group has commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new and amended standards,
interpretation and accounting guidelines, but
is not yet in a position to state whether they
would have significant impacts on its results of
operations and financial position.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including a structured

entity) over which the Group has control. The

Group controls an entity when the Group is

exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns

from its involvement with the entity and has the

ability to affect those returns through its power

over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated

from the date on which control is transferred to

the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former

owners of the acquired business
. equity interests issued by the Group
. fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement, and

. fair value of any pre-existing equity

interest in the subsidiary.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired

entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity, and
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity over
the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of
the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated profit or loss

as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could
be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in

the consolidated profit or loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(D)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date.
Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform

with the Group’s accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated profit or
loss, consolidated statement of changes in

equity and balance sheet respectively.

Changes in ownership interests in

subsidiaries without change of control

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to

owners of the Company.

2

FERGEHBORM R (A7)

22 MEAW ()
221 40HEH (4)

(a)

(b)

RGO (4

i 4 3€ & B 20 B B
1o WD A BT R A
B T7 2 IEAEE 4
e B A 2 R T R A
W 40 R R A AT
{H - BRratEEAE A
i it B 1R & 1F 18
fii A ffE R o

e ) A N i
VR Y ES $:)
W g & 7 LLE B o BRIE
32 5y A b R B P
B HE - HIR
SR IR N T LASS S -
A T B > B 2 W
Pir 24 2 e R O A
B UreAEmz g
FHBUE -

Wi g 2 ) 2 S % e
Hh 2 J ) R 2 2
ISER XIS E AR R
SR NE E AR

SLES -

TR 2 Fl < A RERE
it HE) (R EHEER
HEZH))

A G i SR A B
2 e i Wi 2 B I 2 )
HE 252 5 48 7y LA AR 1
M EZL S - B
A HEHE £ 5 B B
] 14 B 9 42 o 44 A i
T {2 R4 Hh g > LA
J BRABE A5 174 Wi & 2 W] 2
FHEIRE AR o I 2 1
i A B WA BT 2 A
2 2 AR 2 ] 2 AT A
ZHNA L AR A
MG FBEHE Fh 2 B8 S
i R D, -



2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(¢) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to consolidate
or equity account for an investment
because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to the consolidated profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified by applicable HKFRS.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures

are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from joint ventures are recognised as a

reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board of directors

that makes strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year-
end exchange rates are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet

presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that balance sheet;

(ii)) income and expenses for each income

statement are translated at average

exchange rates; and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency

translation differences arising are recognised in

equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Group are reclassified to the

consolidated profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
the consolidated profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interests in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to the consolidated

profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated profit or loss during the

reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost to their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives at the
following:
Buildings 20 to 40 years
Factory premises Over the terms of the lease
Machinery and equipment 2 to 7 years
Leasehold improvements, The shorter of the terms of
furniture and fixtures the lease or 5 to 7 years

Motor vehicles 4 to 7 years

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Technical know-how

Technical know-how is shown at historical cost.
Technical know-how has a finite useful life and
is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and provision for impairment. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of technical know-how net of
provision over its estimated useful life of 7 to 8

years.

Internally generated product development cost

Cost incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets

when the following criteria are fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the
development projects so that it will be

available for use or sale;

(i) management intends to complete the

development projects and use or sell it;

(iii) there is an ability to use or sell the

intangible asset;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the intangible
asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

(v) adequate technical, financial or other
resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset are

available; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the
development projects during its

development can be reliably measured.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Internally generated product development cost
(Continued)
Other development expenditures that do not
meet these criteria are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised
as an asset in a subsequent period. Capitalised
development costs net of provision for
impairment are recorded as intangible assets
and amortised from the point at which the asset
is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life.

(c)  Computer software
Computer software is shown at historical cost.
Computer software has a finite useful life and
is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of computer software

over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

Club membership and debentures

Club membership and debentures are with indefinite
useful lives, and are stated at cost less impairment, if
any.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at

the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) or through profit or loss),

and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets

and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in the consolidated
profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive

income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing

those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are

expensed in the consolidated profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two

measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line

item in the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate

line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to the consolidated
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s

right to receive payments is established.

2

FERGEHBORM R (A7)

210 & K H AL L whE E ()

(©)

Al 4 ()

fws TR ()

N T(E 2 8 FOA &5 Wi i
RO & L E B S
B2 B A LA B 4 3
Bt 2 M E > AR
HE 2Bl em B EAREA
& RMB 2 W E E
W B 45 N T {E 2 o Ho At
BB WA nC AR o R BB (E I AR
ok 1~ MR A B BE
W i M e B FT AR 25 5h > BR
T 2 5 Bk A At &5 5 ik
fit o 7% % < A A L R
IRf o 2 HiFEA A A A
2 2t Wi B s R e HE 45
B AR AR > 0 FE A
fluie it~ (B 1R o 5% 55 5l
B 2 AL A T BB A 2
EEHE S FEARE WA o BE
UNVEDY FEER R
(i 18) H8IoR - W(E B SO A
S HUBIE A TEIR AR R TS -

o

A TR

AL AR AL N ER R T
ARA T H - AL E
Mg B AR A AR A Ui s
N 29 e A 158 2 2 (IR
fi Ml 1R - B B il R
EBE B AR A & M (R
MEHEER T BES A
g o B A B2 1 il S WK RE
IRF - 2 7 % 55 BB 2 i S A
HEAE A IR E A e RS 2 A
A o



2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in other gains/(losses) in the consolidated
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported

separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
fair value through other comprehensive income.
The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase

in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition

of the receivables.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net

amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet

where the Group currently has a legally enforceable

right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has

also entered into arrangements that do not meet the

criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related

amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as

bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently measured at their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designed as a hedging instrument, and
if so, the nature of item being hedged. Derivative
instruments held by the Group do not qualify for
hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
these derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work-in-progress comprises materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Treasury shares

Where the Company repurchase its equity share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to owners of the Company until the shares

are cancelled or reissued.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they

are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19

2.20

2.21

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss in the period in which they

are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries and joint
arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in
relation to taxable temporary differences arising
from the associate’s undistributed profits is not

recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference

can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances

on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit

obligations in the balance sheet.

Post-employment obligations
The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined benefit and

defined contribution pension plans.

Pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan

that is not defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of service and

compensation.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less
the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent

actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Post-employment obligations (Continued)

Pension obligation (Continued)

The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related
obligation. In countries where there is no deep
market in such bonds, the market rates on

government bonds are used.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated profit or
loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in
retained earnings in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated profit or loss as

past service costs.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the

future payments is available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant
of the options is recognised as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase
in equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the

options granted:

. including any market performance
conditions;
. excluding the impact of any service

and non-market performance vesting

conditions; and

. including the impact of any non-vesting

conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to
vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity. Where options are lapsed as described
under the share option scheme which has been
adopted by the shareholders of the Company
on 22 June 2016 such as termination of
employment with the Company or the Group
or after the expiry date etc, any expenses
previously recognised in relation to such options
are reversed effective the date of the lapse.

The cash received for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital

(nominal value) and share premium, net of any

directly attributable transaction costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

The Group records warranty provision at the time
of sale for the estimated costs that will be incurred
under its basic limited warranty. The specific warranty
terms and conditions vary depending upon the product
and the country in which it was sold, but generally
includes technical support, repair parts and labour
associated with warranty repair and service actions.
The period ranges from one to three years. The Group
re-evaluates its estimates at the end of each reporting
period to assess the adequacy of its recorded warranty

liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.24 Revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when control of the
products transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customers. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the
specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customers,
and either the customers have accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for

acceptance have been satisfied.

Customers obtain control when the goods are
delivered. Invoices are generated and revenue is

recognised at that point in time.

Commission income

Commission income is recognised when the
Group satisfied the performance obligation
in accordance with the substance of relevant
agreements. Invoices are generated and revenue

is recognised at that point in time.

Service fee income
Revenue is recognised over time as those

services are provided.

Ticketing and touring income

Revenue from tour and travel services and other
travel related services are recognised over time
as those services are provided. Revenue from
the sales of tickets are recognised when the
tickets are delivered. Invoices are generated and

revenue is recognised at that point in time.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective

interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f)

(g)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.

Tooling income
Tooling income is recognised when the tooling

services are rendered.

2.25 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to owners of
the company, excluding any costs of servicing
by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares

equity other than ordinary shares,

outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued

during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings
per share to take into account the after income
tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares, and the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all

dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.26 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased

asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable

. variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the

index or rate as at the commencement date

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that

option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising

that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the

measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,

security and conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.26 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third

party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the

remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising

the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability
. any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date less any lease incentives

received
. any initial direct costs; and
. restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it
has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in the consolidated profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and

small items of office furniture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

Leases (Continued)

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 -
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendment provides an
optional practical expedient allowing lessees to
elect not to assess whether a rent concession related
to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees
adopting this election may account for qualifying rent
concessions in the same way as they would if they
were not lease modifications. The practical expedient
only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if
all of the following conditions are met: a. the change
in lease payments results in revised consideration for
the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding
the change; b. any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and
c. there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
required the Group to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instruments.
Provisions are recognised when it is probable that
the Group has obligations under such guarantees and
an outflow of economic resources will be required to
settle the obligations.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period.

Government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, fair value and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures
on changes in foreign currency exchange rates and

interest rates where necessary.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
As most of the Group’s sales in the
trading segment are conducted in the
same currency as the corresponding
purchase transactions, and foreign
exchange contracts are used to hedge
exposures where necessary, the monetary
assets and liabilities of the Group were
substantially hedged against each other
and therefore, no significant foreign
exchange risk exposure is identified. Sales
in the manufacturing segment are mainly
denominated in United States dollar
(“USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKS$”)
and therefore, no significant foreign
exchange risk exposure is identified on
these sales transactions. As the Group’s
manufacturing base is located in the
PRC, certain purchases and expenses are
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”). The
Group has entered into foreign exchange
contracts to hedge part of the exposure

arising from RMB.

At 31 December 2021, if the RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2020:
5%) against the HK$, with all the other
variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been HK$3,142,000 higher/
lower (2020: HK$2,065,000), mainly as
a result of the net foreign exchange gain/
(loss) on the translation of net financial
assets at amortised cost denominated in
RMB.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash and time deposits held
at banks, the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. The Group is exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank borrowings (Note 32).
At 31 December 2021, if interest rates
on borrowings had been 25 basis points
(2020: 25 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, profit for
the year would have been HK$1,534,000
(2020: HK$1,016,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest

expense on floating rate borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises

3.1

(b)

from trade and other receivables, deposits and

deposits with banks. The carrying amounts of

these balances represent the Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to these

financial assets.

(i)

Risk management

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has implemented internal
control procedures for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
allowance on impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. Credit risk is
managed by a credit evaluation process
which includes assessment and evaluation

of existing and potential customers.

The Group was not aware of any credit
risk on other receivables and deposits as
their counterparties are corporations with
proven credit history. Majority of these
financial assets are neither past due nor
impaired with no history of default.

As at 31 December 2021, 30% (2020:
32%) of the Group’s total trade
receivables and contract assets comprises
receivables from the top five customers

All bank balances are deposited in
reputable financial institutions without
significant credit risk. Management
does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these banks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s trade receivables, contract
assets, cash and cash equivalents, other
receivables and deposits are subject to the

expected credit loss model.

Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets
relating to accounts which are long
overdue with known liquidity issue or
non-response to collection activities,
they are assessed individually for loss
allowance. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had specific loss allowance of
HK$17,843,000 (2020: HK$8,832,000).

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all remaining

trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group
has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates

for the contract assets.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 24 month before 31 December 2021
or 1 January 2021 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The
historical credit losses rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables and contract assets.
The Group has considered the relevant
macroeconomic factors, such as gross
domestic product rate, unemployment
rate and consumer price index, etc., with
reference to customer base and location
for each company that affect the credit
quality of their customers, and accordingly
adjusts the historical loss rates based on

expected changes in these factors.

Given the track record of regular
repayment of remaining contract assets,
the directors are of the opinion that the
risk of default by these customers is not
significant and does not expect any losses
from non-performance by customers.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of
the remaining contract assets is assessed
to be close to zero and no loss allowance
was made as at 31 December 2021 (2020:

same).
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3.1

(b)

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 A %% JEl B 45 B (A
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 WEREPBEREE (E)
Credit risk (Continued) (b) 15FEHE B ()
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) BB EZ I (A
Trade receivables and contract assets BB IEWIRI R & 49 &
(Continued) JE (#E)
On that basis, the loss allowance for F L e g R T —
remaining trade receivables as at 31 St A=1—H &
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 T oFE+H=+—
was determined as follows: Hfg N %5 IR
R e R
Overdue Overdue Overdue Overdue
by0-30  by31-60  by6l-90 over 90
Current days days days days Total
i i ) i
MM 0E30K  31FEeOK  61FEK MK At
31 December 2021
“EZ-EFZHZF-H
Weighted average expected loss rate
kSRRl kS 0.0108%  0.1149%  05721%  52309%  384385%
Gross carrying amount, net of specific
allowance (in HK$°000)
TREAE MR TR OB T T 1,182,898 111,264 42,758 13,659 3076 1,385,655
Loss allowance (in HK$°000)
BB (k¥ T ) 128 128 245 715 13,482 14,698
Overdue Overdue Overdue Overdue
by0-30  by31-60  by6l-90 over 90
Current days days days days Total
B 0F30K  31FEGOK  61F9K 9K 5t
31 December 2020
e A BT
Weighted average expected loss rate
AT 2 s 2R 0.0039%  00328%  03914%  09771%  10.6527%
Gross carrying amount, net of specific
allowance (in HK$’000)
REAE AT B OB T ) 1,040,673 123,770 28,920 17937 67,003 1,278,503
Loss allowance (in HK$°000)
BB (BT ) 41 41 113 175 7,159 7,529

Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

(it)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables
and contract assets are presented as
net impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against

the same line item.

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss

was immaterial.

For other financial assets at amortised
cost, including other receivables and
deposits, the Company has policies in
place to monitor the other debtors which
have a good credit history. The Company
has assessed that the 12 months expected
credit loss for these receivables is not
material, and thus, no loss allowance
provision is recognised at the end of the

reporting period.

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with

loan covenants.

Currently, the Group finances its working
capital requirements through a combination
of funds generated from operations and bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group has available unutilised banking facilities
of approximately HK$1,948,423,000 (2020:
HK$2,084,332,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3

3.1

(c)

S o I B o B ()

Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MsEkEREE )
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) B EEmE b (4
The following table details the Group’s NERFEIAEE RN A
remaining contractual maturity for its financial ARG HBIHE - BT
liabilities. For non-derivative financial ERAMTN S TRITIER
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based 7 A5 B T] RS B EOR K 2
on the contractual undiscounted cash flows of BEHM - UEREMEZ A4
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on BB G EH N - TR
which the Group is required to pay. The table CHFIFE KA B
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
Within 1-2 2-5
1 year years years Total
—4N —EW 4 WERE Hgt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
BT VT T BT T BT T
At 31 December 2021
AF T ZA=1—H
Trade and other payables
(excluding non-financial liabilities)
B 5 BIADRE A RS R @6 & A ) 1,007,326 - - 1,007,326
Bank borrowings (including interest)
AT E (LFEFE) 571,349 - - 571,349
Undiscounted lease liabilities
RGBT E A A 23,463 21,013 4,356 48,832
Derivative financial instruments
it & TR 585 - - 585
1,602,723 21,013 4,356 1,628,092
At 31 December 2020
REZZFREF A=+ —H
Trade and other payables
(excluding non-financial liabilities)
B 5 BIADREA IR R 46 & A ) 837,278 - - 837,278
Bank borrowings (including interest)
METMHEE (HFEFE) 380,778 - - 380,778
Undiscounted lease liabilities
KRB A 14,973 7,357 7,484 29,814
Derivative financial instruments
T & TR 12 - - 12
1,233,041 7,357 7,484 1,247,882
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the Company’s
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
net gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt/(net cash) is
calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current borrowings and lease liabilities as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) less short-term time
deposits and cash and bank balances.

The net gearing ratio at year end is as follows:

3

S 5 I B 4 B (A

3.2

A B A P
AEEEMEARZ H R R EA
B2 ] B A A AR S ME
Iy A ) B R B At [ R A At
Ry B R OEA 45 - DA AR IR AR
A ZR A DL 8 AR

Ty HERS B R B ARG AR
RE & T IR A T R 2 BB ~ 1
FETIR G  BATR B
A o

A ] DL B A B HE R e B
PEEAR o FHEA A R R
R LB R - EBR A,
(B i 30 1905 SRR B (L5 & i
B BRI 2 B K IR i
B SR A D) bR A7
AR MR AT A BRAR A

R ZFEAARLRIT

2021 2020
SR TR TR
HK$000 HK$’000
Tt Hiskiiam i
Total borrowings (Notes 16(a) and 32)
&S A% (Kt sE16(a) 232) 613,446 406,203
Less: bank balances and cash (Note 28)
W BRAT & R R B A (B 5E28) 713,934 637,753
Net cash ¥ 4 15 48 (100,488) (231,550)
Total equity /B #E 48 %8 1,855,860 1,796,318
Gearing ratio ¥ 4% £ fif lL % Nil & Nil &

As at 31 December 2021, there is net cash position.
Therefore, net gearing ratio is nil.

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities,
the Group is required to comply with the financial
covenants that the gearing ratio must be not more than
1.0 times.

The Group has complied with these covenants

throughout the reporting period.

WoE - —F+H=1+—H &
ATBATB A HIL 1 YR
BREELRAE -

MR8 A R 2 R AR
M TEAB LR AEHIELO
5 2 B 3258 o

74 B T 4 201 P 2 R U
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The carrying value of all financial assets less
impairment provision are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar

financial instruments.

The financial instruments measured at fair value are

disclosed by the following measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

At the end of the reporting period, listed investment
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 23), derivative financial
instruments (Note 27) and unlisted investment
classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Note 23) that are measured
at fair value are classified under level 1, level 2 and

level 3 respectively.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3

during the year.

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These

instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is

included in level 2.

All the resulting fair value estimates of the
Group’s forward foreign currency contracts are

included in level 2.

3 A bEE R ()
3.3 A PR R (A
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A JF Y 1 T R
T H (fl s 5h A 4 T A
Z (RS iR AGE 7
i SE o % SF b E D7 ik A
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument

is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value

financial instruments include:

. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for

similar instruments.

. The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
with the resulting value discounted back to

present value.

. Other techniques, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial

instruments.

All the resulting fair value estimates of the
Group’s unlisted investment are included in

level 3.

There were no other changes in valuation

techniques during the year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(a) Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details
of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed
in Note 3.1(b)(ii).

(b) Allowances for inventories
The management of the Group reviews an ageing
analysis at the end of the reporting period and makes
allowances for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for sales.
The management estimates the net realisable value
for such finished goods based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of the reporting period and

makes allowance for obsolete items.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relates to tax losses, depends on the management’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold and services provided by the Group to external
customers, net of returns, allowances, discounts and sales

related taxes.

L&

W gt 4 AR B B T AR RS B B R d
3 e 5 T S B R AT 2 RO (1 BR AR
B B - P R E MBI BLIE) -

Revenue recognised during the year is analysed as follows: ENE RIS Z T
2021 2020
e CE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#HT o BT T
Sales of goods &8 &1 5,341,858 4,653,879
Commission income 1 4 I i 13,470 11,543
Service fee income AR %5 % Ui % 54,650 49,021
Ticketing and touring income %515 A jif 4 U 4% 932 962
Others H At 1,004 767
5,411,914 4,716,172

SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 5k E B

The Chief Operation Decision-Maker (“CODM?”) has
been identified as directors of the Company. The CODM
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. It determined the
operating segments based on these reports. The Group is
currently organised into two operating segments - trading
and manufacturing. These segments are the basis on which

the Group reports its principal activities information.

Trading — trading and distribution of chemicals,
materials and equipment used in
the manufacturing of printed circuit

boards and electronic products

Manufacturing - manufacturing of electrical and

electronic products

TEUEE RO ([ E2EERRE ) #
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6 EBER (AE)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December HE - F -+ H=+—HILFE
2021 is as follows: 2 ER R

Trading Manufacturing Others  Eliminations Consolidated

B5% g HAts 116 88 Ha

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

W% T W T W T W T W% T

Revenue M &

External sales 71 8 5 4 3,084,022 2,265,126 62,766 - 5,411,914
Inter-segment sales 735 41 8% # & 478,994 3,235 34,266 (516,495) -
Total 4% 3,563,016 2,268,361 97,032 (516,495) 5,411,914

Timing of revenue recognition

TERR I 45 2 IR [H]

At a point in time i 5 —{H I ] 2 3,503,473 2,268,361 88,298 (502,868) 5,357,264

Over time i i [ 5 5% 59,543 - 8,734 (13,627) 54,650

3,563,016 2,268,361 97,032 (516,495) 5,411,914

Results % %
Segment results 7 ¥ 2 44 189,633 (51,624) (10,644) 277 127,642
Finance income il &I A 3,039 236 187 - 3,462
Finance costs Fill & 5 4 (1,576) (2,914) (184) - (4,674)
Segment operating profit/(loss)
SRR (R 191,096 (54,302) (10,641) 277 126,430
Share of profit of joint ventures
JE A & 2w 2 36 15,930
Profit before income tax B 7 15 B Al i 7| 142,360
Income tax expense 7 {7 3 (45,585)

Profit for the year 4% 4 & i £ 96,775



SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December

6

o1 5 & RL (A7)

BEEZ-ZELHE—HIEE

2020 is as follows: ZAERERNT ¢
Trading Manufacturing Others  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
25 ik b il A
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T T T T T
Revenue W 25
External sales 7§ & 48 2,199,885 2,459,292 56,995 - 4,716,172
Inter-segment sales 735 41 8% # & 306,716 3,186 28,562 (338,464) -
Total 424 2,506,601 2,462,478 85,557 (338,464) 4,716,172
Timing of revenue recognition
TR 45 2 b5 ]
At a point in time i 5 —{H I ] 2 2,456,943 2,462,478 76,294 (328,564) 4,667,151
Over time i I i #4 7 49,658 - 9,263 (9,900) 49,021
2,506,601 2,462,478 85,557 (338,464) 4,716,172
Results % %
Segment results 7 % & 128,677 26,010 (10,036) (2,181) 142,470
Finance income fl & It A 2,249 167 6 - 2,422
Finance costs Fill & 5 4 (3,247) (5,961) (396) - (9,604)
Segment operating profit/(loss)
AEEERA ) 127,679 20,216 (10,426) (2,181) 135,288
Share of profit of joint ventures
JE A & 2w 2 36 5,667
Profit before income tax B T 15 B i i £ 140,955
Income tax expense 7 {7 3 (24,470)
Profit for the year 4% 4 & i £ 116,485



6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021

6 rukE R (A7)

AR AR S — A2

are as follows: EHL AT
Trading  Manufacturing Others Consolidated
5 s HAts B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T T
Assets &
Segment assets 73 # & & 1,787,722 1,788,481 169,557 3,745,760
Liabilities £ fi{
Segment liabilities 73 # & & 773,148 1,015,228 101,524 1,889,900

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020

REECERET A= HZRE

are as follows: BB AT -
Trading Manufacturing Others Consolidated
85 34 HoAly ey
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T T T T T T T
Assets & 7
Segment assets 43 1 & /& 1,439,534 1,691,622 153,975 3,285,131
Liabilities £ f
Segment liabilities 73 & f& 607,936 840,866 40,011 1,488,813




6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the Group’s other segment information is as

follows:

6 rukE R (A7)

AL 2 HoAl oy BB R AT AR

Trading  Manufacturing Others Consolidated
5 s HAts B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z- -t A=t AR
Capital expenditure & 7 B 52 21,428 17,145 6,101 44,674
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
ESY NG S EiN 11,273 32,001 3,656 46,930
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
1 1 S A 8,120 2,017 12,211 22,348
Amortisation of intangible assets
SV 5 E 4 97 - - 97
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZHET A=+ —HIEEE
Capital expenditure & 4% B 37 6,967 38,659 6,596 52,222
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
ER N Ei 11,545 33,832 4,199 49,576
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
i R A 7,197 2,013 12,565 21,775
Amortisation of intangible assets
T B 97 - - 97
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6
Analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical market is

as follows:

gy WB & B (A7)
A2 40 i [t T 85 ) 03 2 AR R AT IR

2021 2020
e -
HK$°000 HK$’000
#WTou BT T

Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan
s~ P E N R B 3,697,254 2,904,784
Europe Rk 892,780 927,623
North America b 35 M 484,689 583,334
Others HAt 337,191 300,431
5,411,914 4,716,172

The total non-current assets other than intangible
assets and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other countries are HK$157,839,000
(2020: HK$101,517,000), HK$415,673,000 (2020:
HK$435,624,000) and HK$30,980,000 (2020:
HK$24,196,000), respectively.

A7 7 7 R~ R B A M R A B R 2 I
T AR ORI E R E
JE B IE K ) 4 Bl 2 s 19157,839,00000
(ZF = RAF - #¥101,517,00000)
7 415,673,000 (& AR - R
435,624,0007T) K #s #30,980,0007C (—
TR W %024,196,00000) ©

OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hfl it > 8
2021 2020
R F S
HK$°000 HK$°000
#WH T BT
Dividends from financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income
USRI AN I R E S & o 95t 249 352
Government subsidies (Note) B B (B 53) 13,423 26,708
Fair value losses on equity investments
at financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
e AR BB AR 4 2 4 il AR 150 2 T B 1R (1,654) (1,804)
Tooling income & H it A 31,673 -
43,691 25,256

Note: It represents subsidies mainly received from certain PRC
local government authorities (2020: PRC local government
authorities and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government). There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to these grants.

BERE - AR T rh B LT UG BB (—F
TR Ty BOR A B B A s
R H AT BB I R ) BE i Ml e i
S5 ] U 310 9 A 23 R 0 A At



8 OTHER EXPENSES 8 Hhpdk

Operating expenses are stated after charging/(crediting) the BB T RINBR T (FEA) A& AR
following: Y

2021 2020

R e e 40

HK$°000 HK$’000

b33 e T oo

Auditors’ remuneration: % B Al 4 :

— Audit services 1% IR B5 3,136 2,998

— Non-audit services F 2 % IR 1,920 425
Bank charges 817 % 5,937 5,249
Charitable donations 2& 3% 1 7 1,359 1,351
Consumables 78 #E il 27,754 13,946
COVID-19-related rent concessions
1 B 56 R 995 15 (COVID- 19) 40 BR il 4 48 - (305)
Expenses relating to short-term leases 57 HiTH & A B =~ B =2 1,654 2,051

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets

that are not shown above as short-term leases

BRI A b5 R 2 A A 2 AR (A A A B B X 19 18
Electricity, water and other utility 752 ~ 7K 2 fl HAth 2% F FIH 27,979 25,573
Freight and insurance i 2 AR B 34,728 27,826
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
W S ok 2 kR (I Es) 351 (3,902)
Marketing expenses 11 %5 3 Ji B 52 4,374 2,632
Net foreign exchange losses [ 5[5 15 15 %8 1,146 9,426
Office and factories expenses HF2S & K W7 B 2 20,422 17,657
Postage, telephone and fax #§# - 56 & 4 & 5,804 4,977
Repairs and maintenance HEAE TR 14,568 12,242
Storage 5 i 1,402 1,407
Transportation and travelling expenses 3¢ 4 2 7% i€ BH 32 23,774 19,152
Tax and surcharges T & Fff fin 2 I 18,633 14,224
Others (Note) HAth (B 5F) 25,074 31,929
220,034 188,876
Note: Others included professional service fees, research and Bffak o oA 35 S 2E MRS 2 - WEEERE ¥ -
development expenses, motor vehicle expenses, fuel costs, TRELBA T ~ BRBEAS ~ METE PS5 -

miscellaneous expenses etc.
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OPERATING PROFIT 9 RKEuMN
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the B A TR (REA) R A& TR
following: G
2021 2020
e =
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T T T T
(Reversal of provision for)/allowance for obsolescence
of inventories
B A7 B (A A (786) 1,511
Net fair value losses/(gains) on derivative financial instruments
i & T H 2 N FE kR (i) 55 1,324 (43)
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EEfmAM X (BiHEEFHS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2021 2020
e B i
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T T T T
Salaries, wages, commission and allowances
W~ TE - e K 633,291 580,812
Share options granted to directors and employee
Ry #EE LR W 1,125 3,400
Pension costs - contributions to defined contribution plans (Note (a))
IBAR  BAS — 1) B I AR 3R (Mt Ga)) 62,906 42,054
Pension costs — contribution to defined benefit plans (Note 33)
B AR B A — 1) B E A R w4 (R RE33) 164 185
697,486 626,451




10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Where there are employees who leave the defined
contribution plans prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.
There were no forfeited contributions utilised in this

manner during the year (2020: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, there are no
significant forfeited contributions, which arose upon
employees leaving the retirement schemes and which
are available to reduce the contributions payable by

the Group in future years.

The total employer’s contribution to the above
retirement schemes and other local arrangement
charged to the consolidated profit or loss, net of
forfeited contributions, amounted to approximately
HK$10,189,000 (2020: HK$9,631,000).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include five (2020:
five) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the

analysis shown in Note 11.

10
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HONG KONG LISTING RULES)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set

out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s

services as a director, whether of the Company or its

subsidiary undertaking:

11 % 30 25 % HE 25 (R 08 75 o (2 Wl
By (38622%) 53830 ~ (2 ] (#
TN R E R B (622G %)
B 7 s bl BRI 22 B 5 8% )

(a) EFEREFELTHABZHE
WEREF - —HF 1+ =+—
HIFFEER S ESR R EETEHA
B2 #HMES T -

T 2 A % ) S B Ja 3 W 2 B
T £ A0 IR B 2 N A s i
b E

Other emoluments
paid or receivable in
respect of director’s

other services in

connection with the

management of the

affairs of the Company

or its subsidiaries

Employer’s undertaking

contribution o~ HEFREHEREH

Discretionary  Allowances and aretirement A S E A
bonuses (note)  benefits in kind  benefit scheme b2 3 ] pA )

Fees Salary e HURER  BIKEAGH T i L o Total
4 #4 (k) i b ES B2 S um 2 it
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
iSO T T T i Eon i SO T
Executive directors: 9175 %
Senta Wong (Chairman) T 5 (%) 190 9,465 1,591 1,082 49 - 12,77
Edward Ying Chun Tsui
(Group President and Chief Executive Officer)
R (EEESREIRAR) 190 5,656 1173 51 283 - 7,353
Byron Shu Chan Ho (Chief Financial Officer)
R (B aR) 190 5,169 1,133 51 258 - 6,801
Bengie Man Hang Kwong 515 120 4915 - 51 246 - 530
Vinci Wong T B 120 1,236 103 51 18 - 1,528
Victor Jui Shum Chang 54 19 2205 1,562 51 18 - 4,046
Non-executive directors: FHITE 5
Hamed Hassan EI-Abd 120 - - 51 - 480 651
Andrew Sheu, Hsu Hung Chieh (note i)
iz AliRa 9 148 - 51 - - 293
Independent non-executive directors:
IEE L
Yip Wai Chun 4 5 120 1] - 51 - - 31
Leung Kam Fong 4 % 120 60 - 51 - - Bl
Philip Wan Chung Tse 7% 1 120 60 - 5l - - Bl
Arnold Hin Lin Tse #f 84 120 - - 51 - - 1
Andrew Yiu Wing Lam {4 120 60 - 51 - - 8l

1814 29,054

5,562 1,694 1212 480 39,876
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 11
(DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HONG KONG LISTING RULES) (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set
out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s

services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking:

Discretionary

R A K B AR (AR A o (O Wl Bk
Bl (5B622%) 33830k ~ (4 W] (#
2 w0 45 BB BRI (5 622G )
B s vl SR 2 B 98 (A

(a)

Allowances and

ERERERTRANBZME (44)

WRECEEE S
FI AL A7 4 4 3 BT A
B2 HMRsImT

VeI A o ) SCHC WY & 28/ 2 B
i 2 Bt AR B 2 A O A s ik
Z M4

Other emoluments
paid or receivable in
respect of director’s

other services in

connection with the

management of the

affairs of the Company

or its subsidiaries

Employer’s undertaking
contribution to fEFRMLAER
aretirement A AIH KB

bonuses (note) ~ benefits inkind  benefit scheme ZEBAB I
Fees Salary Mifka BHLEN  BEHH s 2 M f Total
ik ¥ (Hi3) M ZREMRS felz K4 st
HKS'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT T BT
Executive directors: T % :
Senta Wong (Chairman) T 5 (%) 188 9,003 1,991 1,048 419 - 12,849
Edward Ying Chun Tsui
(Group President and Chief Executive Officer)
RIER (CHESRRTIAR) 188 5265 1511 150 264 - 739%
Byron Shu Chan Ho (Chief Financial Officer)
T (B 188 4830 141 150 ul - 6881
Bengie Man Hang Kwong 1§14 120 4,59 762 150 230 - 5,856
Vinci Wong T &7 120 1,155 100 150 18 - 1,543
Victor Jui Shum Chang 555 188 2,080 1,107 150 18 - 3543
Non-executive directors: F HTEE :
Hamed Hassan El-Abd 120 - - 150 - 480 750
Andrew Sheu, Hsu Hung Chieh (note i)
AR () 186 285 - 150 - - 61
Independent non-executive directors:
IFhES:
Yip Wai Chun $4 % 120 60 - 150 - - 330
Leung Kam Fong 4 % 120 60 - 150 - - 330
Philip Wan Chung Tse 7% 1 120 60 - 150 - - 30
Amold Hin Lin Tse 1% f 120 - - 150 - - m
Andrew Yiu Wing Lam {4 120 60 - 150 - - 330
1,898 27472 6,943 3,048 1,190 480 41,031
Note: Discretionary bonuses are determined based on [t 2% WIS fE4L T RBEE

performance.
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 11
(DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HONG KONG LISTING RULES) (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

A M A (B9 A ¥ (O Wl B
fl) (5622%) 5B383Mk ~ (4l (%
7 W R 4R BB M) (3R 622G %)
B v b BB 2 B e 9 ) (A7)

(a) FHFREBITHARZME 44

Aggregate emoluments

paid to or receivable

Aggregate emoluments
paid to or receivable
by directors in respect
of their services as directors,
whether of the Company

or its subsidiaries undertaking

by directors in respect
of their other services
in connection with the
management of the affairs
of the Company or its

subsidiaries undertaking

L SR A 2 ] B L O A A 2 )
P IR 2 ) 9 4 o B J 2 W) 2 BB A B 2 At Total Total
T O F o M e T AR RO T A o O T < A A5t Mt
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
R ZF0FF RIS ZF2%TF ZF 8 DR 0FF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T ot T i T ot
1,814 1,898 38,062 39,133 39,876 41,031

None of the directors waived any emoluments during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits in respect
of their services to the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year (2020: Nil).

(¢) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year, the Company did not pay any
consideration to any third parties for making available

directors’ services to the Company (2020: Nil).

WHRE R CECRE
FoAS TR B
AT TP

(b) 3 Z I8 PRHE A B Bl I R

AN RS g e A R RCH
WA Ja 2 ) 2 3 e 5 T 2 i R
Sz AT T 28 A ) R A 2 (—
TFAE IR -

() WiERMBEFMBmE FHE =T
ZH
AR o A E S A o ] R R AR
RS I 1) AE A 55 = O S AHE
AR (& A ) -
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HONG KONG LISTING RULES) (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
entered into by the Company or subsidiaries
undertaking of the Company, where applicable, in
favour of the directors, or body corporate controlled
by or entities connected with any of the directors at
the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Note:

(i) Retired on 29 June 2021.

FINANCE COSTS, NET

11

R R HE S (R A5 9 (A Rl
By (38622%) 53830 ~ (2 ] (#
TN R E R B (622G %)
B bl B Bl i8R ) (4F)

(d)

(e)

BB RES - ZFERZ 2R
RN MBS e B R Bk - B
R R 5 2 &R

TS H BAE AR AT R[] > AR 23 7]
o AR 2 w2 B JE 28 R () S
WRTSLE R E S - AR THEF S
RN R B AE A A B
AT S R
Mh2e 5 (% R4 - ) -

HHERRZY ~ RPEGHHZEHK
A 4k

TS H BAE AT AT RS ] > A2 ]
M AR AR 2\ 2 B RT S B AR
LHEB AR L ERL Y ~ R
B H B B R A AT R
G

Wi 3

i) MoEZFARAZTAHAE
£ o

12 RBh&ERA > H#

2021 2020
TR R
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T
Interest income on: *IJ AE\ L&}\ :
— bank deposits #1777 K 3,363 2,339
— others HAth 99 83
__________________________________________________________________________________ 3462 .. 2422
Interest expense on: FIE T
— bank borrowings 4R 17 & £¥ (4,168) (8,789)
— lease liabilities i 15 £ f (506) (815)
(4,674) (9,604)

Finance costs, net Bl & WA > 1540

(1,212) (7,182)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13 s

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$ 000
W T BT T
Current income tax R {8 i1 15 8t
— Hong Kong profits tax 7 5 Fll 15 Bl - -
— PRC corporate income tax " [ 4 2 it 15 8 28,818 11,638
— Taiwan corporate income tax & ¥ 1 & i /3 8i 15,075 11,062
— Other jurisdictions H: At ] 32 4 [ 2,549 1,561
46,442 24,261
Over provision in prior years #& £ 4F i %5 #5 #§
— Hong Kong 7 s - -
— Other jurisdictions including the PRC and Taiwan
Fofty ®] s Ml > G0 4E I K B i (203) (434)
(203) (434)
Deferred income tax (Note 21) #& € BT 1584 (Bff 5121) (7,687) (2,850)
Withholding tax on dividends paid by subsidiaries
L BRI 2 R IR A i B 6,007 2,169
Withholding tax on management/service fee paid by subsidiaries
BEMATC AR MR 1026 1324
45,585 24,470

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided for at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit for the year as the
Group has sufficient tax losses carried forward to set off
against the estimated assessable profit. (2020: Hong Kong
profits tax had not been provided for as the Group had no
estimated assessable profit for the year). The subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are subject to corporate income tax rate of 25% (2020:
25%). The subsidiaries in Taiwan are subject to corporate
income tax rate of 20% (2020: 20%). Taxation arising in
other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

H 7 A% 42 8 2 7R R B TE s 4E 2 DA K 8
il 51 HE B U ] > AR 4B B ST R AR I
2 W R A5 B A R B v R 4 B %
16.5% st B (R T4 - iR AL
] AT 79 SN 06 A 55 B SRR s > A 4R
] 317 o ol 7 s R A B ST R ) o R
e N R AEAE (A ]) A7 2 a2 A
TRAR25% (ZF ZF4 1 25%) Bl BN
B - & 82 B A A HIE20%
(ZF R 2 20%) Bl R A KT 5
it o o Ath ] v RE R 2 ol T e A B D 0
HE L 0 ) 2 LR FHAL o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
applicable in Hong Kong to profits of the group companies

as follows:

13

P f B Sy (AE)
AR 13 B BT A5 T da A 2 A T B [
I E R4 A s R B AR R 2
Bz A8

2021 2020
—FRI 4 —EF T
HK$°000 HK$’000
¥ T T T
Profit before income tax & I 15 B 51 5 Fl 142,360 140,955
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)
e B R16.5% (% —F4F 1 16.5%) w1 2 BLIA 23,489 23,258
Effect of different tax rate of operations in other jurisdictions
oAt = 35 I K ST 2 AR B R 2 R B 8,420 4,521
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes
AT B S22 BB R 1,915 1,773
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes
P HRR B A 2 B 3 2 (2,448) (6,641)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
5B 1 S il R A R 2 BIE S 1R (3,873) (3,248)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
AR e R B JE s 1R 2 BB R 8,390 3,854
Effect of tax exemptions granted to foreign subsidiaries
i85 1 W JB 2> W) T R S T e 2 R B - (38)
Over provision in prior years & fi: 4F Ji 1 %8 3§ (203) (434)
Withholding tax on dividends, management/service fee paid by subsidiaries
L B 2> W) IR AT BB, ~ A B HRES # A A A 7,033 3,493
Others H At 2,862 (2,068)
Income tax expense JIr 153 B 32 tH 45,585 24,470




14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

14 FRER
(a) A
g B FE A 8 R T A A ) ME 25 BF
A EAG R B DL AR BB AT
S AT B B

2021 2020
SR e e o
Profit attributable to owners of the Company
(Hong Kong thousand dollars)
A FHE £ A R AG R A G W T o) 72,013 101,185
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousands)
C B 47 2 268 s o - 3% e () 729,748 729,448
Basic earnings per share (Hong Kong cents per share)
T M B AR 2 R (45 P s Al 9.87 13.87

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 as the share options of the Company
have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per
share and are ignored in the calculation of diluted

earnings per share (2020: same).

(b) B
B A AR A ) 22 B PR S A B AR 2
I EL AT P 19 800 SN AE SO
PR R AR T DL 2 > ik R
SRR CRFE T A=
H 1E4F BE 2 1 B 28 R 46 ) i 1
Je BEAR A (AR A e



15 DIVIDENDS 15 kA

2021 2020
SR8 TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT ok e I
Interim dividend, paid, of HK$0.02 (2020: HKS$ nil) per share
RIS > © AR H0.0200 (& &4 ) 14,589 -
Final dividend, proposed, of HK$0.03 (2020: HK$0.06) per share
REME - R H0.037C (& “F4E  #10.067T) 21,892 43,767
36,481 43,767
The final and interim dividends paid in 2021 were T T —EIRAT 2 R B K B R
HK$43,767,000 (HK$0.06 per share) and HK$14,589,000 A Al B s 1 43,767,0007C (4 1% #E H0.06
(HK$0.02 per share) respectively. No dividend was paid in I6) Mk 514,589,000 (4 A% i 0.02
2020. J6) o i R AR 2 B -
A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December A TE T TENA T HZ ORI AE
2021 of HK$0.03 per share amounting to a total dividend Ke FEREnEE - —4F+—"H
of HK$21,892,000 is to be proposed at the annual general = HLR AR R AT R A R v
meeting on 22 June 2022. These consolidated financial 0.037C » M S A% /3 W #:21,892,000 7T °

statements do not reflect this dividend payable. FEAE A DR TS IR I S R R A RS,



16 LEASES

(a)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following

amounts relating to leases:

16 HE
(a)

o OF B B0 R i
aFEERMIRBEURL T REE
Pt

2021 2020
R TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Moo

Right-of-use assets i il i & &
Land use rights - Hb (i F # 11,140 11,501
Buildings ##5* 48,415 31,225
Equipment #% 168 159
Vehicles 1< HL 435 13
Others HAh 42 66
60,200 42,964

Lease liabilities fl & £ &

Current i 2 23,046 14,584
Non-current FF i ) 25,097 14,611
48,143 29,195
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ERNFEZHERAEEE BB

were HK$39,228,000 (2020: HK$17,400,000).

39.228,0007T (% — FAE : #E e
17,400,0007C) ©



16 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the profit or loss

The profit or loss shows the following amounts

16 iﬂ.% (/’E)

(b)

T TR A8 A R 4

B mBRUTHRBEARZ &

relating to leases: HH
2021 2020
Fo—fF . i
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
li: T T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
155 F1) HE ¢ 7 2 97 8 il
Land use rights + Hiifi Ffj R 361 361
Buildings # 5 21,770 21,203
Equipment % ff 43 41
Vehicles 731 156 152
Others HAt 18 18
6 22,348 21,775
Interest expense (include in finance cost)
FLE ST (FEA BB A A 12 506 815
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in other expenses)
SR I AEL A B 2 B S Rt A LA B S ) 8 1,654 2,051
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets
that are not shown above as short-term leases
(included in other expenses)
BLRR EABUR B E 2 REEEEHEA
B 2 B 32 (RE A HA B 32 A) 8 19 18
COVID-19-related rent concessions
(included in other expenses)
1 256 IR % 5 (COVID-19) A B H <5 48 2
(it A H At B S A) 8 - (305)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was

HK$22,440,000 (2020: HK$23,867,000).

TR T AR 2 B A A
Ry ¥22.440,00000 (% A

#:#623,867,0007C) ©



16 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(c)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices and certain
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed period of 1 to 3 years but may have extension
options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose

covenants.

(i)  Extension option
Extension options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These terms
are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing contracts. The majority
of extension options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.
No lease payments made for the year ended 31

December 2021 were optional.

16 ME (4#)

()

A 52 1 2 A B NS B S E AR O

A AR F A S 22 T o T
- HEGHENWE B =420
TESARRATSL - M ] REFL A S A 4
HE o R AR R ) e p k-
E — RPN B ek S et - i
B Tt e AN e A ] 22

(i) EHERERE
AEBMZ Y EMBE S E
MR FERE o S RFOHE LR
REBESH N EEE
W o FRA 2 K 2 BUE SR
FEREAE W eh A 4R 1 T A 15 i
B A AT - R
St A=t HIRE
JiE S A 2 AR B AN RN I g 4
‘%o



17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17 W3 ~ B Bk i

Leasehold
improve-
Freehold ments,
land and furniture
buildings and
in overseas Factory  Machinery fixtures
WA premises and  FEWE Motor
¥MELN  inthePRC  equipment #{% - Fffl vehicles Total
REF  hBIRRE RS RRME BB R bk
HK$000  HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
T EWTe  EWTx BT EWT BT
Net book amount at 1 January 2021
MZZZ 4~ —H IR 5 58,585 296,332 89,768 20,862 9,537 475,084
Exchange translation adjustments [ 5t i % 963 12 1,395 7 96 2,473
Additions 7 & 13,874 604 26,347 1,290 2,559 44,674
Disposals i £ (1,159) - (2,503) - (1,616) (5,278)
Depreciation {ff (1,226) (13,700) (24,718) (4,363) (2,923) (46,930)
At 31 December 2021 R ZF =~ =+—H 71,037 283,248 90,289 17,796 7,653 470,023
At 31 December 2021 R =% Z— 4+ ZH =+ —H
Cost LA 88,050 499,758 629,587 164,199 30,933 1,412,527
Accumulated depreciation 2 3t 47 & 17,013)  (216,510)  (539,298)  (146,403) (23,280)  (942,504)
Net book amount i {F {f 71,037 283,248 90,289 17,796 7,653 470,023
Net book amount at 1 January 2020
MR RE—A—H IR E 58,582 303,510 89,626 14,803 8,004 474,527
Exchange translation adjustments [f 5, i % 3,024 27 2,101 101 160 5413
Additions ¥ & 247 1,022 31,688 14,864 4,401 52,222
Disposals } (2,099) (317) (4,937) (12) (137) (7.502)
Depreciation #ff & (1,169) (7.910) (28,710) (8.896) (2,891) (49,576)
At 31 December 2020 ¢ ~“F = FFE+ A =+—H 58,585 296,332 89,768 20,862 9,537 475,084
At 31 December 2020 j* ~ZF ~F4FE+ A=+ —H
Cost A& 74,450 499,127 619,675 162,308 33,804 1,389,454
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
St E R (15865)  (202,795)  (529,907) (141,446 (24357)  (914,370)
Net book amount [ /i 1§ { 58,585 296,332 89,768 20,862 9,537 475,084
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18

Intangible assets represent computer software, technical

know-how acquired by the Group and internally generated

product development costs. Movements in intangible assets

during the year are as follows:

I TE S R AN B T I 2 IR -
fll R0Vl % A1 0 7 AR 2 E i B B A o 4
N EE 2 ZBWT

Internally
generated
product
development
Computer Technical costs
software know-how W Z Total
g g ma R P AR st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BTt BT BT BTt
Year ended 31 December 2021
BEF - —Etr-H=t—HILEE
Opening net book amount 4] i 7l ¥ {f - mn - 3N
Amortisation # 5 - 97) - 97)
Closing net book amount # A i i (€ - 275 - 275
At 31 December 2021 it ~F ——#+_"H=+—H
Cost LA 12,610 8,586 10,769 31,965
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
2 B (A (12,610) (8,311) (10,769) (31,690)
Net book amount [ fii i ( - 275 - 275
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-ZHE+-A=+—HILEEE
Opening net book amount 34 i 7 {F { - 469 - 469
Amortisation % i - 97 - 97)
Closing net book amount £ i iff 1% (i - 372 - 372
At 31 December 2020 8 ~F ~FE+ " A=+—H
Cost A 12,610 8,586 10,769 31,965
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
2 B A (12,610 (8,214) (10,769) (31,593)
Net book amount [ [if {¥ ( - 372 - 372
Amortisation of HK$97,000 (2020: HK$97,000) are #H297.0007C (. F FAE - #%97,000
included in “depreciation and amortisation” in the JC) Z S AR TE SR R [ I

consolidated profit or loss.

3 A o
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint
ventures. The Group has joint control over these
arrangements as under the contractual agreements,
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the

agreements for all relevant activities.

The Group’s joint arrangements are structured as limited
companies and provide the Group and the parties to the
agreements with rights to the net assets of the limited
companies under the arrangements. Therefore, these entities

are classified as joint ventures of the Group.

19

CE- VL F4 £

AL A LS BN AS0% B A o A
A5 AR DR & 4 1h el 5% 45 2 PEHE AT L[]
PEHIRE > S DA BRI B 2 ZE T ek A
FI#ITT 2 —BR -

AEBEGEREZEMBARAFA > MW
SR R B s T A T IR S R P
AEEARAFZEREFHE - FL > %
FEBEPBAAERZGEAT -

2021 2020

RS =

HK$°000 HK$’000

W T BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost JF I i B fy > ¥ A< 5 5
Share of undistributed post-acquisition result

of unlisted joint ventures
JEAG T LTl 58 A R 2 R T MO AR S A 18,683 6,645
18,688 6,650

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s

interests in its joint ventures.

7 48 K A S VT R A 2 AR
Ff -
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group as at 31
December 2021.

HEARZHER (4
LB 27 ) S Sy g S Rty el &
ZAREMEERNT -

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ nominal value of
registration/ issued capital held
operation by the Group
GR U R A 45 B P
Name of entity LV -1 T 1T A Principal activities
AN 3 8 WAL R
Wesi Technology Limited Hong Kong 50%  Semi conductor equipment
o distribution
3 B2 B
WA 5 A R Taiwan 50%  Semi conductor equipment
= distribution
O B2 L B
W 5 (i) A BRA PRC 50%  Semi conductor equipment
H distribution
O B2 L A

Set out below is the summarised consolidated financial
information for the joint ventures which are accounted for
using the equity method.

T R S AR B A A S
DF S 5 R A

Summarised consolidated balance sheet FHEEAETME
2021 2020
e —
HK$°000 HK$°000
¥ T T
Current assets i B & /&
Cash and cash equivalents 5 4 & Bl 4 % {5 JH H 43,909 14,347
Other current assets 7 8 & & 15,569 9,218
Total current assets Ji B & & 2440 59,478 23,565
Non-current assets FF it B & & 76 249
Current liabilities i B £ &
Trade and other payables and accruals
B 5 EAT R~ HoAth B AT RR 3K % B w1 2 (1,302) (2,607)
Financial liabilities 4 fil £ & 3) (200)
Other current liabilities JAth i B £ {5 (19,109) (7,027)
Total current liabilities Ji B & & 58 % (20,414) (9,834)
Non-current financial liabilities FF I B 4 it £ {5 - -
Non-current liabilities JF Jii B) & & (1,764) (680)
Net assets & 7 % # 37,376 13,300
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 19 H8ANZHELR ()
Summarised consolidated income statement A BRI 3 B

2021 2020
B S
HK$°000 HK$’000
#WH T BT T
Revenue U 5 80,429 35,080
Interest income A & It A 1 1
Depreciation and amortisation /7 8 K f#f &4 220 423
Interest expense F|& 37 2 11
Income tax expense JIr 15 Bl 32 6,219 910
Profit for the year A< 4F i ¥ #| 32,692 12,188

The information above reflects the amounts presented in
the financial statements of the joint ventures, adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and

the joint ventures, if any.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2021 are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Summarised financial information on subsidiary with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised consolidated financial
information for Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company listed in Taiwan which has non-

controlling interests that are material to the Group.

20

EAE R W A R B IR B A
SR WOMAEHEGEAFRRZ G
FRECHR 22 BAR PR () -

RS & 2 W)
RARR-E -+ _HA=1+—HZ
BB > T R AE O A OF BB SR M
5140 ©

i A7 T K 4 ) B O W] 2
B R

N SCH B A A AR T R R JE
P VERE SR 2 A Y F B ¥ TR JE 4
B B B A R 7 2 & OF BB EOR
e -



20

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Wit J&§ 2 W) ()

Summarised consolidated balance sheet e EAELENE
2021 2020
e e o TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Current i B
Assets & E 402,036 280,016
Liabilities £ & (193,688) (95,362)
Total net current assets I B & i 44 ¥ #H 208,348 184,654
Non-current JE i B
Assets & & 97,569 84,392
Liabilities & 1& (11,069) (8,900)
Total non-current net assets JF i By | sy 86500 75,492
Net assets & & i & 294,848 260,146
Accumulated non-controlling interest 22 F1 JF ¥ il 14 1 45
At subsidiary level NN - 188
At consolidation level F* & ff J& I 95,997 84,638
95,997 84,826
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20 KA W ()
Summarised consolidated income statement A OF 1 18 2 g
2021 2020
SR R E
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T
Revenue % 566,050 367,288
Profit before income tax B Jir #4 Bt Hif ¥ £ 93,337 55,661
Income tax expense T 158 3¢ th (17,819) (8,869)
Profit for the year 7 4% J i il 75,518 46,792
Other comprehensive loss H fill 5 £ & 18 (3,314) (1,667)
Total comprehensive income %7 £ WX #5 #8 #H 72,204 45,125
Profit allocated to non-controlling interests
43 HC 2 IF ¥ o 1 4 A 2 v A
At subsidiary level Jit [l & 23 & Jg 1H 261 119
At consolidation level it & Jg Ifi 24,502 15,196
24,763 15,315
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
FAY T I T )k RE A 2 B S
At subsidiary level i [t J& 2 =] & - -
At consolidation level 7 & 1 & M 13,825 4,987
13,825 4,987
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20 FH)B AW ()
Summarised consolidated cash flows A OF Bl 4 U =
2021 2020
SE S

HK$°000 HK$’000

#WH T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities R B E K2 B &R &
Cash generated from operations #8225 % it #3 Bl 4 136,019 74,884
Interest received B Y F & 572 854
Income tax paid £ 1+ ir 15 i (14,609) (5,158)
Net cash from operating activities B2 ZH I S B & FH 121,982 70,580
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities
BEEEH W) i35 43 (17,732) 3,390
Net cash used in financing activities
ik B 5 By P B 42 (44,457) (16,731)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Bl B B 4 5 A6 H 39 hn 3 %1 59,793 57,239
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
AR 2 B Bl e EIEH 196,569 132,159
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents
Bl R Bl 5 (M IH B 2 M 5L 2 4,180 7,171
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
RERZ B & LB S5 HEER 260,542 196,569
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 21 EE B

Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income

taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

WAL B A TR A B AT AT RO RER]
e B S8 S L ST I AR
FLIE S iy 75 50 J 7] — P BOH A By > AR AE
FrieBlEE, (AR TLUESH -

2021 2020
SRR TERTRAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
W T T T
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12 months
120 42 05 I 2 7 SE ol I 22,634 14,602




21

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during

21

WS e 13 B8 (A7)
AE R A I A T 2 AR ] — B RS O

the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of B2 &GN T EBERIEEE
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: (BfE) 28y
Accelerated
tax Estimated
depreciation tax losses Others Total
R B EYTE Al A B IR R HoAt At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T T BT T
At 1 January 2020 * — X “&F4FE—H—H (363) 6,310 5,213 11,160
Credited/(charged) to consolidated
profit or loss (Note 13)
A PR FEAL (FUER) (B 3E13) (71) 1,730 1,191 2,850
Credited to other comprehensive income
i A AR A W AR /A - - 281 281
Exchange difference FE 5. 2= %8 - - 311 311
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
A S 2 S i e N = )4
& —F—H—H (434) 8,040 6,996 14,602
Credited/(charged) to consolidated
profit or loss (Note 13)
A RS FEAL (FUER) (B 3E13) 214 7,824 (351) 7,687
Credited to other comprehensive income
A H At A7 A Wi w A - - 187 187
Exchange difference FE 5 2= %A - - 158 158
At 31 December 2021
BREER S ZH =+ —H (220) 15,864 6,990 22,634

At 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses,
for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the
balance sheet, of approximately HK$384,376,000 (2020:
HK$361,650,000) available to offset against future
taxable profits. Included in unused tax losses are losses
of approximately HK$73,665,000 (2020: HK$76,355,000)
that will be expired in 1 to 9 years. Other tax losses can be

carried forward indefinitely.

WoF A= 1T—H, &AREH
A By BT 5 18 40 #5 19384,376,00070
A 361,650,00000) A
T B o 2 B R B Uik A o M NI 4 R 5% 4%
e $EUI R AR R TN R RROR I B I
E o AB I BLIE R PR — L
A TR B 1A 2 R 4 W H573,665,0000T (-
T AR ¥676,355,00000) o HAhBL
TH Jies 8 H1) mT 4 R 1A 45 o

(ZF =%
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 22 WEWEGZERTHR
The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEEFEA LT & LR
2021 2020
TR AR CERCERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
b3 BT T
Financial assets 4 il % &
Financial assets at amortised cost: 1% # $ il A8 1|l 22 4 il & 2 -
Trade and other receivables (Note 25)
5 5y B FUAb RE WO R (B 5E25) 1,412,088 1,303,528
Short-term time deposit (Note 28)
Ji 31 E W AE K (M R 28) 31,619 39,758
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 28)
Bl R Bl S EHIE H (K EE28) 682,315 597,995
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (Note 23(a))
AR B I AR A a2 8 (M aE23(a) 32,439 13,034
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 23(e))
NN IR RO A E #2 2 a E A (BT 3E23(e)) 2,786 4,362
Derivative financial instruments (Note 27)
A A T (B 5E27) - 227
Deposits &% 4 5,269 4,320
2,166,516 1,963,224
2021 2020
TR AR TERTEAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT ok e
Financial liabilities 4 il £ {&
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: %4 £ 5 A ¥ i 2 4= fil & 1% -
Trade and other payables (excluding non-financial
liabilities) (Note 34)
B oy B HA EAT BR 3K O35 3F & /il B i) (B 5E34) 1,007,326 837,278
Bank borrowings (Note 32)
AT B (KF5E32) 565,303 377,008
Lease habllmes (Note 16)
LB B i (K aE16) 48,143 29,195
Derivative financial instruments (Note 27)
1A 4 T (B 5E27) 585 12
1,621,357 1,243,493

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period
is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
mentioned above.

RS 7R B T EL A B 2 2 R
T W FE3 A A o W R 2 B £ 4
TELKR B L 45 e R0



23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME AND THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Financial assets at fair value through other

23 HACPAL AR KA At 55 5 W 4R
BB\ 48 38 2 4 il &

(a) A PRI A 4% H WK

comprehensive income include the following: B ERRE T A :
2021 2020
e SE
HK$°000 HK$°000
W Tou BT
Financial instruments level 3: 3 < fl T & :
Equity investments in unlisted equity securities
TR I b TR B S 2 A B 32,439 13,034

The unlisted equity securities represent investments
in private entities incorporated in Taiwan, the British
Virgin Islands and Hong Kong and are denominated in

the following currencies:

B BRABRRER G E - SEAE
T MR B B A i R A 2 FA N
AR ZBE > TR T BRSIE

2021 2020
TR TR TR

HK$°000 HKS$’000

W% T o0 T

HKS$ # % 25,000 6,000
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD”) # & ¥ (T# & ¥ 1) 7,439 7,034
32,439 13,034

(b) Movement of financial assets at fair value through

(b) AP AR B 5 A I ik 45 5 i

other comprehensive income is analysed as follows: mZEMEEZZEB N WT
2021 2020
SE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T BT T
At beginning of the year i 4F- 4] 13,034 31,855
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income
F2 A AR B A A AR5 Ui #2 2
SREE 2 N E s () 19,258 (19,156)
Exchange gains [ 58 Ui % 147 335
At end of the year 4 K 32,439 13,034




23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME AND THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(¢) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in level 3 fair value measurements:

Fair value at
31 December
2021
?
R A
28
=
Z AP Unobservable
HK$’000 Note inputs*
WL MR RBIEE A

23 HACPAL AR KA At 55 5 W 4R
BB N\ A8 28 2 S & A (A7)

il 4 T A\ B B2y oF- (i 2 B AR
AR TR 3G
ZHERAABERIA 2 E R E R

Range
of inputs

LN

Relationship

of unobservable
inputs to

fair value

AL B o A\ B
PR 2 B 1R

Unlisted equity securities 25,000 (i) Enterprise
denominated in HK$ multiples

LA W s 2 F i (e LR
FBEA 78 F

Discount for
lack of
marketability

B2 TG R
HE B

7.02

15%

A change in the enterprise
multiples by +10%
would increase
the fair value by
HK$5,000,000

1 S B2 B+10%

A 38 10 (i s
5,000,00075

A change in the enterprise
multiples by -10%
would decrease
the fair value by
HK$4,000,000

1 A5 B E-10%
D A -1 s W
4,000,0007T

A change in the
discount for lack
of marketability by
+1,000 basis points
would decrease
the fair value by
HK$1,000,000

i 2 T 855 L i B
£ 8)+1,000{H £ 2
D 2 W
1,000,0007C



23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME AND THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

(¢) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

(Continued)

Fair value at
31 December

2021
i
T ey

2R
=t
2ZAFE
HK$°000
T 7

Unobservable
Note inputs*

Fif Rk A T 9B ¢ i A+

T oy PN IR B 5O\ e Ath 55 5 WK 43
BB N\ A8 28 2 S & A (A7)

il 06 i A\ B Sy P 2 B AR (AT)

Range
of inputs

LN

Relationship

of unobservable
inputs to

fair value

AL B i A\ B
O PR 2 B AR

A change in the
discount for lack of
marketability by -1,000
basis points would
increase the fair value
by HK$2,000,000

e 22 T 3 i A 1 O B
5 10-1,0001 A& B
s A
#%:2,000,00070

Unlisted equity securities
denominated in NTD
ke tesiEz
I T A 2

7,439

Discount for
lack of
marketability

B Z T 85 i
B B

30% to 80%
30% % 80%

A change in the
discount for lack of
marketability by
+/- 1,000 basis points
would decrease/
increase the fair value
by HK$1,137,000

B 2 17 855 U A Y B
B H+,/-1,0001H 5 2
AL 5 FE
#%1,137,00070

32,439

Note (i): Enterprise multiples = enterprise value/earnings

before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization

* There were no significant inter-relationships between
unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

B 5EG) -

1 3 % W= 2E B A
B BUIE - PR RO T 2
A

AN ] B A [ 4 ]
ERZ VAN Pa DN N |
(-3



23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME AND THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Valuation process used for fair value measurements
categorised within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The Group engages external, independent and
qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the
Group’s unlisted equity securities at the end of every
financial year. As at 31 December 2021, the fair
values of the unlisted equity securities have been
determined by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory

Limited mainly.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

()

T oy PN IR B 5O\ e Ath 55 5 WK 43
BB N\ 38 2 S & B (AF)

(d)

(e)

R oy A PR B3R Z &
P A BT

ARSI SN B A A
L 5 B B4 1 e 4
S LT S L AT - B
A= R WK
AR 2 AV (8 B A R AR
S A B B

AP AMR KB 45 2 &l

include the following: HEEAKULT&E:
2021 2020
e —
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Financial instruments level 1: 55 1& 4 @t T H :
Equity investments in listed equity securities
bR R R 2 AR 2,786 4,362

The listed equity security represents investment in an
entity listed in Japan and is denominated in Japanese
Yen (“JPY”).

During the year, fair value losses on listed equity
investments at financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss recognised in other gains, net is
HK$1,654,000 (2020: HK$1,804,000) (Note 7).

b BEA SR — HAEH A BT
M oRE AR (THED
BIMH -

RN A AR o TR N T R
25 TAE A IR KB AR #5242 &
FEZ BT AR E AT E RS 18 5
5 H1,654,00000 (& AR« i
#1,804,0000C) (Bff5E7) -
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INVENTORIES 24 #8
2021 2020
SET i
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT ok e I
Raw materials and consumables J& #1 B} 5 74 ¥€ it 549,667 307,979
Work in progress £ 4 i 53,734 61,382
Finished goods %4 A 287,812 275,723
891,213 645,084
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 ® 5 B H b E Wk sk
2021 2020
SET i
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT ok e
Accounts and bills receivables - third parties
R S T B B S SRR — 5 = 1,403,498 1,287,335
Less: loss allowance ¥ : J&5 8 % (32,541) (16,361)
1,370,957 1,270,974
Other receivables - fth B Ui iz 2K 41,131 32,554
Total trade and other receivables & 5 M H fth JE U AR 2 48 48 1,412,088 1,303,528
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days
to 180 days to its trade customers. In addition, for certain
customers with long-established relationship, a longer credit
period may be granted. Due to the short-term nature of the
account receivables, their carrying amount is considered to

be the same as their fair value.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice
dates net of loss allowance at the end of reporting period is

as follows:

25

¥ 5y B 3L At E WEOIR 3% (A7)

KL% TE G FF N F30K £180K
ZAEEM - HAh s e B R BR
GTEPME  AMEEMAWRA TERE
55 B0 o E A R AR B S R
A L U TR (4 A0 2 B LA P (B AR ]

DA 2 2 55 ME I 3 (B 41 s SEE 1)
TR A5 03 S T 01 2 M
7

2021 2020

R4 e St 22

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT ok e

0 to 30 days 0230k 531,300 446,660
31 to 60 days 31 260K 324,216 332,331
61 to 90 days 61 290K 199,018 156,634
Over 90 days 90K A | 316,423 335,349
1,370,957 1,270,974

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime

expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

S Bt R TR s E T v
B o e QN S5 05E 2 fi by 2K B A B
A5 T W WO AR A6 ) R M 4 3 2 T e
A -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25
(CONTINUED)
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31

December 2021 reconcile to the opening loss allowances as

¥ 5y B 3L At E WEOIR 3% (A7)

B BBRAR —F = — 41+ H
= B R e 1R A L ) e 8 4

follows: HEEBE T -
2021 2020
e B i
HK$°000 HK$’000
T oo T
At 1 January A —H—H 16,361 25,303
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment losses) for the year
A TR T8 4R (OB s 4L 93¢ ) 17,639 (4,493)
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible
A A BB 25 S T i ] 22 R iR (1,459) (4,449)
At 31 December A+ —H =1—H 32,541 16,361
The carrying amounts of total trade and other receivables are A A [ Sy T Al g R Sk A B 2 R T
denominated in the following currencies: 4% LN B REFHE -
2021 2020
SR “EFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#HT oo T
USD %7t 752,055 822,237
RMB A & 403,016 323,655
JPY HH 222,678 128,083
NTD i & # 44,715 29,692
EURO (“EUR”) BT ([E T ) 10,054 1,928
HKS 7,527 11,305
Others HAll 4,584 2,989
1,444,629 1,319,889
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28

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

26 HRIBEELGHAMN

2021 2020
SRR —EFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T BT
Contract assets relating to sales of goods and provision of service

S B B AR IR A B 2 & A EE 31,153 49,766

Contract liabilities relating to sales of goods and provision of service
BLEH & B AR IR A B 2 & H A (128,791) (116,707)

The revenue recognised in the current reporting period
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities at the
beginning of the period amounted to HK$112,348,000
(2020: HK$60,580,000).

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A AR S 3 e R 2 AT i B DY ) 2 A
A A EHE112,348,0007T (& FAE
#%60,580,0007C) H B o

27 WAEEm TR

2021 2020
R4 TE TR
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
¥ =R B A1
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
#BWT L EWT T T T T oo

As at 31 December JA +Z=H =+—H
Forward foreign exchange contracts

5 A1 HE & 0 -

585 227 12

For information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of derivatives please refer to Note
3.3.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

A BT R B ERT A TRATEHZ Ik R
B 2 EHRE > w2 B33 -

28 WiTHEBREEE

2021 2020

SR A e e 45

HK$°000 HK$’000

b33 o T

Short-term time deposits i # 52 #1177 7 31,619 39,758
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 4 } 3 4 55 (H 1 H 682,315 597,995

713,934 637,753




28 BANK BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are

denominated in the following currencies:

28 WATER R BLE ()
ST 5 0 B G 2 AR (7 T 5
A

2021 2020
R e e 40

HK$°000 HK$’000

W Tt T oo

JPY HH 255,870 127,248
RMB A R 235,812 263,045
US$ %70 131,946 163,462
NTD ¥ & ¥ 61,925 52,960
HKS$ 5 ¥ 16,138 16,947
EUR (ot 7,626 8,956
Others H:Alh 4,617 5,135
713,934 637,753

The conversion of the Group’s RMB denominated cash
and bank balances deposited with banks in Mainland China
into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of
Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government of
the PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, the weighted average effective
interest rate on time deposits was approximately 1.15%
(2020: 1.09%) per annum. These deposits had an average
maturity period of 266 days (2020: 308 days).

S B AF ORI A R AT 2 4 N R
W (BB 4 M SRAT &5 B S R 2 SN I BE
H R A o 3 ZEUE ST R AR A 2
A1 BEE A7 T KR B AL

ARt ZH =t —H > EAF
K NNRET- Y B AR R 640 F51.15% (—
FFAE 0 1.09%) o %L T 266
KRB (ZF ZF4 : 308K) -
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SHARE CAPITAL

29 A

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: OB AT R AR
2021 2020
- TR R
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
J& t % H i lisdlig 4= i {8
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT oo T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
T J T (B 7 0. 1070 5 4 ik
Authorised: % & X 7 ¢
At 1 January and 31 December
w—=H—HA&k+=H=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each

Share capital

i JB v L 7
0.107C ¥ 7 /i iz B Jie A
HK$°000
BT T
Issued and fully paid: & #5417 R AUE -
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020
WoFEBFE-H AR EFE+H=1—H 729,447,964 72,945
Share option scheme: M i HE 51 #1 -
Proceeds from share issued (Note 30)
AT A 4% 3KE (K EE30) 300,000 30
At 31 December 2021 A —F ——4HF+ " =+—H 729,747,964 72,975
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 22 June 2016 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees and will expire on 21 June 2026 (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares

in the Company.

At 31 December 2021, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 66,100,000 shares. The total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such new grant is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of such
new grant, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Any grant of options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is a grantee
of the relevant options). Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors or
any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital and with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000, in any 12-month period, must be approved

by the Company’s shareholders at a general meeting.

30

Bl Fe i it )

ARFRBER —F—REANH -+ R
A 2 R S PR A S M R ([ R% R
D) >HEHAWAMER LG ERK
1 B4R BE A8 - AR —F TN A
o HE o R AN R
FEAE G ERER (BRFAL A L
W~ 7l 2 # ) 5T WEACHE - DAGRA
A F LA o

AR C—F+H A=+ —H o R
TR O T AR R AT 2 1 RO 1R £y K
H %566,100,000/ ° 7£ & £8 A A w) i H
FORHET - RGBT 2 W
B HE B - R R A R ) PR AW H
M2 O TR Z10% o fERKEA
ANE RS T o AR A LR EE
B AL TERE 0 R 2 H Ok 8 A B
] A 468 J ml e A 952 2 T T T 8 S
AEREBEAT 2 IO KRB > A5 R 0
JehER 2 B BT AN "B 2 1% »
WAL F) 2 # S AT AR B ROR
B SE AS B 2 AT AT B B T R
W JE AR ST IR AT OR AL &
B B R R AR N 2 AT AT 48 ST FE AT
HR) ZAUE o MR AT T A 2 B
A 3% T F B RS L AT E S
B SR A 1 2 AR AT N 2 R
B AN W B AR 220,19 Je A8 1 48 3 s
5,000,0007C » BIl W5 75 BE AT I oK i B4
AN ) R AL
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Options may be exercised after one year of its grant date,
and options will vest (i) as to 25% (rounded down to the
nearest whole underlying share) on the first anniversary
of its date of grant, and (ii) as to the remainder on the
second anniversary of its grant date. The exercise price is
determined by the Board of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s share.

Set out below are summaries of options granted under the
Scheme:

30

Bl Jie i ) (A7)

s FECHE AT A T FAR — SR AT
(AT H U 31 6 28 4F H B g 25%
Z IR (T 98 22 fo 00 L TR e 2
B 5 RGN IR T H R AR AR A
H B ok & 2 MR - AT AL
AEREERT > LAGDPR T =52
B - ORET HIA LR Bh 2 ik
TAE 5 i) BT H AT TR 26 H ik
0 Z V- 2N 8 s JeGin A 2w iy 2
1A {8

DUN AR R 5% AT ) O 4% T R IR 2
B

Exercise price Number of

HKS$ Share options
7 1518

W ik I HE B H

As at 1 January 2020 A —F L4 —H—H 0.906 70,150,000
Lapse during the year 4 [A 2K 5% (1,450,000)
As at | January 2021 A =~ F ~—4F—H—H 0.906 68,700,000
Lapse during the year 4 [A 2K 5% (2,300,000)
Exercised during the year 4F A 7 {# 0.906 (300,000)
As at 31 December 2021 * X~ —4F+ - H =+—H 66,100,000
Vested and exercisable £ 5% J&§ &% 7] 1T {# 0.906 66,100,000

The share options can be exercisable up to a maximum of
25% of the grant during the period from 14 June 2020 to 13
June 2021 and the balance of grant during the period from
14 June 2021 to 13 June 2029.

No options expired during the periods covered by the above
table.

The closing price of the Company’s shares on 14 June
2019, the date of grant, was HK$0.88. The fair value
of the options determined at the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model was approximately
HK$7,379,000, of which approximately HK$1,125,000 was
charged to the consolidated profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: HK$3,400,000).

WTEEENATNHE - - —4
ANHT=HBM > a7 2 RS E
BRE BB 225% 5 i T 4
ANHTMUAEZE -Z - HEASNH =08
] > AT MR N W AR AT 2 B -

i b 2 T ToR 25 2 U A ST 0 g FS A P 9

RFEJUFEANATMHE (BTH)
AN ) ey 2 W T AR £ s 50.880T o
BT B 8 4E A AR 07 s — &F 1 0 0 RE e
B 2 7 2 B I A ST (B 40 5 v
7,379,0007C - H o &5 5 1,125,00000 5
BE_FZ-—-HF+_A=+—HILEE
ZAPBER NG (T B AE
3,400,0007C) ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30
The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair

value of the share options granted:

Ji I HE it ) (A7)
ST T M 2 A T 22 (B
HEF

Grant date fair value per share % T H 1 55 J] ity & 24P (H
Expected life T8 ] 4F
Expected volatility T8 A i

Dividend yield % B %
Risk-free interest rate 4 J&l [ F1] &

HK$0.10
#10.107T
6 years

6%F
31.93%
7.39%
1.44%

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account
historical average share price volatility. The Black-Scholes
option-pricing model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the Directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the

options.

TRV M ) 566 7% A 1~ 4 JBCAE 2 0 W
At &t o Al wt B BOHE 2 2 - B - T3
FAA 3 58 — & T SR A R o TR
A5 R (2 e S RS LA
F AN AR o S MRk 2 B
LIRIRCEY Y PN IR
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OTHER RESERVES 31 HAbGE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
other
compre-
hensive
income
revaluation
reserve
b P
Capital  Contributed MNERFIA Capital
redemption surplus Hfbss Share reserve
Share reserve (Note (i) Special  WHZARM  Tranglation option (Note (ii))
premium o A iy Ul reserve  KEZEL reserve reserve AR Total
e b i B (Wke) MR Bl BREE BRERE  Obka) it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T EETr #WTx #WTx #ETx #NTx kT #MTx #WTx
Balances at 31 December 2019
and 1 January 2020
REF-NEFZAZ-RR
CRCRE-R-RZER 70,932 1,610 26,624 9,138 (6,326) (18,157) 2484 (270) 86,035
Fair value losses on equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income, net of tax
B FEARBIIA RS st 2 BA S
LATEER BRTE - - - - (18.624) - - - (18.624
Currency translation differences WL - - - - - 31,429 - - 31,429
Transfer from retained earnings to special reserve
BRERHERZN S - - - 2502 - - - - 2500
Share-based payment expense
DL ULET YAIEL) - - - - - - 3400 - 3,400
Balance at 31 December 2020
REZ-RELAZA-H2ER 7093 1610 26624 11,640 (24950) 13272 5884 (270) 104,742
Balances at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
REZ-RELAZA-0R
ZE-E--RZER 70,932 1,610 26,624 11,640 (24950) 1321 5,884 (270) 104,742
Fair value gains on equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income, net of tax
BATEARRIIARL DS Al R E
LR R - - - - 19,139 - - - 19,139
Currency translation differences # [ 5 £ - - - - - 15216 - - 15216
Acquisition of remaining
equity interest in a subsidiary
W IR 2 72 B T - - - - - - - (393) (393)
Transfer from retained earnings to special reserve
AR R R AR B - - - 1074 - - - - 1074
Issue of ordinary shares upon
exercise of share option (Note 30)
TR R RER (0 m - - - - - (31) - "
Lapsed of share option B 1 f 267 - - - - - - (1mn) - (171
Share-based payment expense
DRt BB Z R - - - - - - 1,18 - 1,125
Balance at 31 December 2021
RoE-—E+A=+—H 25 71,205 1,610 26,64 12,714 (5811) 28,488 6,807 (663) 140974
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OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

@

(ii)

Contributed surplus of the Company arose from a group
reorganisation on 26 June 1990. The balance represents the
difference between the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued under a scheme of arrangement and the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Wong’s Kong King
Holdings Limited as at 26 June 1990 acquired by the
Company under the Scheme. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
available for distribution to the shareholders.

The capital reserve arises from the changes in the Group’s
ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss

31

Atk ok i ()

it

(i) R RUEESRA R HEREA
BE A 2 AN AV E AL B o A% A IR R R
2% AR FE B 52 PR 2 OB AT B T
BN RIAR B W2 AT B — JLILE AN
H =475 B s A 4 A R A
R AR R E 2 R o AR R
U (RERT) - B
BRI IR T B -

i) A S G /8 ) 2 B A M 2 52
(o A7 M B 5 2 P ) 78 2 2 A o

of control. f#g o

BANK BORROWINGS 32 BATHE
2021 2020
ot —EoE
HK$’000 HK$’000
#WT o BT T
Trust receipts loans {5 #T Y B 3K 25,230 105,158
Other bank borrowings, unsecured H:fif 45 i€ 4/ $1 17 {f & 540,073 271,850
565,303 377,008

The bank borrowings are repayable within one year.

The effective interest rates per annum of the bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2021 is 1.07% (2020:
1.00%).

As at

31 December 2021, trust receipt loans were secured by

inventories of HK$25,230,000 (2020: HK$105,158,000).

ATEC—AEF A=+ —H o AT
B BHBAENRE1.07% (. F . F4F -
1.00%) °

P FE A= —H o FRtl
P8 B 3 DL 925,230,000 (—F &
A HE#105,158,00000) ZAEBEEIES -
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BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

32 HiTEE(E)

AL HSRAT 5 L 1% U B RTHE

2021 2020
R4 TR TEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

T T oo

HKS i W 211,145 189,568
JPY H & 110,487 87,142
USD ¥ 7T 243,671 100,298
565,303 377,008

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

33 B AR I

2021 2020
RO TR TRAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
b3 ST T
Retirement benefits obligations & M4 | & 4%
— Defined benefits plans 5 & 18 Al 51 #1 10,122 8,900

The Group operates defined benefit plans for qualifying
employees of its subsidiaries in Taiwan. The schemes are
administrated by independent trustees with their assets
held separately from those of the Group. Under the plans,
the employees are entitled to a lump sum benefit equal
to certain percentage of final salary on attainment of a
retirement age of 55. No other post-retirement benefits are

provided.

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried
out at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by a Taiwan qualified
actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligations,
the related current service cost and past service cost were

measured using the projected unit credit method.

AT I B I E A W) 2 R A
RCL S E AR A FHE o 5% 5w E LA
AE B HO i B G I 2 E ) B
FrA - RIERZFatE > BEAMEEAH—
S URUAR 45 T 4 0 5 5 1 A8 PR AF % IR e 46
[ S C = A I 3735
B RAZ AR A o

i 2 7 2 5 R 50 0 B 2 4 F
R 2 B o £ 98 2 0 R,
FoERCFCFET A=A
MetT o TSR AR 2 IR0 - A1
RS A e LIS A 20 5 ) 5
REER ST -
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated profit or loss in

33

IR P A R I (A

o F 18 4 ffe B8 A B b At S E AR A R ) 2

respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows: SR
2021 2020
R e
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T
Current service cost & ] i #5 i A 137 127
Interest cost Fl 5 B A4 65 173
Interest income FJ 5 Ut A (38) (115)
164 185

The charge for the year has been included in employee

benefit expenses.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the

actuarial valuations were as follows:

AAEFEA BT E Rt AR BARAIBH SR

KA E AT 3R 2 EE RGN E

2021 2020

TR AR TR TR

Discount rate fifj B % 0.5% - 0.8% 0.3% - 0.4%
Turnover rate HER % 0.0% - 20.0% 0.0% - 20.0%
Expected rate of salary increases 7 71 Hr 4 34 1= R & 2.0% - 2.5% 2.0% - 2.5%

The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet
arising from the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined

benefit retirement plans is as follows:

PRI A 4R ]l L A R AR R il i E
A B FEA A PR E A R ORI S

o

2021 2020

TR R R

HK$°000 HKS$°000

W T T oo

Present value of funded defined benefit obligations

OB K A8 A A R I 2 B (23,051) (21,004)
Fair value of plan assets 7 & & & 2 /A F-{H 12,929 12,104
Net defined benefit obligations %t && 8 F| /& ¥ 15 4 (10,122) (8,900)
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations in the current year were as follows:

33 Bk A R ()

AR LS EAR RS BUE < B T

2021 2020
“EFI R R
HK$°000 HK$’000
#HT o BT T
Opening defined benefit obligations 4 ] % 22 1@ Al K & (21,004) (24,246)
Current service cost 7 ] R #5 Wi A< (137) (127)
Interest cost F B A (65) (173)
Remeasurements: L H51 & :
— Gain/(loss) from change in financial assumptions
WS B R S B 2 W zs (s 18) 477 (699)
— Experience adjustments 4% 5 i B¢ (1,833) 223
Contribution from retirement plan assets /5T # & & 2 {iE 3K - 5,264
Exchange differences on foreign plans 5% 75l # 2 #5422 %6 (489) (1,246)
Closing defined benefit obligations - Ji& 5 7& 4 | & 4 (23,051) (21,004)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current

year were as follows:

AT B EENFEZZBHMT

2021 2020

SR “EFE

HK$°000 HK$’000

#HT oo T T

Opening fair value of plan assets 4F ] 7 #1 & & 22 21 (H 12,104 15,902

Interest income F 8 g A 38 115

Remeasurements: 7 5 & :
— Gain on plan assets, excluding amounts
included in interest income

FE#EE 2 daE o AR R AFLE A R 2 BH 162 287

Exchange differences on foreign plans 5% 7M1 # 2 #5425 %A 278 745
Contribution from retirement plan assets & K51 # & E 2 {3 - (5,264)

Contributions from the employer f 3 fit 3K 347 319

Closing fair value of plan assets 4 J& 51 & & 7 2 A 1A 12,929 12,104




33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 33 BIREEA R ()
(CONTINUED)

Plan assets comprise: FhH) AL
2021 2020
SE o -
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T % ok aT %
Share investments in financial institutions
JT A 45 A RS 2 I 1A 12,929 100 12,104 100

R A M R A I A B 2 U

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes

in the assumption is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

HBREWMNARBEZEE

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption 201
i 5% 5 By e 3¢ 5% i 8% I A

Discount rate

10 basis points

Decrease by

Increase by

HK$205,000 HK$208,000
0 Bl % 101/ 3 2 W Ham
#: #205,0007C #: #6208,0007C

Salary growth rate

10 basis points

Increase by

Decrease by

HK$180,000 HK$179,000
R R 101 3 2 14 m W
#1180,0007C # #5179,0007C
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes

in the assumption is (Continued):

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some
of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied when calculating the pension liability recognised
within the balance sheet.

Through its defined benefit pension plan, the Group is
exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which
are detailed below:

(a) Asset volatility
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount
rate set with reference to corporate bond yields; if
plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a
deficit.

(b) Changes in bond yields
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an
increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings, if

any.

(¢) Inflation risk
The Group’s pension obligations are linked to
inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher
liabilities. The majority of the plan’s assets are either
unaffected by or loosely correlated with inflation,
meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase
the deficit.

(d) Life expectancy
The majority of the plans’ obligations are to provide
benefits for the life of the member, so increases in
life expectancy will result in an increase in the plans’
liabilities.

Expected contributions to retirement benefit plans for the

year ending 31 December 2022 are HK$10,122,000.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation is 8.2 years.

33

IR P AR I (A

S A R 3 ) B A ) 2 MUK
(#)

bR AR R O A ) LA — TELARR S A 8 i Py
A7 A AR M 17 A 58 2 R o ECRR R
B DUAS R AT REHE A - i AR A B st 2 5
B W] RE AT BRI o R S E AR AR IfE
BE O B BUR R TR
FEER B E B AR AR BRI A
MRl 2 7 1% (H 7 i 3 OR 22 F0 30 Ao
FREMERERARIEZBME) -

¢ TR S R AR R et B T
SR - A BT

(a) & BV
FHEIEAT I 2% A A E AR E R
R EZ M BLRFHA s e BEE
FEBURWILZE B > M A 4 o

(b) HHFFELRED
O AR R 2R R D I 1w
FAE - S B DU AR A 2
SR EER I () JBO3 K5 -

(c) I8 R A b
A SR ) 2 AR AR SR AfE B iR 6
AR > BARMR o FHEIEE R
HR Gy AN SZ AR R Bl R I e 2
T > B R[] g 48 s

(@) FHIF
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WE—_F-__HF+ A=+ —HILHF
JE 2 A8 PR A R E S TR 0O R S T
10,122,0007T °

TR AR AR 2 MHEF- 32 48 1] £ 8.24F
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 34 B 5 B H Al RE A R K
2021 2020
TR BB
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T oo i e
Accounts payables [ {5 I 7 712,446 639,970
Bills payables JEf+f 22 4% 94,730 34,090
807,176 674,060
Accruals and other payables & 72 I K H: i AT g 3 308,908 262,378
1,116,084 936,438

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based

PATR 7 B2 By JE A MR O i o5 0 R 2 7 i

on goods receipt dates at the end of reporting period: B HMWEHE Z BRE A -
2021 2020
e S
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T ok e
0 to 30 days 0230k 413,313 458,837
31 to 60 days 312 60K 247,372 127,550
61 to 90 days 61 90K 68,714 53,371
Over 90 days 90K A | 77,777 34,302
807,176 674,060

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are

B’ 5 T FOA A R K AR T BT #%2 LL R

denominated in the following currencies: ety
2021 2020
- e O ZEREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T oT
US$ £ 70 386,094 337,422
RMB A % 234,881 229,543
HKS$ 5 211,044 210,405
JPY H & 199,141 105,919
NTD # & ¥ 67,351 41,941
EUR F{JC 12,284 6,468
Others H:Ath 5,289 4,740
1,116,084 936,438
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 35
OF CASH FLOWS

5 BF Bl & U B3R B Bk

(a) Cash from operations: (a) BEEBENBBHE:
2021 2020
SE SECEE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Profit before income tax & T 153 %% il i F1l 142,360 140,955
Adjustments for: 4% J % ~ 51 & JH :
— Interest costs Al B A 4,674 9,604
— Interest income F 5 it A (3,462) (2,422)
— Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(B AR B 5 A & G W4 2 <l 2
e S A (249) (352)
— Dividend income from joint ventures
FENFEZ BB RA (3,893) (3,885)
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Yo ~ W7 B s I S 46,930 49,576
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets i | #f & 7 7 85 22,348 21,775
— Amortisation of intangible assets ¥ ¥ 7 i £ 97 97
— Provision for club membership and debentures
A R 16 19
— (Reversal of provision for)/allowance for obsolescence of
inventories
BB (CREM R ID) A (786) 1,511
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
WY - W BB 2 kR OlaR) 351 (3,902)
— Net provision for/(write-back of) of impairment
loss on financial assets
<o A AU MEL R TR 2 A (R0 3 A 17,639 (4,493)
— Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial
instruments
AP A il T H 2 AP E R IR, () W8 800 (354)
— Non-cash employee benefits expenses — share
based payments
A B < (R AR A B S — DU 2 2R Bt 2 A 3K 1,125 3,400
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
ME AR H) 2 6,707 13,802
Changes in working capital: & ¥ & 4 5 &) : 234,657 225,331
— Inventories 17 & (245,343) 172,185
— Trade and other receivables ‘& 5y S H Ath JFE Wi HE 3k (126,199) 63,747
— Contract assets & &) & & 18,613 (5,694)
— Deposits and prepayments 1% 4 [ T8 £ K JH (3,212) (2,782)
— Retirement benefit obligations & ¥4 F| 7 5 28 367
— Trade and other payables & 7 J i 1 £ i 3¢ 179,646 12,696
— Contract liabilities £ % & fif 12,084 55,987
Cash from operations %% & 27 it 15 B 4 70,274 521,837




35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

(d)

35

& OF B 4 o B LW RE (A

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, by NEBREHERD > HEWE
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and g 55 B w% i =2 Pt 15wk JE AL S -
equipment comprise:
2021 2020
R R R
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T BT I
Net book amount i ifij 7% (& 5,278 7,502
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
WY - RS R ) i (351) 3,902
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
WEYZE - RS K& TS B E 4,927 11,404
Non-cash financing activities related to acquisition (c) & B4 b & IE B) B A 0T REE
of right-of-use assets (Note 16). A (Fik1e) -
Net debt reconciliation (@) B EE R

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and
the movements in net debt for each of the periods

presented.

A BT S 2 A 5 A L P B R %
B R 8 22 o A e

2021 2020
ZERI A TR AR
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T

Net cash ¥ 4 5 %
Short-term time deposits % ¥ % # 17 5k 31,619 39,758
Cash and cash equivalents 5 4 & 51 4 % (HJH H 682,315 597,995
Bank borrowings #£47 & £ (565,303) (377,008)
Lease liabilities FH £ & 15 (48,143) (29,195)
Net cash B 4 iF %8 100,488 231,550
Bank balances and cash #8174 8% & Bl & 713,934 637,753
Gross debt - fixed interest rates & 75 42 %8 — [H & F| % (48,143) (29,195)
Gross debt - variable interest rates & 15 42 %8 — 17 & FI| & (565,303) (377,008)

Net cash Bl & 7 H

100,488 231,550
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(d) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

35 HUFB AR EFRWEE ()

(@) fEHEFEEEGE)

Liabilities from financing activities Other assets
il 3 Bz FLfR oAl &

Bank

balances

Lease and cash
Borrowings liabilities Sub-total HAT AR Total
fif iR it & A st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EWT T T T EWT T wWTT W TT

Net debt as at 1 January 2020

HZFEZRAE - —H 2B (657,612) (35,667) (693,279) 490,241 (203,038)
Cashflows 34 Jii i 280,604 21,798 302,402 134,823 437,225
New leases # & - (15,242) (15,242) - (15,242)
Foreign exchange adjustments
1 HE 37 - (657) (657) 12,689 12,032
Other changes (i) HAth % B (i) - 573 573 - 573
Net cash as at 31 December 2020
N FET A =1—H

Z AR (377,008) (29,195) (406,203) 637,753 231,550
Cashflows B & i & (188,295) 20,767 (167,528) 80,017 (87,511)
New leases H7fll & - (39,228) (39,228) - (39,228)
Foreign exchange adjustments
1 e ] B - (487) (487) (3,836) (4,323)
Net cash as at 31 December 2021
W oER -+ H=1—H

Z B e (565,303) (48,143) (613,446) 713,934 100,488

(i) Other changes included non-cash movements,
including COVID-19-related rent concessions and
accrued rental expenses which will be presented as
operating cash flows in the statement of cash flow
when paid.

()

HAibssh S H I HEEEH > GfF
S 80 56 SR 995 2 (COVID-19)4 B
A H R & Sl > %%
S5 A R A BL A TR R
YIS B -
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COMMITMENTS 36 A&
Capital commitments B AR
2021 2020
R S
HK$°000 HK$°000
#H T BT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred:
B AT #E R A 2 AR BH S
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
HEE Y - s Mot 1,285 2,736
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BEALZS

Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions, or directors or

officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Senta Wong,

chairman of the board of directors.

W 2o - 8 AR 2 ) B L D 4 A
— 7 B S 7 2 B I R R SR R
REEEE N 2HHE > SHRA LN R
WA F 2 ERHEEBAE -

SR R R B ST AR R
il
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

During the year, the Group entered into the

following transactions with its related parties:

For the year ended

37 B

(a)

31 December

MmN L5 ()

TRARAEJEE > G I S RN
AT TR S ¢

Amount due from

related parties

BREVT-A=ZT—HILEE M 32\ - 2k R
2021 2020 2021 2020
e L = e e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T BT T T

Service fee income (Notes i and iii)
RS i 4 (B aEi i) 118

Service fee expense (Notes i and iii)

118 - -

A5 2 S (B ki Redii) - 224 - -

Rental expense (Notes ii and iii)

AH 4 32t (S R Miid) 996 996 - -

Notes: Pt 23

(i)  Related party is Wesi Technology Limited, a joint ) BEANLIAERZ —MEEAA
venture of the Group. Wesi Technology Limited °

(ii)  Related party was company of which Mr. Senta Wong (i) BN T E R SAE B o A
is a director having control or significant influence PRI MES BB A S 22 N o
over this company.

(iii)  All of the transactions were carried out in the normal (i) B2 5 I A R B i R AR
course of the Group’s business and the terms as agreed F5 58 5y 45 7 F i 7 2 MR GHEA T o
between the transacting parties.

Key management remuneration by FEEHABZMSE

The remuneration of key management during the year

was as follows:

FEEAEMANBRERN ST

2021 2020
e 2 “ER R
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T BT I

Salaries, wages, commission and allowances
Bra o TE - e K 66,667 64,425

Share options granted to key management

BT EEEHE AR ERE 837 2,454
Post-employment benefits & /4 | 2,209 2,107

69,713 68,986
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BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

38 ArwFlzEEAMERMEZS)

2021 2020
e S S TR R

HK$°000 HK$’000
T BT T

ASSETS % j&

Non-current assets JE i 3 & &

Subsidiaries Fff J& 2 7 571,766 571,766

Current assets ¥ B & &

Prepayments T8 {7 3K JH 276 269

Cash and cash equivalents 3 4 } 81 4 55 (H A H 3,998 2,943

Total current assets W@ 4274 3,212

Total assets & & 48 % 576,040 574,978

EQUITY Ji% 4

Capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the Company
A 2 R HE i ¥ A A AN B A 2 G G
Share capital A% 72,975 72,945
Note (a)

Reserves f# fff Bt 5 (a) 156,905 188,241

Total equity /i #E 48 % 229,880 261,186

LIABILITIES £ &

Current liabilities 7 B £ 1&

Amount due to a subsidiary M1 — [A] Bt Ji§ 2> 7] 2 2 A 343,897 311,704

Accruals and other payables & 72 Fi S A 1 4 i 3¢ 2,263 2,088

Total current liabilities RMAMM®M  M6160 313792

Total equity and liabilities % HE & £ {2 44 %A 576,040 574,978

Net current liabilities Ji B £ & i % (341,886) (310,580)

Total assets less current liabilities & &5 48 % I i B) £1 (& 229,880 261,186

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and was signed on its

behalf.

Senta Wong
Director

Byron Shu-Chan Ho
Director

ApNElZBEEABRON F 4=
A=+ B &EHE N b LT EFMN
KEE -

Ia‘i’:\m
EF

i st 45
=H
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38

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

38 KA Wz & E AR K )

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (%)
Note (a)  Reserves movements of the Company Bt 5 (a) A< 2> W) 22 fif 525 B
Capital Contributed
redemption surplus Share
Share reserve  (Note (i) option  Retained
Company premium B A B 1ol RAER reserve earnings Total
y N/ i 45 i 5 W (WEEG)  WRERE  REEN At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WL W Tr wWTr  BWT Wt BWT
Balances at 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020
AR -REF AT HR
CERCRE-A - HZHR 70,932 1,610 71,253 2,484 20,614 172,893
Profit for the year 7% 4F ¥ i | - - - - 11,948 11,948
Share-based payment expense
DR A L 2 A5F 3B - - - 3,400 - 3,400
Balances at 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021
NRZEREF AT AR
SR A HZER 70,932 1,610 77,253 5,884 32,562 188,241
1mmmnmwm¢iﬁﬁﬂ - - - - 25,653 25,653
2020 final dividend % 4 A IS - - - - (43,767) (43,767)
2021 interim dividend — % ~—4F I & - - - - (14,589) (14,589)
Lapsed of share option i [ fE % 4% - - - (171) 171 -
Issue of ordinary shares upon
exercise of share option
AT 8 PR RE i 5 17 0 I 273 - - (31) - 242
Share-based payment expense
DA A i 2 A58 3B - - - 1,125 - 1,125
Balance at 31 December 2021
NoRD T AS TR E R 71,205 1,610 77,253 6,807 30 156,905
Note: P 2%
(i)  Contributed surplus of the Company arose from a group () WM—UNFEARNAZ P AAHEEEA

reorganisation on 26 June 1990. The balance represents the

difference between the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued under a scheme of arrangement and the

consolidated shareholders’

funds of Wong’s Kong King

Holdings Limited as at 26 June 1990 acquired by the
Company under the scheme. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
available for distribution to the shareholders.

FE A 2 AN RV E AL B o %A B R AR
2% AR R B 2 PR 2 OB AT B T (H
BN AR WL AT B — JLILE AN
H 2475 B R e 4R A R A
Rl AR E e 2 225 - RIE TR
U AN (RERT) - B
BLERTT 2 IR T B
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

After the outbreak of the coronavirus omicron variant
(“Omicron outbreak”) in early 2022, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across the country/region. The Group
will pay close attention to the development of the Omicron
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group. As at the date on which
this set of consolidated financial statements were authorised
for issue, the Group was not aware of any material adverse
effects on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 as a result of the Omicron

outbreak.

39

CUR R ]

A TUE AR ) R B ORT B O R O
Omicron## % £ ([ Omicrontf # |) 1% »
T B A AR i — R
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40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

40 FEW B A B FE

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 AN E - —4FE+HA=+—H EEH
are as follows: A RFERHIT
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
(lass of incorporation/ capital/paid-up  equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held Ll v operation LA/ KEMMEER:  Principal activities
R4 BEERARN s BRWE B A AR Rektsn) TEEHK
Direct subsidiary
HHRE A
Asean Limited Ordinary British Virgin Hong Kong USDI 100 Investment holding
il Islands Fif £ REHR
ERAERRRE
Brilliant Elite Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
SRLRERFEARLR i Eif &k 1T BEfR
Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited* Ordinary Taiwan Taiwan NTD362,888,940 6744 Investment holding and
BEBERDARAF T hiE fE A 362,888. 9407 trading
BERRLES
Wong’s Kong King Holdings Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$47,687,809 100 Investment holding
IREREMARARA HEk Bt Fit Hh47,687,8097C RN
WKK Technology Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$400,500,000 100 Manufacturing and
TRIERMEARAA L i i 7 1400,500,0007¢ selling of electrical and
electronic products
HERHERRR
BTEM
Indirect subsidiary
GE Vi
Dongguan Wong's Kong King Contributed PRC PRC HK$673,600,000 100 Manufacturing and
Electronics Co., Ltd * capital Gl Gl 673,600,000 selling of electrical and
REXREZEFARARY g electronic products
RERHERRR
BTEM
R RERARA R Contributed PRC PRC HK$27,420,000 100 Manufacturing of film
capital il G 827,420,000 products
il HEMRER
Dongguan Nissin Plastic Products Contributed PRC PRC HKS111,340,000 100 Manufacturing of plastic
Co., Ltd.* capital ikt i 111,340,000 products
RERHEBERARA A hid < HERBER



40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

40  EEWE A FGEE (A7)

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
(lass of incorporation/ capital/paid-up  equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held i3 AV operation CH#IhA/ REMER  Principal activities
kg UE1ES VI Sk BEns BRI At BAHEG (%) EERH
Indirect subsidiary (continued)
(kA Ve )
Grace Year Enterprises Limited Ordinary Hong Kong PRC HK$2 100 Trading and distribution of
EEEFRAT Tk Eik G o plastic products
BRENE R REH
Headway Holdings Limited® Ordinary Samoa Taiwan USD1,100,000 6744 Trading and investment
ERERARA A TR [ & &l 1,100,000% 12 holding
B BB BR
Hong Kong Taiwan Kong King Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$26,210,000 6744 Trading and distribution of
FhEARERERAT il Fik Fif 16126,210,0007C industrial products
CUVES e
Nissin Co., Limited Ordinary British Virgin PRC USD4,500,001 100 Investment holding and
i Islands i 4,500,001 8 trading and distribution
EREMTEE of plastic products
REBR BBELRES
REH
Speady Snatch Company Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$400,000,002 100 Investment holding
EHARLA HEk Bt Fit ##400,000,0027C BRER
Taiwan WKK Distribution Co., Ltd.* Ordinary Taiwan Taiwan NTD1,000,000 100 Trading and distribution of
AETRERAHRMERAA R HiE HE A 1,000,000 industrial products
EUVES LA
WKK America (Holdings) Inc.* Ordinary United States of United States USD45,000 100 Marketing
Hi America of America 45000 70 iR
#H £H
WKK Asia Pacific Limited Ordinary British Virgin Hong Kong USDI 100 Investment holding
IRERENATHARAH Lk Islands Fik 1% BERR
ERAWARE
WKK China Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 Trading, distribution and
IRBETRARA T ik Eik Bk 8 500,0007¢ installation of turnkey

production facilities
Bh BHRERLE
AR EER
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40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

40  EEWE A FGEE (A7)

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
(lass of incorporation/ capital/paid-up  equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held i3 AV operation CH#IhA/ REMER  Principal activities
kg UE1ES VI Sk BEns BRI At BAHEG (%) EERH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued)
(kA Ve )
WKK Distribution Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
EREEEHERAA HiEh: Fi Fik 41,000,007 Bt
WKK Electronic Equipment Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 100 Trading and distribution
FRERETREARLA Hifk Fik Fik Ehor U e
WKK Engineering Service Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS2,000 100 Provision of engineering
IRERERSEGREAR LA ik Fik Bl 82,0007 services
R TREERE
WKK Japan Limited* Ordinary Japan Japan JPY50,000,000 100 Marketing
Hilk i3 HES 50,000,000 TR
WKK Distribution (Singapore) Pte Ltd* Ordinary Singapore Singapore SGD1,800,000 100 Trading and distribution in
T sk s Ji%1,800,0007C electronics components
and printed circuit boards
and other related products
BTEMREIER
RHMABER
B REH
WKK PCB Trading Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS2 100 Trading and distribution
IRERERBEHHRAA B Ei Fib W BhRAH
WKK (Thailand) Limited® Ordinary Thailand Thailand Common shares 100 Trading and distribution of
L 3] % THB 2,450,000 industrial products
R GUVES LA
2450,000% 5k
Preference shares
THB2,550,000
Bk
2,550,004 5
WKK Travel Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,600,000 100 Travel ticketing
ERERIREARAR Hilk Fib Eit 44,600,007 kRS
WKK Distribution (Viet Nam) Ordinary Viet Nam Viet Nam Vietnamese Dong 100 Trading and distribution
Company Limited* L e L 2,327,000,000 B R

2,327,000,000 R



40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

40 FEM)E A wlGEN (4

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
(lass of incorporation/ capital/paid-up  equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held i3 AV operation CH#IhA/ REMER  Principal activities
kA UE1ES VI Sk BEns BRI At Rkb (%) EEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued)
AR (3
3 Kings Medical Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$43,575,000 9426  Manufacturing, general
SHEEHRAA L Eik Eib Ve 43.575,0007C trading and hospital
management
R —BEAR
RhER
WKK Mobile Technology Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKSI 100 Research and Development
ERERBHHSARLA Tk Fik Fik AV B S
WKK Technology Queretaro, SA de CV Ordinary Mexico Mexico Mexican Peso 100 Turnkey manufacturing
ik HF Ll 50,000 services for Mexican or
50,000 foreign customers
BETLE To design, manufacture,
test, distribute, and
provide return/repair
services for electronic
components and
assemblies for Mexican
or foreign original
equipment manufacturers.
To establish branch
offices and subsidiaries
in the United Mexican
States or abroad.
RERFREINEF R
— R B -
RELEET D T
(ST CERE S N
Mﬁ HHERRIEET
TR RE /4
1& R o
TR MRS RE IS
WA R -
TRIERBHE R GEINGRA A" Contributed PRC PRC HK$24,000,000 100 Trading and distribution
capital il i $£%24,000,000C in printed circuit boards
i34 and semi-conductors

equipment
AERR LR
RIE 5 RAH
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40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

40  EEWE A FGEE (A7)

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
(lass of incorporation/ capital/paid-up  equity interest of
share capital establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company held i3 AV operation CH#IhA/ REMER  Principal activities
kA UE1ES VI Sk BEns BRI At Rkb (%) EEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued)
AR (3
TREERHRBOLHERAT Contributed PRC PRC HK$5,000,000 100 Trading and distribution
capital il G 85,000,000 in printed circuit boards
i3 and semi-conductors
equipment
HBIE RS ER
CUEVLES
R EN AR A A" Contributed PRC PRC USD2,500,000 6744 Trading and distribution of
capital i i 2,500,000% 78 industrial products
i EUVES e
TRIEBE AL ARAAY Contributed PRC PRC USD2.980,000 100 Trading and distribution
capital i i 2,980,003 T in printed circuit boards
i34 and semi-conductors
equipment
ABIERA TR
Al R
EREREBREEEREARLT  Comribued  PRC PRC USD310,000 100 Provision of maintenance
capital i i 310,0003 1T and after sales services
i RO RER R
R FRIEERAARA A" Contributed PRC PRC USD2,030,000 100 Manufacturing, trading and
capital Gl G 2,050,000 ¢ distribution of industrial
i3 products
B HAREHIEE
H

Company registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises
under PRC law.

Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

or assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

subsisting at the end of the year or any time during the year.

i
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